Traffic and Road Safety Advisory

Panel

DATE: Tuesday 28 November 2017

TIME: 7.30 pm

VENUE: Council Chamber, Harrow Civic Centre, Station

Road, Harrow, HA1 2XY

MEMBERSHIP (Quorum 3)

Chair: Councillor Kairul Kareema Marikar

Councillors:

Jeff Anderson John Hinkley

Jerry Miles (VC) Ameet Jogia

David Perry Manjibhai Kara

Advisers: Mr N Long Mr A Wood

Dr Anoop Shah

Reserve Members:

1. Nitin Parekh 1. Mrs Vina Mithani
2. Sachin Shah 2. Pritesh Patel

3. Sasi Suresh 3. Lynda Seymour
4. Anne Whitehead

Contact: Manize Talukdar, Democratic & Electoral Services Officer
Tel: 020 8424 1323 E-mail: manize.talukdar@harrow.gov.uk

( ’%/’/‘UMDUNCIL )

LONDON



Useful Information

Meeting details:
This meeting is open to the press and public.

Directions to the Civic Centre can be found at:
http://www.harrow.qgov.uk/site/scripts/location.php.

Filming / recording of meetings

The Council will audio record Public and Councillor Questions. The audio recording will be
placed on the Council’s website.

Please note that proceedings at this meeting may be photographed, recorded or filmed. If
you choose to attend, you will be deemed to have consented to being photographed,
recorded and/or filmed.

When present in the meeting room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Meeting access / special requirements.

The Civic Centre is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets
and lifts to meeting rooms. If you have special requirements, please contact the officer
listed on the front page of this agenda.

An induction loop system for people with hearing difficulties is available. Please ask at the
Security Desk on the Middlesex Floor.

Agenda publication date: 20 November 2017

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 28 November 2017 2


http://www.harrow.gov.uk/site/scripts/location.php

AGENDA - PART |

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members.
Reserve Members may attend meetings:-

0] to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve,

(i) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and

(i)  the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the
Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve;

(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after
the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after
his/her arrival.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising
from business to be transacted at this meeting, from:

(@) all Members of the Panel;
(b)  all other Members present.

3.  MINUTES (Pages5 - 12)

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2017 be taken as read and signed
as a correct record.

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *

To receive any public questions received in accordance with Executive Procedure Rule
49 (Part 4D of the Constitution).

Questions will be asked in the order in which they were received. There will be a time
limit of 15 minutes for the asking and answering of public questions.

[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, Thursday 23 November
2017. Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

No person may submit more than one question].
5. PETITIONS

To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under
the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 47 (Part 4D of the Constitution).

6. DEPUTATIONS

To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 48
(Part 4D of the Constitution).

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 28 November 2017 3


mailto:publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

10.

11.

12.

INFORMATION REPORT: PETITIONS (Pages 13 -22)
Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT: WEALDSTONE TRANSPORT STUDY (Pages 23 -
146)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT: WEALDSTONE - LIVEABLE NEIGHBOURHOOD BID
(Pages 147 - 156)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT: ULTRA LOW EMISSION ZONE - NEIGHBOURHOOD
OF THE FUTURE (NOF) UPDATE (Pages 157 - 166)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT: 2017 /18 TRAFFIC AND PARKING SCHEMES
PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 167 - 198)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.
ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

which cannot otherwise be dealt with.

AGENDA - PART Il - NIL

* DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE
The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the
Council’'s website, which will be accessible to all.

[Note: The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.]

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 28 November 2017 4



Aaenda Item 3

Pa ?,Su:r,’.L?Ju.JmL )

LONDDN

—_

141.

TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY
ADVISORY PANEL

24 JULY 2017

Chair: * Councillor Jerry Miles

Councillors: * Susan Hall * David Perry
*  Ameet Jogia Sasi Suresh (4)
* Mrs Vina Mithani Sachin Shah (2)

*

*

Advisers: T MrN Long * Mr A Wood
* Dr Anoop Shah
In attendance: Graham Henson Minute 148

(Councillors)

*  Denotes Member present

(2) and (4) Denote category of Reserve Members
T Denotes apologies received

Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note the attendance of the following duly constituted
Reserve Members:

Ordinary Member Reserve Member
Councillor Mrs Chika Amadi Councillor Sachin Shah
Councillor Jeff Anderson Councillor Sasi Suresh

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017 5 -112 -



142. Appointment of Chair

RESOLVED: To note that in the absence of the Chair, Councillor Jerry Miles
was appointed as Chair.

143. Declarations of Interest
RESOLVED: To note that the following interests were declared:

Agenda Iltem 9 & 10 — Information Report; Petitions; Traffic & Parking
Schemes Programme Update

Councillor Ameet Jogia declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he was Ward
Councillor for Canons. He would remain in the room whilst the matter was
considered and voted upon.

Agenda ltem 10 — 2017/18 Traffic & Parking Schemes Programme Update

Councillor Ameet Jogia declared a pecuniary interest in that he owned a
property on Whitehouse Drive. He would leave the room if the matter was
considered and voted upon.

Agenda ltem 9 - 2017/18 Information Report: Petitions

Councillor Susan Hall declared a non-pecuniary interest in that she was on
the Board of the London Fire Brigade and she was a Member of the London
Assembly. She would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered
and voted upon.

Agenda Item 10 - 2017/18 Traffic & Parking Schemes Programme Update

Councillor Susan Hall declared a pecuniary interest in that she owned the
leasehold for a commercial premises in Wealdstone. She would leave the
room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Agenda Items 9 & 10 - 2017/18 — Information Report; Petitions; Traffic &
Parking Schemes Programme Update

Councillor Mrs Vina Mithani declared a non-pecuniary interest in that she was
Ward Councillor for Kenton West. She would remain in the room whilst the
matters were considered and voted upon.

144. Appointment of Vice Chair

RESOLVED: To note that Councillor Jerry Miles be appointed as Vice-Chair
for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

145. Suspension of Procedure Rule
RESOLVED: That Executive Procedure Rule 35.4 be suspended to allow the

Advisers to the Panel to take part in the meeting, subject to their appointment
being agreed by the Portfolio Holder for Environment.

-113 - 6 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017



146. Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2017 be
taken as read and signed as a correct record.

147. Public Questions & Deputations
RESOLVED: To note that none were received.
148. Petitions

RESOLVED: To note the receipt of the following petitions which were
referred to the Corporate Director of Community for consideration:

1. A petition from residents of Whitchurch Gardens, Edgware, containing
10 signatures, presented by Councillor Ameet Jogia, with the following
terms of reference:

‘We the undersigned urge Harrow Council to review the yellow line
arrangements around numbers 13 and 15 Whitchurch Gardens, with a
strong desire to implement a double yellow line around the bend to
control parking and increase safety and cleanliness for residents.’

2. A petition from residents in Peter's Close, Stanmore, containing 4
signatures, presented by Councillor Ameet Jogia, with the following
terms of reference:

‘We request Harrow Council to assist us in preventing our driveway
from being blocked, we already have white lines, which is completely
ignored. This blockage makes it very hard for us if we have to get out
in an emergency. | have a blue badge and one of my sons, who has
MS and who is unable to walk unaided, also has a blue badge. Whilst
I’m doing this email, someone has been parked right over the whole of
our drive playing on his phone for a good ten minutes making it difficult
for other cars to drive by and blocking the way for my husband to get
into the drive.’

3. A petition from residents of White House Drive, Stanmore, containing
28 signatures, presented by Councillor Ameet Jogia, with the following
terms of reference:

‘We, the undersigned request Harrow Council to help us alleviate the
adverse effect of the new parking restrictions on Kerry Court/Avenue
on White House Drive. We are suffering from mass displaced public
parking from Kerry Court/Avenue, which has led to residents of white
House Drive — many of whom have parking permits — with nowhere to
park outside their homes, let alone the surrounding area. To alleviate
this we request Harrow Council to change our parking restrictions to
Monday-Sunday, 10-11 am and 3pm-4pm.

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017 7 -114 -



To further ease the pressure on parking, we also request Harrow
Council to provide two additional permit bays, one to each existing end
(outside nos 1 and nos 15 maisonettes) and remaining single yellow
lines (outside nos 1 and 15 maisonettes), to be converted to double
yellow lines).’

4. A petition from residents of West Street, Nelson Road, Trafalgar
Terrace and Wellington Terrace, containing 116 signatures, presented
by Councillor Graham Henson, with the following terms of reference:

‘Residents’ petition for residents’ permit holder parking (CPZ) in West
Street (from nos. 42 & 67 West Street right to the bottom of West
Street where it joins Bessborough Road), Nelson Road/Trafalgar
Terrace & Wellington Terrace, Harrow on the Hill — Monday-Friday,
8am-11am.’

RECOMMENDED ITEMS

149. Appointment of Advisers

The Panel received a report of the Director of Legal and Governance
Services, which set out nominations for Advisers to the Panel for the 2017/18
Municipal Year.

The Chair advised that nominations had been received from the Harrow
Public Transport Users Association (Mr Anthony Wood), Harrow Cyclists (Dr
Anoop Shah) and the Harrow Association for Disabled People (Mr Nigel
Long). He added that Mr Leonard Gray, who had served on the Panel since
2007, representing the pedestrian organisation, Living Streets, had stood
down and Living Streets had not nominated a replacement. The Chair
requested that the thanks and appreciation of Panel members be conveyed to
Mr Gray for his hard work and support for the work of the Panel over recent
years.

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to the Portfolio Holder for Environment)

That the nominations for Advisers to the Panel as set out at appendix 1 of the
officer report, be agreed.

RESOLVED ITEMS

150. INFORMATION REPORT - Petitions
The Panel received a report of Divisional Director, Commissioning &
Commercial Services which set out details of the petitions that had been
received since the last TARSAP meeting and provided details of the Council’s

investigations and findings where these had been undertaken.

Following a brief overview of the report, officers responded to Panel Members
guestions and comments as follows:

-115 - 8 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017



o in relation to petition 3 — Dorset Drive/Cavendish Drive, the matter of
low loaders and vehicles being repaired on the public highway had
been referred to the Planning Enforcement Team and with respect to
large vehicles parked overnight on those roads this had been referred
to the Parking Operations Team. An officer undertook to follow this up
with the Enforcement Team. He added this matter had not been
included in the current parking programme but would be referred to
The Panel in February when the parking programme for the following
year would be determined. Officers could not easily change the size of
the parking bays in those streets as this would require a change in the
current traffic order, which would have to be advertised and there were
cost implications to be considered. Heavy vehicles up to 3.5 tonnes in
weight could be legally parked on local streets, however, they would be
breaching traffic regulations if the vehicles were of a higher tonnage or
were parked overnight;

o another officer added that there were two options available to deal with
this issue. The first would be to take the Planning Enforcement route.
The second would be to implement enforceable parking controls in the
area. He undertook to get in touch with the member for Canons Ward
regarding this issue within a week of the meeting;

o petition 4 - Howberry Road — parking controls would shortly be
consulted on utilising the congestion relief funds made available by
Transport for London. The need for increased enforcement during
match days at Wembley had been forwarded to the Parking
Enforcement Team and the matter was noted,;

. petition 6 — The Grove / Warren Lane - An officer confirmed that double
yellow line restrictions would shortly be implemented in The Grove /
Warren Lane area subject to the outcome of the statutory consultation
process;

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

151. INFORMATION REPORT - 2017 /18 Traffic and Parking Schemes
Programme update

The Panel received a report of the Divisional Director, Commissioning &
Commercial Services which provided an update on progress with the 2017/18
traffic & parking management programme of works. This included schemes
funded by TfL and those schemes included in Harrow’s Capital Programme.
Officers also gave a brief presentation on the Mayor of London’s draft
Transport Strategy for 2017.

Councillor Hall left the room during consideration of this item.

Following questions and comments from the Panel regarding the Draft
Transport Strategy, officers advised that:

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017 9 -116 -



-117 -

o the Consultation relating to Mayor of London’s Draft Transport Strategy
would be available on the Transport for London web site until
2 October 2017. The new Strategy would require Harrow to submit a
Local Implementation Plan (LIP) which the Panel would be consulted
on in due course;

o the Strategy was based on the ‘Healthy Streets Approach’, the main
priorities of which were improving public transport, creating new
homes and jobs, introducing and expanding the Ultra Low Emission
Zone, eliminating deaths and serious injuries on London's streets and
developing a London-wide network of cycle routes;

o interventionist policies, such as the introduction of the Congestion
Charge in central London, aimed at reducing car use and the number
of car journeys, had been successful to an extent. However, those
measures aimed at encouraging a modal shift among Londoners were
more likely to succeed. It was anticipated that the population of
London would increase substantially by 2041 and this increase would
have considerable repercussions for traffic, road safety, public
transport, overcrowding and air quality. The Mayor of London had set
an ambitious goal where 80% of all journeys would be undertaken by
sustainable transport by 2041, whereas, the current target figure was
64%. It was important to promote and provide genuine, affordable
alternatives to car use, with measures tailored to suit local conditions
in each borough;

. the Mayor’s Vision Zero target related to the elimination of road traffic
deaths and serious injuries by reducing the dominance of motor
vehicles on London’s streets. Introducing more 20 mph zones and
other traffic measures in Harrow would help to achieve this.

The Adviser from Harrow Cyclists stated that the results of TfL’s Strategic
Cycling Analysis should form the basis of all local cycling policy.

The Adviser from HPTUA stated that bus services to hospitals needed
increased funding and improvement.

Following questions from the Panel regarding the report, officers advised that:

o the informal consultation leaflets for Dukes Avenue have been
delivered and the responses were being collated. If the proposals go
ahead then statutory consultation would be likely in the autumn of
2017. The parking review in Calthorpe Gardens would be undertaken
later in the year;

o the proposed parking schemes in Kenmore Avenue and Christchurch
Gardens were at the initial stage. Herga Road was on the list of roads
to be taken forward to the statutory consultation stage to be included in
zone J;

10 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017



o a scheme was being progressed in the Victor Road area as part of a
section 106 agreement funded by the Kodak development. Some
residents had indicated in the past that they wanted the road to be
closed off. There had been a number of right hand turn accidents
recorded at the junction of Harrow View / Victor Road and banning the
right hand turn there would improve road safety and reduce the number
of accidents and incidents. In addition a point no entry would reduce
some ‘rat-running’ along the road. Consultation with local residents
was on-going until 31 July;

o the council took an holistic approach with regard to cycling provision in
the borough and all new schemes would adhere to TfL’s London
Cycling Design Standards.

It was noted that there was a typographical error in column 4 on page 41 of
the agenda and the word ‘unable’ should read ‘enable’.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.00 pm).

(Signed) COUNCILLOR JERRY MILES
Chair

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 24 July 2017 11 -118 -



This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda ltem 7
Pages 13 to 22

Traffic and Road Safety
Advisory Panel

th
Date of Meeting: 28" November 2017

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT
Petitions relating to:

1) West Street / Nelson Road - request for a
Controlled Parking Zone (CP2).

2) St John Fisher School — Objection to 20
mph zone.

3) Peters Close — Driveway obstruction

4) Whitchurch Gardens — Request for
double yellow lines

5) White House Drive , Stanmore — Request
to change CPZ hours

6) Lorne Road- Objection to not being
included within zone J

7) Radcliffe Road — objection to CPZ

8) Howberry Road — objection to double
yellow lines

9) Byron Road, Warham Road and Locket
Road — objection to CPZ proposals

10) St John Fisher School — 2" Objection to
20 mph zone.

Responsible Paul Walker — Corporate Director, Community

Officer:

Exempt: No

( Aé/’/’ﬂhCDUNCIL )

LONDON
13



Wards affected: Harrow on the Hill, Headstone North,
Canons, Wealdstone, Marlborough

Enclosures: None

Section 1 - Summary

This report sets out details of the petitions that have been received since the
last TARSAP meeting and provides details of the Council’s investigations and
findings where these have been undertaken. The status of some of the
petitions may have changed since the report was drafted because of the
timescale in obtaining necessary report approvals.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

Petition 1 — West Street / Nelson Road - Request for Controlled
Parking Zone (CPZ2)

2.1 A petition containing 116 signatures was received by the council on 24™
January 2017. The petition states:

“‘Residents’ petition for residents’ permit holder parking (CPZ) in West
Street (from nos. 42 & 67 West Street right to the bottom of West Street
where it joins Bessborough Road), Nelson Road/Trafalgar Terrace &
Wellington Terrace, Harrow on the Hill - Monday-Friday, 8am-17am.”

2.2 The request will be added to the list of requests to be presented to the
panel in February 2018 when the annual parking management report is
considered. As members are aware all of the requests for schemes
received during the year or already on the list will be assessed against
standard assessment factors agreed by TARSAP.

2.3 The schemes will be ranked in order of priority and a suggested
programme of schemes presented to the panel for their consideration and
prioritisation in February 2018. The priority for a scheme in West Street /
Nelson Road can then be considered.

Petition 2 — St John Fisher School - Woodlands, South Way, Thrush
Green and Cambridge Road — opposed to 20 mph zone proposals

2.4 A petition containing 151 signatures was received in July 2017 during the
informal consultation stage regarding a proposed 20 mph zone in the
above roads surrounding St John Fisher School. The petition states:

“‘Residents of Woodlands, South Way, Thrush Green, and Cambridge
Road are not in favour of the proposed 20 mph scheme.”

14



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Proposals include:

- Multiple speed cushions/ bumps along Woodlands, Cambridge Road
and South Way.

- Raised entry speed bumps on Woodlands, Cambridge Road and
South Way.

Transport for London (TfL) has approved a programme of 20mph
schemes in Harrow and the programme is based on the approved Harrow
Transport Local Implementation Plan Delivery Plan for 2017/18.

The introduction of 20mph zones plays an important role in achieving the
Mayor for London’s road safety plan and casualty reduction targets. The
purpose of a 20 mph zone is also to create a safer environment for all
road users to encourage walking and cycling by limiting vehicle speeds
through the use of self-enforcing measures.

The council is committed to creating a safer environment to encourage
walking and cycling, improve air quality, and reduce the reliance on the
car - which is a key objective of a 20 mph zone. We also work very
closely with schools in the borough on these issues.

The council has embraced an incremental approach to traffic calming
which has been adopted to ensure the most appropriate solution is
reached. Surveys are conducted to establish vehicle speeds and parking
patterns are observed so that when we design a scheme we can consider
various options. For example, depending on the location we do not
exclusively look at introducing road humps; we may well consider
alternative solutions such as mini roundabouts, new surfacing, kerb build-
outs, chicanes etc depending on the circumstances.

The council no longer installs full width round top road humps in the
borough and hasn’t done so for a number of years. Instead we use a
combination of speed platforms or speed cushions both of which are
designed in accordance with the Department of Transport guidelines.
Speed cushions are designed to reduce vehicle speed, encourage less
stop / start and aggressive driving and are supported by the emergency
services because they have a less detrimental impact on ambulances
and fire service vehicles. This type of measure has been used
successfully across the borough in similar schemes. The scheme around
St John Fisher School is designed utilising speed cushions and a
combination of painted 20 mph roundels in accordance with these
specifications and DfT guidelines.

As a result of the petition and other comments received during the
informal consultation process the Portfolio Holder instructed officers to
minimise the number of speed cushions required to deliver an effective
scheme and as a consequence two sets of speed cushions have bee
removed one outside no 87 Woodlands and the other at the southern end
of South Way.

15



2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Following these changes the PH has decided that the scheme will
progress to the legal notification (statutory consultation) stage where
further representations from local residents and the wider community can
be made.

Petition 3 — Peters Close — Driveway Obstruction

A petition containing 4 signatures was presented at the TARSAP meeting
on 24" July 2017. The petition states:

“We request Harrow Council to assist us in preventing our driveway from
being blocked; we already have a white line, which is completely ignored.
This blockage makes it hard for us if we have to get out in an emergency.
| have a blue badge and one of my sons who has MS and who is unable

to walk unaided also has a blue badge.

Whilst I'm doing this email someone has parked right over the whole of
our drive playing on his phone for a good ten minutes making it difficult
for other cars to drive by and blocking the way for my husband toget into
the drive.

Many thanks for your help on this matter.

Any problems with obstruction of vehicle crossovers are normally dealt
with under separate legislation that permits enforcement action to be
undertaken without the need for a yellow line to be present. If any part of
a vehicle is parked, or overhanging, the lowered flat part of a vehicle
access then the parking operations team can be requested to attend site
and issue the vehicle with a Penalty Charge Notice (PCN). The CEO will
require the resident affected to sign a declaration that the vehicle is not
connected with that property.

We have written to the resident to explain how to contact our parking
operations team if a motorist obstructs the driveway in the future.

Petition 4 — Whitchurch Gardens — Request for double yellow lines

A petition containing 9 signatures was presented at the TARSAP meeting
on 24™ July 2017. The petition states:

“We the undersigned urge Harrow Council to review the yellow line
arrangements around numbers13 and 15 Whitchurch Gardens, with a
strong desire to implement a double yellow line around the bend to
control parking and increase safety and cleanliness for residents.”

This request will be assessed under the local safety parking schemes
programme (LSPP) previously agreed by the Panel. The assessment
criteria for all such requests includes such factors as traffic flows/speeds,
pedestrian flows, occurrence of personal injury accidents, the degree to
which parking affects access/visibility and the nature of the request. If the
threshold score required for intervention is satisfied a scheme will be
added to the programme and will be batched and then progressed.

16



2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

An assessment will be undertaken in the near future.

Petition 5 — White House Drive, Stanmore — request for a change in
the current CPZ zone hours of operation.

A petition containing 28 signatures was presented at the TARSAP
meeting on 24™ July 2017. The petition states:

“We the undersigned request Harrow Council to help us alleviate the
adverse effect of the new parking restrictions on Kerry Court/ Avenue on
White House Drive. We are suffering from mass displaced public parking
from Kerry Court /Avenue, which has led to residents of White House
Drive — many of whom have parking permits - with nowhere to park
outside their homes, let alone the surrounding area. To alleviate this we
request Harrow Council to change our parking restrictions to Monday —
Sunday, 10-11am and 3pm -4pm.

To further ease the pressure on parking, we request Harrow Council to
provide two additional permit bays, one to each existing end (outside
nos 1 and nos 15 maisonettes) and remaining single yellow lines
(outside nos 1 and 15 maisonettes), to be converted to double
yellow lines) .”

The request will be added to the list of requests to be presented to the
panel in February 2018 when the annual parking management report is
considered. As members are aware all of the requests for parking
schemes received during the year or already on the list will be assessed
against standard assessment factors agreed by TARSAP. The schemes
will be ranked in order of priority and a suggested programme of
schemes presented to the panel for their consideration and prioritisation.
The priority for a scheme in White House Drive can then be reviewed.

Petition 6 — Lorne Road, Wealdstone — request to be included in CPZ
zone J

A petition containing 73 signatures was received by the council in
October 2017. The petition states:

“Objection to proposed cut off point of new proposed resident
parking J zone at the junction of Grant Road / Lorne Road and
objection to the strict J zone times due to the implementations it will
cause for parking in Lorne Road”.

As residents of Lorne Road (south of Lockett Road) numbers 2-44 and 1-
41, we agree to appeal the proposed parking zone changes.

Current (CA) Zone
We had lobbied for years for Lorne Road to be included in parking zone
(CA) to par with our adjacent roads (Aberdeen Rd, Sterling Road, Grant

Road and Lockett Road). Finally, the council realised our difficulties and
included us in the CA parking zone.

17



2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

Even now we do not have adequate parking space for our residence in
the southern part of Lorne Road. Due to this, residents have to look for
parking spaces in the surrounding area not to mention the argument that
the residents suffer from. Due to the new time restrictions in the J zone,
neither CA zone residents nor those visiting the whole of Harrow can park
there. This change would make Lorne Road a dumping ground for visitors
and residents of the adjacent roads.

Our Request:

Considering the issues mentioned above could you please also
include Lorne Road in the zone J. If this is not achievable, please
extend the CA zone time restrictions to par with the J zone.

This scheme is a part of the approved 2017/18 parking management
schemes programme and was recently subject to statutory consultation..

All comments/ representations/ objections / petitions will be considered
along with all other representations regarding the CPZ proposals. These
will be discussed with local Councillors and the Portfolio Holder for
Environment before a final decision is made on which parking controls
will be taken forward and implemented.

Petition 7 — Radcliffe Road, Wealdstone — objection to CPZ

A petition containing 15 signatures from the northern section of Radcliffe
Road was received by the council in October 2017. The petition states:

“We the undersigned object to the introduction of controlled parking in our
street.”

This scheme is a part of the approved 2017/18 parking management
schemes programme and was recently subject to statutory consultation.

All comments/ representations/ objections / petitions will be considered
along with all other representations regarding the scheme proposals.
These will be discussed with local Councillors and the Portfolio Holder for
Environment before a final decision is made on which parking controls
will be taken forward and implemented.

Petition 8 — Howberry Road, Canons Park — objection to double
yellow lines

A petition containing 102 signatures was received by the council in
October 2017. The petition states:

“Further to your notice of the proposed double yellow lines on one side of

Howberry Road we the below signed object to these changes in our part
of Howberry Road”

18



2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

It is proposed to upgrade the existing single yellow line (Mon - Fri, 2pm -
3pm) to double yellow lines (“at any time”) across one side of Howberry
Road. This is to allow emergency service and large vehicles to pass
unobstructed and to address congestion issues particularly when there
are events at Wembley Stadium as visitors using the nearby Canons
Park train station use this road to park. The measures are proposed
following a petition received earlier this year by concerned residents of
Howberry Road.

All comments/ representations/ objections / petitions will be considered
along with all other representations regarding the double yellow line
proposals for Howberry Road. These and the reasons for proposing the
lines will be discussed with local councillors and the Portfolio Holder for
Environment before a final decision is made as to whether the scheme
proposals are implemented, amended or abandoned.

Petition 9 Byron Road, Warham Road and Locket Road — objection
to CPZ proposals

A petition containing 55 signatures from 45 addresses in Byron Road,
Locket Road and Warham Road was received by the council in October
2017. The petition states:

“We the undersigned hereby formally object to the proposed
implementation of the parking bays at the ‘flanks’ of Byron Road (north of
Locket Road) opposite numbers 235, 237, 239, 241, 243, 245 and
similarly at the ‘flanks’ of Warham Road (north of Locket Road) on the
basis that these areas currently function adequately, being used by family
friends and community caregivers.

We consider that the proposed alterations shall be materially detrimental
to our way of life.

“The residents of Locket Road also object to the creation of further
restricted parking bays in their locale.

“We were not part of the public consultation in January 2017 and yet will
be directly affected.”

This scheme is a part of the approved 2017/18 parking management
schemes programme and was recently subject to statutory consultation.

All comments/ representations/ objections / petitions will be considered
along with all other representations regarding the scheme proposals.
These will be discussed with local Councillors and the Portfolio Holder for
Environment before a final decision is made on which parking controls
will be taken forward and implemented.

Petition 10 - St John Fisher School - 20 mph zone proposals

Woodlands, South Way, Thrush Green and Cambridge Road —
opposed to statutory legal notification

19



2.32

2.33

A petition containing 227 signatures was received by hand on 8™
November 2017 during the legal notification (Statutory consultation)
period regarding a proposed 20 mph zone in the above roads
surrounding St John Fisher School. The petition states:

“We hereby signed below object to the statutory legal notification DP
2017/12. Residents of Woodlands, South Way, Thrush Green and
Cambridge Road. OBJECT to the St John Fisher Catholic Primary School
20 mph scheme in the current format. We, the residents, object to all
speed cushions / humps. We, the residents accept 20 mph speed zone
without speed cushions/ humps.

The objection will be considered along with all other representations
received regarding the scheme proposals. These will be discussed with
the Portfolio Holder for Environment before a final decision is made as to
whether the scheme in its current format will be implemented.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1.

The purpose of this report is to inform the Panel about any new petitions
received since the last meeting. No updates on the progress made with
previous petitions will be reported at future meetings as officers will liaise
with the Chair of TARSAP and the Portfolio Holder directly regarding any
updates.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1.

There are no direct financial implications. Any suggested measures in the
report that require further investigation would be taken forward using
existing resources and funding.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

The petitions raise issues about existing schemes in the traffic and
transportation works programme as well as new areas for investigation.
The officer’s response indicates a suggested way forward in each case.
An equality impact assessment (EqIA) will be carried out in accordance
with the current corporate guidance if members subsequently decide that
officers should develop detailed schemes or proposals to address any of
the concerns raised in the petitions.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1

The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will
contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities:

e Making a difference for the vulnerable

20



e Making a difference for communities
e Making a difference for local businesses
e Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15/11/17

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact:

Barry Philips
Tel: 020 8424 1437, Fax: 020 8424 7662, E-mail: barry.philips@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Previous TARSAP reports
Decision Notices
Public and statutory consultation documents highlighted in the report

21




This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda Item 8
Pages 23 to 146

Traffic And Road Safety
Advisory Panel

th
Date of Meeting: 28" November 2017

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT

Wealdstone Transport Study

Responsible Paul Walker — Corporate Director, Community
Officer:

Exempt: No

Wards affected: Wealdstone, Marlborough

Enclosures: Appendix 1 — Wealdstone Transport Study

( #d/‘/‘détCDUNCIL )

LONDON
23



Section 1 - Summary

This information report is presented to members to provide an update on the
Wealdstone Transport study completed recently and explain the objectives,
outcomes and recommendations.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Background

The Wealdstone area has been identified by the Council and the Mayor of
London as a priority area for regeneration and is designated in the Harrow
Core Strategy and the London Plan as an Opportunity Area. The vision for
the area as described in the Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan and
updated in the draft Regeneration Strategy 2014 — 2026 is to deliver 5,500
new homes, two new schools and around 3,000 additional new jobs. Section
2 of the study sets out the relevant local, regional and national policies.

The redevelopment of a number of key development sites in the area will
change travel patterns and increase travel demand which will have
implications for transport infrastructure in Wealdstone. The three main sites
in the Council’s regeneration programme are Poets corner (existing civic
centre site), Byron Park (leisure centre site) and the new Civic Centre site
(Peel House car park). In order to help unlock the wider development
potential of Wealdstone a transport study was commissioned with the
council’s engaged transport consultant to assess the impact of all known and
committed development on the transport network and to identify
opportunities to enhance the public realm and transport network to support
growth.

Details about the opportunity area, area action plan and site specific
information about development sites in the regeneration programme are in
section 3 of the study (Appendix 1).

The objectives of the study were to:

e Understand the current conditions in the study area for all modes of
transport;

e Determine the change in traffic demand and impact on the highway
network due to committed and known development proposals;

24



2.5

e Facilitate regeneration in the area by identifying opportunities and
developing measures to mitigate the impact of proposed development on
the road network in the study area

Transport issues

A full review of the condition and functionality of the existing transport
network was undertaken and the key transport issues identified in the town
centre area are summarised below:

e The 2011 census data shows that car use is the most popular form of
transport in the three postcode sectors in wealdstone, with 38% travelled
by driving a car or van, and only 11% travelled to work did so by foot or
by bicycle. Levels of car use in the area are higher than both the London
(30%) and North London averages (29%). Walking levels are slightly
above the London average — 10% in Wealdstone compared to 9% in
London, however cycling levels are a mere 1% mode share to work
compared to the 4% London average.

e Wealdstone Ward has the highest level of multiple deprivation in the
borough. Low income is a known risk factor for physical inactivity and
health inequality and is a factor in current transport trends.

e Wealdstone town centre is well connected by public transport, with
several bus routes serving it as well as both rail and underground /
overground services from Harrow and Wealdstone station. Unlike many
other town centres, Harrow and Wealdstone station is close to the town
centre.

e All bus routes, including route 140 which is a key route connecting
Harrow Weald and Heathrow Airport, have identified journey time
reliability issues and points of delay at a number of locations within
Wealdstone town centre. The future expansion of services to facilitate
the increased number of trip from regeneration will exacerbate this
situation.

e The two bus stops in the centre of the High Street are located opposite
each other which cause problems for through traffic as nine bus services
use the stops.

e There is a high demand for on-street parking in Wealdstone town centre,
and this pressure may increase with the new Civic Centre development
at the Peel House car park site and the wider regeneration programme
to build 5,500 homes and create 3,000 new jobs.

25



2.6

2.7

The current cycle provision is disjointed and confusing, which may
discourage people from cycling around the town centre and the cycle
mode share is very low.

The presence of street clutter reduces the effective footway width at
several areas within the town centre, creating pinch points and
congestion, the overall appearance of the public realm is poor
throughout the town centre, a mix of paving materials has been used
which is dated in appearance and in need of renewal. There is a
moderate to high pedestrian footfall between the station and the centre
of the town.

The A409 corridor creates severance between east and west sides of
the town with only a few controlled crossing points, excessive guard
railing is present at several locations, creating convoluted routes for
pedestrians.

The number of recorded pedestrian and cyclist casualties was higher
than the borough average for the period assessed. A high number of
collisions occurred at the A409 High Street / Locket Road junction and
there were clusters of collisions at several junctions within the study
area.

Wealdstone is an identified air quality focus area where NO2 levels in
the vicinity of Harrow and Wealdstone station and the A409 often exceed
the maximum levels allowed.

The review of the existing situation, transport issues and potential
opportunities is in section 4 of the study (Appendix 1).

Urban design issues

An urban design review was also undertaken and a number of issues and
key links in the town have been identified as summarised below:

The existing wider connectivity to and from Wealdstone, particularly for
pedestrians and cyclists, is poor.

It was noted that Harrow Council had attended a UDL design panel in
May 2016 to discuss the Major Scheme bid proposals for Wealdstone
and were encouraged to better define the spaces within the town centre
and how they should be used.

Improving links to Wealdstone will become increasingly important due to
the large number of proposed developments.

26



e A separate scheme, Wealdstone Square (formerly named Trinity
Square) includes a new public space and improved public realm
between the eastern end of Headstone Drive and the High Street.

e Urban design proposals have been developed for the area outside
Harrow & Wealdstone station, to better connect the station with the High

Street.

e Urban design proposals have also been developed to better link
development sites to the High Street, particularly for pedestrians and
cyclists. This includes the Kodak Site, Byron Park (Leisure Centre) and
existing Civic Centre developments.

2.8 The urban design review is in section 5 of the study (Appendix 1).
Design options

2.9 The general approach to improving the town centre public realm and
transport network is to follow a similar model to the Station Road scheme
implemented in Harrow Town Centre. This innovative scheme is featured as
a best practice example in the TFL publication “Better Streets Delivered”.
The scheme prioritises bus, cycle and pedestrian movement and uses
narrower carriageways, wider footways, low height kerbs and less street
furniture to create a pedestrian friendly environment.

2.10 A number of technical stakeholder’s workshops including Council Transport,
Regeneration and Economic Development teams and representatives of
Transport for London was held to identify issues and opportunities and
developed ten scheme options to tackle the issues identified. These are
listed in the table below.

Name Details
1 Do minimum Retain existing traffic management arrangements. Re-
design junctions and links to improve pedestrian and
cycle links and improve the public realm in the town
centre.

2 High Street two-way and Two-way operation restored on the length of the High

Palmerston Road closed Street. Closure of the Palmerston Road arm of the A409
roundabout. Level surfaces outside the station and
from Canning Road to the A409 junction. Improved
junctions, links and public realm as in Option 1.

3 Headstone Drive Two-Way Allow two-way traffic on Headstone Drive and Canning

Road.

Downgrade junction outside the station.

Potential option to close Ellen Webb Drive to traffic.
4 New link to Palmerston Road Create new carriageway link from Ellen Webb Drive to

Palmerston Road through public house development site.
Downgrade junction outside the station.

Potential to close Ellen Webb Drive south of development
site and release land for development.

27




5a The Bridge and High Street Bus and cycle only northbound and southbound on High
(Palmerston Road to A409) bus | Street between Palmerston Road and A409. Servicing on
only High Street to take place off peak. New cycle and
pedestrian link through the public house development site.
5b The Bridge and High Street As Option 5a. Headstone Drive east of Cecil Road to
(Palmerston Road to A409) bus | operate as one-way eastbound with access onto High
only and Headstone Drive one- | Street via Trinity Square. Access to A409 from the west
way would be via Ellen Webb Drive — High Street — Palmerston
Road.
5¢c The Bridge and High Street As Option 5a.
(Palmerston Road to A409) bus | Mason Avenue eastbound only west of Herga Road
only and Masons Avenue (western access).
Eastbound Only

6 High Street bus only Bus and cycle only northbound and southbound on High

(Masons Avenue to A409) Street between Ellen Webb Drive and A409.Servicing on
High Street to take place off peak. Access to A409 from the
west would be via Ellen Webb Drive — The Bridge. All
movement signalised junction at the A409/ The Bridge
junction. New cycle and pedestrian link through the public
house development site. Potential to downgrade
Palmerston Road and routes east- west bus routes along
Palmerston Road with new bus stops.

7 High Street Close High Street to all traffic between Palmerston Road
pedestrianisation and A409.Re-route bus services along Palmerston Road
(Palmerston Road to and A409.Servicing on High Street to take place off
A409) peak.

8 High Street two-way and Allow general traffic to use High Street in both directions.
The Bridge bus / cycle Close The Bridge to general traffic to create a dedicated
only interchange space outside the station.

9 Headstone Drive and Canning | Canning Road and western end of Headstone Drive
Road bus / cycle only restricted to buses and cycles only. Revised route

for east-west buses.

10 LBH Major Scheme bid Buses diverted to enter town via Canning Road, section
of High Street made one way between Canning road
and A409. Canning Road and Palmerston Road made
one way towards High Street. Junction improvements
on A409.

2.11  An appraisal scoring system based on assessing highway operational
performance, pedestrian environment, cycling environment, public transport,
public realm, regeneration and parking was used to review the proposals by
the Council’s transport consultant. The list of options was reduced from 10 to
4 for more detailed modelling work to be undertaken. The options shortlisted
are shaded in the table.

2.12  The design options are in section 7 and the shortlisting of options in section
8 of the study (Appendix 1).

Transport modelling
2.13  Traffic modelling has been undertaken using both strategic and local

modelling techniques to determine the current operation of the highway
network (2016 base year) and predict the future situation (2021, 5 years

28




2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

later) taking account of all changes in traffic from planned development sites
in Wealdstone and background forecast traffic growth Each of the shortlisted
design options has been evaluated with the model to assess the proposed
interventions.

TfL’s strategic West London Highway Assignment Model (WeLHAM) has
been used to determine the future year traffic flows and turning volumes at
key junctions within the study area. The model matrix was adjusted in
accordance with best practice to achieve a better level of correlation
between modelled flows and the base year (2016) observed traffic flows. The
TfL Model Auditing Process (MAP) was used to support the assessment of
the current highway network to inform proposed design options.

Outputs from the 2021 future year WeLHAM model indicated that with no
changes to the infrastructure there will be a marginal reduction in traffic flow
on roads within the study area in the future. Despite the overall increase in
the quantum of development within Wealdstone there is likely to be a
substantial overall reduction in car parking provision within these
developments which will result in traffic growth being limited.

The overall increase in the number of trips generated by the proposed
developments in Wealdstone are forecast to be made predominantly by
sustainable modes of transport (walking, cycling and public transport)
especially for commuting trips.

Each of the shortlisted options was modelled and the key findings were as
follows:

e Option 1 — Results in minimal change to traffic flows across the
Wealdstone town centre road network and has no significant benefits
over the existing situation.

e Option 2 - Allowing traffic to access the High Street southbound
increases flows along the High Street, reduces flows on the A409
George Gange Way and increases flows on Masons Avenue. It is likely
to result in a detrimental impact on the High Street which would generate
more noise, congestion, reduce air quality and limit opportunities for
improved public realm and bus service performance due to vehicle
dominance.

e Option 3 - Results in a significant reassignment of traffic away from
Wealdstone town centre along the High Street and the A409 onto
inappropriate minor residential roads including Byron Road, Cecil Road
and Marlborough Hill. This is due to junctions on the A409 being unable
to accommodate the additional traffic demand arising from the scheme.

29



2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

This would be highly undesirable and cause a significant reduction in the
quality of life for residents living in those streets.

e Option 10 - A moderate increase in traffic flows on the High Street
northbound and Palmerston Road is predicted. The proposed High
Street / Palmerston Road and A409 George Gange Way / Canning Road
junction improvements reduce delay on the High Street northbound,
attracting some traffic from the A409 George Gange Way route.

Option10 (Major Scheme bid) demonstrated the best fit with the mayoral
transport strategy objectives. The scheme accommodates the transport
modal shift changes resulting from regeneration to public transport, walking
and cycling.

New mayoral transport strategy / additional design options

During 2017 a new draft Mayor’s Transport Strategy was published. The key
objective of the strategy was to increase the proportion of travel by
sustainable transport modes to 80% by walking, cycling and public transport
and reducing 3 million car journeys each day by 2041.This is a significant
step change from the previous strategy. The aims of the strategy are:

e Healthy Streets and healthy people
e A good public transport experience
e New homes and jobs

To reflect the Mayor’s revised transport objectives two additional sub-options
of Option 10 were developed with elements of the scheme refined to
optimise the benefits for the town centre and public transport. These were as
follows:

e Option 11A: An offside southbound bus lane on A409 George Gange
Way between the High Street and Canning Road and a modified layout
at A409 George Gange Way / Canning Road junction, with a secondary
southbound stop line before the proposed signalised crossing on A409
George Gange Way.

e Option 11B: Two-way bus operation on the High Street north of Canning
Road, i.e. no rerouting of bus services, and the existing layout at the
junction of A409 George Gange Way with Canning Road.

The appraisal of the shortlisted options and additional options shows that the
best performing options on balance across the appraisal criteria are options
11A and 11B patrticularly in terms of improved journey time performance for
buses.

30



2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

The healthy Streets for London initiative aims to ensure people and their
health are put at the centre of decision making in London. It ultimately aims
to reduce reliance on personal vehicles, in favour of walking, cycling and
using public transport to create a healthy city. The design options were
reviewed against the healthy street indicators and options 10, 11A and 11B
showed more significant benefits.

An important benefit of the healthy streets approach in the Wealdstone area
will be to encourage more physical activity, healthy lifestyles and a
consequent improvement in public health within the community.

The evaluation of the design options is in section 9 and the healthy streets
assessment is in section 10 of the study (Appendix 1).

Recommendations of study

Design option 11A and Option 11B should be taken forward for further
analysis to identify a single preferred option that makes a business case for
improved bus services infrastructure.

There is a strong case for improving sustainable transport networks in
Wealdstone to support a new Liveable Neighbourhood bid for Wealdstone
High Street and the town centre area.

The increased demand to park in Wealdstone area will require a responsive
programme of parking management schemes to mitigate the impact of
development.

The public realm opportunities identified along The Bridge, Headstone Drive
and Peel Road will require a significant funding investment. The Council will
need to undertake a detailed assessment and cost evaluation of each
scheme to assess the funding requirements, funding opportunities and
consider a possible delivery programme.

Next steps

The Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holder and local ward councillors have
been briefed on the findings of the study which has been received positively.
The Council’s regeneration team will now be reviewing the findings of the
study, considering the impact and taking account of this as necessary in the
regeneration programme for Wealdstone.

Since the completion of the transport study a number of the
recommendations have been taken forward.

The transport study findings have been discussed with the TfL bus priority

team and the proposals in design options 11A and 11B have been reviewed
and a site inspection undertaken. TfL have indicated that the proposals merit

31



2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

further investigation and have funded a more detailed study to model the bus
services improvements possible and develop a business case for
consideration. The study is currently in progress and is expected to be
concluded by the end of 2017/18.

In October 2016 a Wealdstone Town Centre scheme was submitted as a
Major Scheme bid to TfL. The scheme was not admitted to the Major
Scheme programme because of the changes in Mayoral priorities. The Major
Schemes Programme has now been replaced by the Liveable
Neighbourhoods Programme which focuses on delivering the healthy streets
agenda. The original bid has been reviewed and the scheme has been
substantially revised to reflect on the key policy drivers set out in the
Liveable Neighbourhoods Programme Guidance and the Draft Mayors
Transport Strategy. A revised scheme the “Wealdstone Sustainable
Neighbourhood Project” was submitted to TfL for consideration in October
2017.

There is a separate report on the agenda for this meeting which gives details
about the Liveable Neighbourhood bid.

The Wealdstone Square project which is funded by the GLA regeneration
fund is nearing the end of the scheme development phase and has been
designed to accord with the outcomes of this transport study and to
complement the Liveable neighbourhood bid. The scheme is likely to be
implemented in 2018/19.

The Panel are requested to note the need to take account of parking
pressures in the Wealdstone area resulting from development and to
prioritise schemes in the area when reviewing schemes to be included in the
annual parking management programme. It is necessary to be responsive to
the changes in parking demand in this area of development intensification.

Further feasibility study work will need to be undertaken on the key links in
the town identified in the urban design review. Funding will need to be
identified to take this forward.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

There is no further information.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1

Taking forward the recommendations of the study will rely on successfully
bidding to TfL and external agencies for funding to develop and implement
the physical changes to the transport infrastructure required.

32



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

An allocation of £50k in 2017/18 has already been approved by TfL to
support further study work to assess options 11A and 11B in the transport
study to evaluate the bus services benefits.

A Liveable neighbourhood bid for Wealdstone has been submitted to TfL in
October this year for funding of £2 million over a three year period from
2018/19 — 2020/21. A decision on the bid is anticipated by December /
January.

The urban design links identified will require further feasibility study work to
be undertaken. Funding still needs to be identified to take forward this study
work.

The total funding approved by the GLA for the Wealdstone Square project is
£850,000 which was awarded over two years 2016/17 and 2017/18.
Approximately £680k of this is allocated to the public realm improvements.
Costs of £87k were spent in 2016/17 and £763k has been carried forward
into 2017/18. It is likely that some of this funding may be carried forward to
2018/19 due to delays with the implementation programme, subject to the
agreement of the GLA.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

A programme of investment was included in the Transport Local
Implementation Plan which was approved by full Council. The LIP was
subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment where schemes were identified
as having no negative impact on any equality groups. Positive impacts of the
programme were demonstrated on some equalities groups, particularly,
women, children and people with mobility difficulties.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1

The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will
contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities:

Making a difference for the vulnerable
Making a difference for communities
Making a difference for local businesses
Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

33



on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15/11/17

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers
Contact:

David Eaglesham - Head of Traffic, Highways & Asset Management
Tel: 020 8424 1500, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E-mail: david.eaglesham@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Local Implementation Plan 2

34




APPENDIX 1

NATKINS

Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

London Borough of Harrow

6 November 2017




Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Notice

This document and its contents have been prepared and are intended solely for London Borough of Harrow’s
information and use in relation to the Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study.

Atkins Limited assumes no responsibility to any other party in respect of or arising out of or in connection with
this document and/or its contents.

This document has 260 pages including the cover.

Document history

Job number: 5147962 Document ref:

Revision |Purpose description Originated Checked Reviewed Authorised |Date

Rev 1.0 Draft for client review LE SK CG SK 16/05/17

Rev 2.0 |Revised following client |LE SK CG SK 16/06/17
comment

Rev 3.0 |Revised following client |LE SK SK 07/07/17
comment

Rev 4.0 |Revised following client |LE SK SK 08/09/17
comment

Rev 5.0 |Revised following client |LE SK CG SK 20/09/17
comment

Rev 6.0 |Final Report LE SK CG SK 06/11/17

Client signoff

Client London Borough of Harrow

Project Wealdstone Town Centre

Document title Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study
Job no. 5147962

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic36£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study

Chapter

1. Introduction

1.1. Background

1.2.  Objectives

1.3.  Structure

2. Policy Context

21. Local Policy and Guidance

2.2. National and Regional Policy and Guidance
3. Area Specific Proposals

3.1. Opportunity Areas

3.2. Development Sites

4, Existing Situation, Issues and Opportunities
4.1.  Traffic Management Arrangements

4.2. Public Transport

4.3.  Cycling Environment

4.4. Pedestrian Environment

4.5. Parking

4.6.  Collision Analysis

4.7. Issues and Opportunities Workshop

4.8.  Air Quality

4.9.  Summary of Issues for Wealdstone Town Centre
5. Urban Design Review

5.1. Issues and Opportunities

5.2. Public Realm Design Strategy

5.3. Public Realm Proposals

5.4. Urban Design London (UDL) Design Surgery
5.5. Urban Design Summary

6. Base Traffic Modelling

6.1.  Survey Data Collection and Analysis

6.2. WeLHAM Base Model Review

6.3.  Base LinSig Modelling

6.4. LinSig Base Modelling Results Summary
6.5. WeLHAM Future Year Base Model

7. Design Options

7.1.  Option Generation

7.2.  Option Generation Review Workshop

8. Shortlisting of Options

8.2.  Shortlisted Options

9. Appraisal of Shortlisted Options

9.1.  Traffic Modelling Results

9.2.  Option Costs

9.3. Appraisal Summary

10. Healthy Streets for London

10.1. Healthy Streets Indicators

10.2. Healthy Streets Assessment

11. Conclusions and Recommendations

Table of contents

Pages

0O OO OO

16
16

19
24
24
25
29
32
37
41
47
53
54
55
55
55
56
59
60

61
62

62
63
66
67
69
69
82

86

93
93

104
104
106
106
107

110

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver337i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study

11.1.  Key Conclusions

11.2. Recommendations

Appendices

Appendix A. Wealdstone Town Centre Development Sites
Appendix B. Traffic Management Plan

Appendix C. Pedestrian Footfall Plans

Appendix D. Parking Data Analysis

Appendix E. Wealdstone CPZ Plan

Appendix F. Urban Design Review

Appendix G. LMAP Stage 2 and 3 Report

Appendix H. WeLHAM Modelling Technical Note

Appendix . Concept Options Plans

Appendix J. Option 10 Proposal

Appendix K. Option Drawings

Appendix L. Option Cost Estimates

Tables

Table 4-1 Bus Routes and Frequencies Serving Wealdstone Town Centre
Table 4-2 Issues for Buses

Table 4-3 Existing Cycle Facilities and Issues

Table 4-4 Pedestrian Crossing Facilities and Issues

Table 4-5 Average and Maximum Car Park Occupancy

Table 4-6 Collision Severity

Table 4-7 Type and Number of Casualties

Table 4-8 Summary of Casualties

Table 4-9 Condition of Road and Light Levels at Time of Collision
Table 6-1 Modelled Degree of Saturation Results — 2016

Table 6-2 Observed Average Maximum and Modelled Maximum Queue Lengths — 2016 (PCUs)
Table 6-3 Two-Way Base 2016 and WeLHAM Do Minimum 2021 Traffic Flows (PCUs)
Table 7-1 Wealdstone Town Centre Feasibility Options

Table 8-1 Appraisal Scoring

Table 9-1 Modelled Degree of Saturation Results — 2021 (AM Peak)
Table 9-2 Modelled Degree of Saturation Results — 2021(PM Peak)
Table 9-3 Modelled Queue Length Results — 2021 (AM Peak)

Table 9-4 Modelled Queue Length Results — 2021 (PM Peak)

Table 9-5 Change in Average Delay per PCU for Bus Routes

Table 9-6 Construction Cost Estimates

Table 9-7 Appraisal of Shortlisted Options

Table 10-1 Healthy Streets Assessment

Figures

Figure 3-1 Heart of Harrow Sub Area Boundaries

Figure 3-2 Harrow and Wealdstone AAP Opportunity Sites

Figure 3-3 Wealdstone Proposed Development Sites

Figure 3-4 Poet's Corner Masterplan

Figure 3-5 New Civic Centre masterplan

Figure 3-6 Byron Park Site masterplan

Figure 4-1 Wealdstone Traffic Management Arrangements

Figure 4-2 HGV Restrictions in Wealdstone

Figure 4-3 Bus services in Wealdstone Town Centre

Figure 4-4 Map of Existing and Proposed Cycle Infrastructure in Wealdstone Town Centre

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic38£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

110
111

113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125

16
17
19
21
22
23
24
25
27
30



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 4-5 Harrow's Aspirational Strategic Cycle Network (Cycling Strategy for Harrow 2015-2018) 32
Figure 4-6 Pinch Points on the High Street 34
Figure 4-7 Mix of Paving Materials in Wealdstone 34
Figure 4-8 Map of the location of the parking surveys 37
Figure 4-9 CPZs in Wealdstone 40
Figure 4-10  Collision Locations and Severity 43
Figure 4-11  Collisions During Hours of Darkness 45
Figure 4-12  Collision Occurrence by Month 46
Figure 4-13  Collision Occurrence by Day 46
Figure 4-14  Outside Harrow and Wealdstone Station 48
Figure 4-15  A409 George Gange Way 49
Figure 4-16  Wealdstone High Street 50
Figure 4-17  Palmerston Road 51
Figure 4-18 Headstone Drive 52
Figure 4-19  Air Quality in Wealdstone 53
Figure 5-1 Strategic Links to Wealdstone 56
Figure 5-2 Urban Design Proposals - The Bridge 57
Figure 5-3 Station Square Proposals 58
Figure 5-4 Urban Design Proposals - Wealdstone Square to Kodak Site 58
Figure 5-5 Urban Design Proposals - High Street to Byron Park (Leisure Centre) 59
Figure 6-1 Wealdstone Study Area with Development Sites 61
Figure 6-2 WeLHAM Modelling Study Area 63
Figure 6-3 Signalised Junctions in the LinSig Model Network 64
Figure 7-1 Option 1 - Do Minimum 71
Figure 7-2 Option 2 — High Street Two-Way and Palmerston Road Closed 72
Figure 7-3 Option 3 — Headstone Drive Two-Way 73
Figure 7-4 Option 4 — New Link to Palmerston Road 74
Figure 7-5 Option 5a — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only 75
Figure 7-6 Option 5b — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only and Headstone
Drive one-way 76
Figure 7-7 Option 5¢ — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only and Masons
Avenue Eastbound Only 77
Figure 7-8 Option 6 — High Street Bus Only (Masons Avenue to A409) 78
Figure 7-9 Option 7 — High Street Pedestrianisation (Palmerston Road to A409) 79
Figure 7-10  Option 8 — High Street Two-Way and The Bridge Bus / Cycle Only 80
Figure 7-11  Option 9 — Headstone Drive and Canning Road Bus / Cycle Only 81
Figure 7-12  Wealdstone Square Scheme Design 83
Figure 7-13  LBH Major Scheme Proposed Design 84
Figure 7-14  Harrow Station Road Major Scheme 85
Figure 8-1 Wealdstone Town Centre Concept Options Evaluation Framework 88
Figure 8-2 Option 1 Proposal 90
Figure 8-3 Option 2 Proposal 90
Figure 8-4 Option 3 Proposal 91
Figure 8-5 LBH Major Scheme (Option 10) Proposal 91
Figure 9-1 Option 2 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) AM Peak 2021 93
Figure 9-2 Option 2 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) PM Peak 2021 94
Figure 9-3 Option 3 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) AM Peak 2021 95
Figure 9-4 Option 3 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) PM Peak 2021 95
Figure 9-5 Option 10 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) AM Peak 2021 96
Figure 9-6 Option 10 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) PM Peak 2021 96
Figure 9-7 Option 11A Proposal 99
Figure 9-8 Option 11B Proposal 100
Figure 10-1  Healthy Streets Indicators 106

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver3395.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

1. Introduction

Atkins in conjunction with Mark Projects have been commissioned by the London Borough of Harrow (LBH) to
undertake a Transport Study for Wealdstone town centre, which aims to enhance the economic vitality of the
town centre by enabling and supporting proposed developments through the provision of enhanced
infrastructure for all modes of transport as well as public realm improvements.

1.1. Background

Wealdstone is located approximately in the centre of the London Borough of Harrow, and has good
accessibility to public transport provided by Harrow and Wealdstone station and many bus routes. The A409
George Gange Way is a single carriageway road and is the main north / south route through Wealdstone.
Wealdstone town centre and the nearby Harrow town centre, have been collectively named as the ‘Heart of
Harrow’ by LBH in the 2013 Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan (H&W AAP). This area has been
identified by the Council and the Mayor of London as a priority area for regeneration and is designated in the
Harrow Core Strategy and the London Plan (2011) as an Opportunity Area. The vision for the area as
described originally in the H&W AAP (Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan, July 2013) and updated in
the draft Regeneration Strategy 2014 — 2026 is to deliver 5,500 new homes, two new schools and around
3,000 additional new jobs.

To this end, LBH are keen to unlock the development potential of Wealdstone by seeking investment for the
development of key opportunity sites identified in the H&W AAP and to enhance the public realm to ensure the
continued vitality of the Wealdstone and Harrow town centres. A number of issues such as busy roads, traffic
congestion, poor cycle provision, limited routes and poor destination signage for pedestrians and poor public
realm have been identified as key challenges to unlocking development potential. The ‘ability to manage traffic
movements including altering vehicle routings, managing the flow of people and vehicles are considered
necessary to sustain the vitality of the town centre’ (Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan, July 2013).

The output from this study documents the processes (e.g. scoping, assessments, stakeholder engagement)
which were undertaken during the study to provide an evidence base in terms of detailed traffic assessments
and feasibility design proposals to support the economic viability and sustainability goals of Wealdstone Town
Centre area.

1.2.  Objectives

The redevelopment of these sites will change travel patterns and increase travel demand which will have
implications for transport infrastructure in Wealdstone. The proposed redevelopments also offer the
opportunity to achieve a shift to more sustainable travel, such as public transport, walking and cycling, through
complimentary infrastructure provision that promotes these modes of transport over the use of the private car.
This is crucial to delivering sustainable regeneration of Wealdstone Town Centre, given that the road network
is already highly congested. The objectives of the study are as follows:

e Understand the current conditions in the study area for all modes of transport;
e Determine the change in traffic demand and impact on the highway network due to committed and
known development proposals;
e Facilitate regeneration in the area by identifying opportunities and developing measures to:
- Mitigate the impact of proposed development on the road network in the study area
- Improve pedestrian and cycle access to the town centre, particularly east-west connections. This
should include links from confirmed development sites;
- Enhance the public realm in the study area, particularly within and around the core retail areas
and the station;
- Enhance connections to public transport and maintain journey times for buses; and
e As part of the development of measures investigate ways to reduce street clutter and contribute to
improved air quality.

1.3. Structure

This report is structured as follows:

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic40£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 6



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Section 2 provides the policy context relevant to this study;

e Section 3 considers the proposed developments within the town centre and the surrounding areas;
Section 4 outlines the existing situation and key issues in the study area, including an initial collision
analysis;

Section 5 summarises the urban design review undertaken;

Section 6 details the base traffic modelling;

Section 7 outlines design options;

Section 8 describes the shortlisting of options;

Section 9 provides an appraisal of the shortlisted options;

e Section 10 evaluates the shortlist options against TfL's Healthy Streets objectives; and

e Section 11 provides the conclusions and recommendations of the study

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers41i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 7



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

2. Policy Context

The following section demonstrates how the Wealdstone town centre transport study is aligned with local,
regional and national policies and guidance.

2.1. Local Policy and Guidance

2.1.1. Harrow Core Strategy (2012)

The Harrow Core Strategy, adopted in February 2012, sets out Harrow's strategic approach to managing
growth and development to 2026. The Harrow Core Strategy is consistent with national and regional policy,
including the London Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

The overall objectives of the Harrow Core Strategy area:

e To protect the historical and environmental features that contribute to Harrow’s character and
distinctiveness as a place to live, work and visit;

e Enhance the infrastructure, environment and other resources which make Harrow a desirable place to
live, work and visit; by improving sustainable transport capacity, delivering a mix of homes and
maintaining open space;

e Manage the borough’s contribution to climate change and increase resilience to flooding to promote
more sustainable patterns of land use and reduce reliance on private vehicles; and

e Adapt to population and demographic changes to meet people’s needs and quality of life by securing
high quality and accessible residential development and promoting walking and cycling.

Area objectives specific to Harrow and Wealdstone (Core Policy 2):

o Regenerate Wealdstone district centre, as redeveloping industrial estates contributes to long term
growth and vitality;

Improve the amenity and connectivity of Station Road;

Strengthen the role of Harrow town centre;

Increase the borough’s ‘visibility’ to secure investment;

Accommodate a minimum of 2,800 new homes and 3,000 new jobs;

Improve accessibility to parks and open spaces by walking and cycling; and

Ensure public transport links to employment opportunities outside the area.

The schemes developed as part of the Wealdstone town centre study aim to achieve these objectives by
facilitating the regeneration of the town centre and improving the walking and cycling environment for all users
in the local area. The scheme will also aim to achieve a consistent flow of traffic through the study area,
maintaining the current level of throughput of vehicles. This transport study aligns with the strategic objectives
and policies outlined in the Harrow Core Strategy as it aims to support the regeneration of Wealdstone town
centre by enhancing sustainable transport capacity.

2.1.2. Local Development Framework — Harrow and Wealdstone Area
Action Plan (2013)

The Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan (H&W AAP), adopted in July 2013, develops the Harrow Core

Strategy and aims to provide an overarching framework for the development and revitalisation of the “Heart of

Harrow” areas, including Harrow and Wealdstone town centres, identified by the Council and the Mayor of
London as a priority area for regeneration.

The aims of the AAP are to:

e Guide development and investment decisions in the Heart of Harrow over the next 15 years;

e Provide clarity and increased certainty about how places and strategic sites are to develop and
change;

e Deliver the agreed vision for the area through policies and site allocations aimed at managing the
distribution, scale, form and function of development across the Heart of Harrow;

e |dentify and secure the coordinated delivery of social and physical infrastructure improvements;

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic42£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 8



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Determine the appropriate phasing of development, taking into account the need to ensure
regeneration occurs across the whole area, including sites with greater constraints than others; and
e Assess and direct decisions on planning applications.

The general principles set out for Wealdstone in the AAP, relevant to this study, include:

AAP 3: Wealdstone

e Strengthen the identity of Wealdstone as a district centre and improve the vibrancy of the high street;

e New development within the three sub areas of Wealdstone is expected to contribute to a programme
of urban realm enhancements based around Harrow and Wealdstone station;

e Proposals should contribute to the enhancement of the urban realm and visual amenity of the district
centre as a key transport gateway into the Heart of Harrow; and

e Improve pedestrian and cyclist connections across and from the Wealdstone west sub area to
Wealdstone district centre and beyond.

AAP 7: Creating a New Public Realm
e New areas of public realm designed to accommodate and strengthen pedestrian and cyclist linkages
to surrounding areas;
e Reduction in street clutter and the rationalisation of existing street furniture wherever possible; and
e Priority will be given to the improvement of east-west connections in particular, linking the Kodak
(Harrow View) development site in the west with Harrow Leisure Centre in the east.

AAP13: Housing within the Heart of Harrow
e Provision of a minimum of 2,800 net new homes by 2026; and
e Aligning with the London Plan tenure split — 60% affordable housing, 40% intermediate.

AAP19: Transport, Parking and Access within the Heart of Harrow
e All major development proposals should prioritise access by sustainable modes of transport —
provision of safe and attractive walking routes to nearby facilities and to public transport;
e Provide safe and attractive routes that are easy to navigate and connect with existing walkways and
link cycle routes to create a network; and
e Developments in Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs) are encouraged to be car-free.

The AAP also sets out the following sub-area and site specific guidance:

e Improvements to pedestrian and cyclist facilities under the railway line, linking Wealdstone town centre
and the proposed development of the Kodak site;

e The Kodak redevelopment site target outputs are 1,230 jobs and 985 homes;

e The ColArt site redevelopment target outputs are 190 jobs and 195 houses;

e Public realm improvements at Harrow and Wealdstone station to safely connect pedestrians and
cyclists to the High Street; and

e De-clutter George Gange Way to remove guard railings and provide new cycle crossing facilities.

The sub-area specific guidance recognises several development sites within Wealdstone town centre, but also
notes that these provide an opportunity to enhance the public realm in the town centre and improve provisions
for walkers and cyclists. This transport study aligns with the strategic objectives and policies outlined in the
H&W AAP as it aims to mitigate increases in traffic due to developments, whilst improving the public realm and
vitality of Wealdstone town centre.

2.1.3. Harrow Transport Local Implementation Plan 2011 /12 — 2013/ 14

The Harrow Transport Local Implementation Plan (LIP) sets out how the borough proposes to implement the
Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy. It is a statutory document, produced under Section 145 of the Greater
London Authority Act, 1999, with this version produced in response to the Mayor's Transport Strategy
published in April 2010.

A particular challenge in Harrow, highlighted by the Mayor's Transport Strategy, is supporting sustainable

population and employment growth. Harrow’s population will continue to rise over the next decade, with 2500
new homes to be delivered in the Harrow and Wealdstone Intensification Area by 2026. As car ownership is

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers43i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 9



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

already high, promoting sustainable transport use will become increasingly important, and the borough will
look to address the low levels of cycling in the borough compared with other parts of London.

The following actions have been identified in relation to the Mayor’s goal of supporting economic development
and population growth relevant in Wealdstone:

e Work with TfL to improve bus service reliability and to improve orbital bus links between the town
centres and major employment locations and to other key destinations within Harrow and neighbouring
boroughs;

e Ensure the vitality of town centres are supported through good transport access via all modes of
transport, prioritising sustainable modes of transport;

e Improve transport connectivity within the Intensification Area between Harrow town centre and
Wealdstone including the provision of in-station cycle parking;

e Improve the environment for pedestrians and cyclists in the whole borough and particularly within the
Harrow Intensification Area;

e Monitor and review the provision and operation of CPZs in all areas of the borough experiencing on-
street parking stress;

e Recognising that road transport will remain the basis for freight movement, delivery and servicing
provision within Harrow, the Council will promote and maintain local area lorry bans together with
supporting initiatives to move freight by non-road transport modes;

e Support the local economy by promoting short stay on-street parking and by discouraging long-stay
parking;

e Attempt to improve air quality and reduce CO2 emissions in Harrow, focused on reducing emissions
from road traffic;

e When considering housing developments, the council will encourage developers to explore the
potential for schemes to provide access to cars without individual ownership, perhaps linked to
inducements to use other modes; and

e Ensure convenient access for walking, cycling and public transport be required in the design and layout
of new development.

This study will directly align with the priorities set out within the Harrow Transport LIP, to provide sufficient
transport for a growing population within the borough, whilst also looking to regenerate the town centre and
promote economic growth. Due to the number of developments proposed for Wealdstone and the surrounding
area, it will be essential to ensure that the existing road network will cope with additional trips, with sustainable
transport promoted and enhanced to increase the numbers of walkers and cyclists, and those using public
transport, within the borough.

Key themes to achieving Harrow’s objectives, as set out in the LIP, include upgrading public transport and
reviewing gaps in the provision of local bus services, using green links and completing London Cycle Network
routes to improve connectivity and safety for cyclists and improving orbital transport, such as connecting to
Crossrail and High Speed 2 (HS2) rail lines. Actions to address the objectives on air quality include restrictions
on heavy goods vehicles and increasing the number of trees in both major and neighbourhood schemes.

2.1.4. Harrow Regeneration Strategy 2014-2026 (November 2014)

The Harrow Regeneration Strategy, adopted in November 2014, aims to deliver three core objectives of place,
community and business by delivering the H&W AAP, investing £1.75bn in the Heart of Harrow Opportunity
Area. The aim is to provide 5,500 new homes, two new schools and 3,000 new jobs. The following goals have
been set out by the Harrow Regeneration Strategy:

Meet the demands of a growing population;

Build on skills base to support sustainable business growth;

Deliver more jobs and homes to meet targets agreed with the Mayor;

Increase accessibility to an increasing customer base;

Provide an environment which promotes physical activity and healthy living; and
Achieve a step change in the quality of design and development.

Strategic sites in the pipeline identified by the Regeneration Strategy include:

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic44l) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 10



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Redevelopment of the Kodak Site (Harrow View) providing 985 residential dwellings, 1,230 jobs, 220
student dwellings, senior living facilities, a three-form entry primary school and leisure and community
centre facilities; and

e Redevelopment of the ColArt site with target outputs of 195 houses and 190 jobs.

The redevelopment of the Kodak and ColArt sites alone will provide the biggest opportunity to regenerate
Wealdstone district centre. In addition to providing new houses and services, the Regeneration Strategy aims
to increase accessibility to the town centre for a growing number of residents, improve the public realm to
encourage users to the town centre, and provide an environment that encouragers users to walk and cycle.

2.1.5. Harrow Cycling Strategy 2015 — 2018

According to the Mayor’s Vision for Cycling, two-thirds of London’s cycling potential exists in outer London
where around half of all car trips are less than 2km and public transport provision is less comprehensive than
central London. The Harrow Cycling Strategy recognises the role of cycling as both a sustainable transport
mode and leisure activity, and the Council has highlighted a need for good quality and safe infrastructure in
the borough. The pressures driving the strategy include a growing population, growth in demand for motorised
travel and health and wellbeing. The council aims to achieve a 5% modal share for cycling by 2026, as outlined
in the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.

Harrow’s Cycling Strategy recognises that, as of December 2014, the borough has 41km of on-road cycle
routes, 4.8km of off-road and 6.5km of Greenway cycle routes. The Strategy recognises the need in the
borough to provide a more comprehensive cycle network, providing safe facilities for entire journeys. This is
especially important as the most frequent answer in a TfL survey for non-cyclists not wanting to take up cycling
was due to concerns for personal safety.

A focus for the Wealdstone Transport Study will be to enhance the cycling network, as the current provision
features incomplete and disjointed routes, many of which are on-carriageway and perceived as unsafe by
potential users. Previous focus within the borough has been on road sections with safety risks and where it is
low cost to install schemes, which has resulted in sections of the borough having breaks in cycling
infrastructure, therefore not enabling continuous cycling routes.

The Harrow Cycling Strategy aims to overcome the barriers to cycling and increase the number of cyclists by
achieving the following:

Creating a safer and better environment that supports cycling as an equal mode of transport;
Promote cycling as a convenient, secure, inclusive and enjoyable activity;

Elevating cycling as an important sustainable mode of travel in the borough; and

Facilitating and supporting bicycle ownership / access.

The strategies to overcome barriers to cycling, particularly relevant to Wealdstone town centre include
improving permeability across the cycle network through improved routes and crossings, utilise development
planning powers to create cycle routes through new developments, introduce traffic restraint measures and
utilising funding to enhance cycling provision.

2.1.6. Harrow Air Quality Action Plan (Review and Assessment, April 2010)
The LBH declared the whole borough as an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) in 2002, as a review and
assessment of the air quality predicted that pollutants PM1os (small particles) and NO2z (Nitrogen Dioxide) were
likely to exceed nationally set objectives. The Air Quality Action Plan contains new policies to improve air
quality in Harrow, linked to the Local Plan and taking the Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy into account.

As road traffic is the main source of NO2and a major source of fine particle emissions within the borough, most
of the measures within the Action Plan relate to attempting to reduce the emissions from this source. The
following policy categories are relevant to the transport study for Wealdstone:

Reducing road traffic — discouraging non-essential journeys by road
Promoting alternative modes of transport to the private car;
Encouraging walking as a means of travel;

Encouraging cycling as a means of travel; and

Encourage development which does not impact upon air quality.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers45i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 11



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The most notable policies from the Air Quality Action Plan relevant to the transport study include reallocating
road space for buses, walkers and cyclists, supporting initiatives to move freight by non-transport modes,
increase efficiency in the use of road space by using new technology and signal control and managing the
highway in the context of a broader urban design strategy.

By aligning this study with the policies recognised within the Action Plan, the study can mitigate against future
population and traffic growth that is associated with increasing air pollution in London. This is particularly
important in Wealdstone as it has been highlighted as an Air Quality Focus Area by the Mayor of London,
meaning efforts should be made to reduce congestion, and therefore pollution, within the town centre.

2.2.  National and Regional Policy and Guidance

The H&W AAP aligns with several national and regional policies and guidance, including:

2.2.1. The National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect in March 2012 and is intended as a
framework for the development of local and neighbourhood plans.

The NPPF emphasises that the purpose of planning is to help achieve sustainable development, resulting in
positive growth and economic, environmental and social progress. Proposed development that accords with
an up-to-date Local Plan should be approved, and any proposed development that conflicts should be refused
unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.

The NPPF sets out twelve core land-use planning principles, and the relevant principles specific to the
development of Wealdstone town centre are as follows:
e Proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the homes, business and
industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the country needs;
e Encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously developed (brownfield
land), provided it is not of high environmental value;
e Actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of public transport, walking and
cycling, and focus significant development in locations which are or can be made sustainable;
e Take account of the different roles and character of different areas, promoting the vitality of our main
urban areas; and
e Promote mixed use developments and encourage multiple benefits from the use of land in urban and
rural areas.

The NPPF suggests that policies should promote competitive town centre environments and set out plans for
management and growth in these areas. The following should be considered by local planning authorities in
relation to town centres:
e Recognise town centres as the heart of their communities and pursue policies that support their
viability and vitality;
e Promote competitive town centres that provide customer choice and a diverse retail offer and which
reflect the individuality of town centres;
o Ensure markets remain attractive and competitive by enhancing existing markets and creating new
ones;
e Allocate a range of suitable sites to meet the scale and type of mixed use development within the town
centre; and
e Recognise that residential development can play an important role in ensuring the vitality of centres
and set out policies to encourage residential development on appropriate sites.

The NPPF guidance has been used to inform the regional and local policies developed by the Mayor of London
and the London Borough of Harrow. This transport study will align with the NPPF’s core principle of sustainable
development by assessing the transport impacts of new developments and providing improvements to the
pedestrian and cycling infrastructure across Wealdstone town centre. The study will align with the NPPF policy
to ensure the vitality of town centres, enhancing Wealdstone as a competitive town centre, providing a diverse
retail offer and ensuring edge of centre sites are well connected to the town centre, therefore encouraging
economic growth in Wealdstone.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic46£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 12



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

2.2.2. The London Plan (2015)

The London Plan, as prepared by the Mayor of London, is the overall strategic plan for London, setting out a
full integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the development of the capital
between 2011 and 2031. The objectives of the policies of the plan are translated into more local planning policy
by the boroughs. The development plans for the borough must conform to the policies within the London Plan,
which must conform to national government policies.

The Mayor’s vision aims to ensure that London is:

A city that meets the needs of economic and population growth;

An internationally competitive and successful city;

A city of diverse, strong, secure and accessible neighbourhoods;

A city that delights the senses;

A world leader in improving the environment; and

Easy, safe and convenient to access jobs, opportunities and facilities.

ook wNn =~

Key policies from the London Plan relating to the Wealdstone town centre scheme are as follows:

Policy 2.15 Town Centres:
e Town centres should provide the main focus beyond the Central Activities Zone (CAZ) for commercial
development and intensification, including residential development; and
e Development proposals should sustain and enhance the vitality and viability of the centre.

By improving the street scene and attractiveness of using the town centre the proposed scheme should
help to achieve this objective by attracting inward investment in Wealdstone.

Policy 6.7 Better Streets and Surface Transport: The Mayor will work with TfL and boroughs to
implement London-wide improvements to the quality of bus, bus transit and tram services and pleasant
walking routes to bus stops. The proposed scheme will aim to improve the connectivity to bus services in
Wealdstone, by improving the public realm in the town centre, in addition to scheme proposals that offer
benefits to bus journey times.

Policy 6.9 Cycling: The mayor will work with all relevant partners to bring about a significant increase in
cycling in London, so this accounts for at least 5% modal share by 2026. The H&W AAP identifies a need
to improve the cycling network in Wealdstone, particularly to improve east-west connections.

Policy 6.10 Walking: The mayor will work with all relevant partners to bring about a significant increase
in walking in London, by emphasising the quality of the pedestrian and street environment, including the
use of shared space principles. The scheme will promote improved connections for pedestrians to / from
and within the town centre, particularly aiming to provide connections from the proposed Kodak
development in the west with Wealdstone town centre, Harrow and Wealdstone station, Station Road to
the south and Harrow leisure centre in the east.

Policy 6.11 Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion: Local Implementation Plans (LIPs)
should take a strategic approach to smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion through implementations
and recommendations of the Road Task Force report. An integrated package of measures should promote
local services to reduce the need to travel, improve the extent and quality of the pedestrian and cycling
network and improving the extent and quality of public transport. Considerations will be made to mitigate
issues arising from additional transport on the network in Wealdstone due to new developments, with traffic
modelling used to predict future flows and impacts of proposed schemes on the highway network. Any
proposed development site will have an associated Transport Assessment (TA) that will assess the impact
of the development on the highway network and proposals for improved walking and cycling connections.

Policy 7.5 Public Realm: London’s public spaces should be secure, accessible, inclusive, connected,
easy to understand and maintain, relate to local context, and incorporate the highest quality design
landscaping, planting, street furniture and surfaces. Development should make the public realm
comprehensive at a human scale using gateways, focal points and landmarks. The proposals for
Wealdstone town centre will be developed in context of the surrounding built landscape, creating a change
in perception of the environment which should influence driver behaviour, placing a greater emphasis on
the movement of non-motorised users.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers47i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 13



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

2.2.3. The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2010)

The Mayor’'s Transport Strategy (MTS) is the principal policy tool through which the Mayor exercises his
responsibility for the planning, management and development of transport in London. The MTS takes into
account the London Plan and the Mayor’s Economic Development Strategy.

The MTS sets out the following vision for London’s transport system:

“London’s transport system should excel among those of global cities, providing access to opportunities for all
its people and enterprises, achieving the highest environmental standards and leading the world in its approach
to tackling urban transport challenges of the 21st century.”

Key proposals from the MTS relevant to the Wealdstone Town Centre scheme are:

e Proposal 23: The Mayor, through TfL, and working with the London boroughs and other stakeholders,
will keep the development of the bus network under regular review, including reviews of the strategic
priorities underlying the process approximately every five years, to ensure it caters for growth in
population and employment, while maintaining ease of use, attractive frequencies and adequate
capacity, reliable services, good coverage and good interchange with other modes. All proposals for
change will be appraised to ensure that they deliver good value for money and that the funds available
are being invested in optimum service improvements.

e Proposal 30: The Mayor, through TfL, and working with the London boroughs, will introduce measures
to smooth traffic flow to manage congestion for all people and freight movements to maximise
efficiency of the road network;

e Proposal 54: The Mayor, through TfL, and working with the London boroughs, will deliver
improvements to cycling infrastructure and training to support the cycling revolution;

e Proposal 60: The Mayor, through TfL, and working with the London boroughs, will improve the walking
experience by enhancing the urban realm and taking focused action to ensure safe, comfortable and
attractive walking conditions;

e Proposal 83: The Mayor, through TfL, and working with the London boroughs and other stakeholders,
will use the principles of ‘better streets’ to seek to improve town centres, in particular: removing clutter
and improving the layout and design of streets; enhancing and protecting the built and historic
environment; increasing the permeability of streets; and creating clear and easily understandable
routes and spaces to make it easier for cyclists, pedestrians and disabled people to get about.

The MTS, in conjunction with the London Plan, has informed the proposals in the H&W AAP with aims to
ensure that new developments do not have an adverse effect on the road network in Wealdstone, and
improvements are made to the connectivity of walking and cycling routes in the town centre to encourage
travel by sustainable modes.

2.2.4. Cleaning the air: The Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy (December 2010)

In line with the Government’s National Air Quality Strategy, the Mayor of London has a legal responsibility to
prepare and review an Air Quality Strategy for the Greater London Area. The overall aim of the Strategy is to
reduce air pollution in London and thereby improve the health of Londoners. In doing this, London will also
achieve compliance with nationally prescribed air quality standards and objectives. The Mayor’s vision for air
quality is to protect the health of Londoners and enhance their quality of life by improving the quality of air in
London, which will:

e Make London are more pleasant place to live and work in;

e Reduce the burden on health services in the capital;

e Enhance London’s reputation as a green city — making it more attractive to tourists and businesses;
and

e Make London cleaner whilst safeguarding its biodiversity.

2.2.4.1. London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory (LAEI) 2013 Air Quality Focus Areas
(updated December 2016)

Across London, there are 187 Air Quality Focus Areas, which are locations that exceed the EU annual limit
value for NO2in addition to being locations with high human exposure. They are areas where the GLA believe
air quality issues are the most acute.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic48£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 14



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The LAEI identifies five Air Quality Focus areas within the LBH, one of which is in Wealdstone, particularly the
area outside Harrow and Wealdstone station and the A409 George Gange Way. As pollution levels have
already been recognised as exceeding the EU annual limit in Wealdstone, and with traffic as the major
contributory factor, it is imperative that this transport study reduces congestion and encourages sustainable
methods of transport in Wealdstone town centre.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers49i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 15



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

3. Area Specific Proposals

A key objective of the H&W AAP is to take advantage of opportunity sites for re-development within the borough
to meet the housing and job provision targets for the area. The transport study must take into account these
development opportunities and consider their transport impact. Transport infrastructure interventions will need
to be identified that accommodate the forecast changes in travel demand, promote a shift to more sustainable
modes of travel and support regeneration by enhancing the public realm and vitality of Wealdstone town centre.

3.1. Opportunity Areas

The H&W AAP identifies seven sub-areas within the Heart of Harrow with 22 opportunity sites, as identified in
Figure 3-2. Several of these proposals are located within the vicinity of Wealdstone Town Centre and will
potentially impact the current transport facilities. The sub-areas and opportunity sites are as follows and shown
on Figure 3-1:

e Wealdstone West — the sub area comprises historic employment and industrial uses, with opportunity
sites at Headstone Manor and environs, Kodak and Zoom Leisure, Teachers Centre and ColArt.;

e \Wealdstone Central — covers Wealdstone town centre and Harrow and Wealdstone station, with
identified opportunity sites at the Wealdstone infills and Palmerston Road / George Gange Way;

e \Wealdstone East — comprising Harrow Leisure Centre, Civic Amenity and Council Depot;

e Station Road - running north south between Harrow and Wealdstone town centres, currently
dominated by heavy vehicle movements. Opportunity sites identified here include the Civic Centre,
High Road Opportunity Area, Tesco, Greenhill Way car park north and Greenhill Way car park; and

e Harrow Town Centre — currently comprises the bulk of Harrow’s retail and office stock, the bus station
and Harrow-on-the-Hill station. Opportunity sites in the AAP are Bradstowe House and College Road
west; Havelock Place, 19 to 51 College Road, Harrow-on-the-Hill car park west, Lowlands Recreation
Ground and Harrow-on-the-Hill car park east, Lyon Road and Gayton Road.

Figure 3-1 Heart of Harrow Sub Area Boundaries

Harrow Towmn Centre West
Harrow Town Centre
Harrow Town Centre East
Station Road

Wealdstone Central

Wealdstons West

Wealdstone East

Opportunity Sites
—_— Interfication Area boundary

Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan. 2013

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic5OC) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 16



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 3-2 Harrow and Wealdstone AAP Opportunity Sites

”»”~'/A'I"4

g 0T

=

o g ¥

.“-w

k. | St 3L

Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan. 2013 Jidis
Key Opportunity Sites

— WtensfCaton Area boundary 01 Meadsione Manor 12 Groenhll Way North

=i 02 Koduh snd Zoom Lisere 13 Grwenhll Wary Car Park

'./{ Cppentumity Saes 03 Toachers Contre 14 Braditome Houe

¥ 04 ColAnt 15 College Road Weat
05 Vealdstone infils 16 Mook Mace
05 Palmerstone Roed George Gange Way 17 | 751 College Rosd
07 Marmow Lewume Centre 8 Hanow oo the HIE Car Park West
08 Ovi Amenty Site 19 Lowlands Recsation Ground
09 Cvic Centre 20 Hanow on e HE Car Park East
10 Station Road Opportentty A 2 LyonFosd

5
i
t

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers 5 1i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

17



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The H&W AAP sets out several principles for each Opportunity Area which are of relevance to the development
of the highways and streetscape enhancement schemes.

3.1.1. Wealdstone West

The H&W AAP highlights the requirement for a comprehensive approach to development and public realm
improvements to provide housing and employment, whilst improving east west connectivity in Wealdstone.

Key transport proposals in Wealdstone West can be summarised as follows:

e Improvements to pedestrian and cyclist provision under the railway line at eastern end of Headstone
Drive to ensure good linkages between Wealdstone and future development of the Kodak site;

e Maintain the potential for a future pedestrian and cycle bridge / underpass across the railway line,
linking the Kodak site on the western side and Tudor Road to the east;

e Amendments to the alignment and traffic management systems along Harrow view to integrate the
development planned for either side of this road (Zoom Leisure and Kodak sites) and smooth traffic
flows as far as possible;

e Improve the traffic flow at the junction of Headstone Drive and Harrow View; and

e Creation of new pedestrian linkages between the High Road and Whitefriars Avenue through the
ColArt site.

3.1.2. Wealdstone Central

The Wealdstone Central is a popular but underperforming local area, comprised of local shops, restaurants,
community uses and Harrow and Wealdstone station.

Key transport and public realm proposals in the Wealdstone Central sub area may be summarised as follows:

¢ Improvements to public realm at Harrow and Wealdstone station to safely connect pedestrians and
cyclists to the High Street and enhance the arrival experience;

e Reconfiguration of road space (including potential removal of roundabout) to west of town centre and
either side of railway underpass on Headstone Drive to improve pedestrian and cyclist connectivity to
Kodak site;

e Improving the environment, access and quality of the underpass itself;

e Provision of legible London and route wayfinding from High Street to Leisure Centre and Headstone
Manor (via Kodak) including targeted improvements to crossing facilities;

e New waymarked cycle route between Headstone Manor and Leisure Centre crossing High Street; and

e New CCTV facilities for the town centre.

3.1.3. Wealdstone East

The Wealdstone East sub area hosts the borough’s leisure centre, Byron Park and a significant proportion of
the borough’s industrial land and uses as well as large residential areas.

Key transport and public realm proposals in the Wealdstone East sub area are:

New cycle route connecting pedestrians / cyclists to leisure centre;
Street furniture and signage designed to ensure these do not result in a cluttering of the streetscape;
Improvements to existing east west routes linking Harrow Leisure Centre to Wealdstone; and

Improvements to boundary treatments and signage along railway edge to improve impression of area
from the train.

3.1.4. Station Road

Station Road currently operates as a key transport route through the borough, as well as the primary pedestrian
and bus corridor between Harrow and Wealdstone town centres.

Transport and public realm improvement proposals in the Station Road area include:

e Upgrades to kerb lines and junctions where possible to smooth traffic flow and ease congestion;

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic52£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 18



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
e Retain and enhance recognised desire lines to Harrow and Wealdstone station through the Civic
Centre site;
e Public realm enhancements to the southern side of Harrow and Wealdstone station including the car
park area;

e Improvements to footways along length of road to improve comfort and safety of pedestrians and
encourage more users to shop and walk along its length; and
Remodel service roads and parking bays to create shared space / more generous footpaths.

3.2. Development Sites

Across the seven opportunity areas, 22 development sites have been proposed within the H&W AAP. This
section provides details of the approved and potential development opportunities within the Heart of Harrow
Study Area. Development sites must come forward with a comprehensive framework to ensure that
opportunities for improvements to the public realm and transport set out in the H&W AAP are secured. The
development sites around Wealdstone town centre and stage of development, correct as of August 2016, are
shown in Figure 3-3 below and in Appendix A.

Figure 3-3 Wealdstone Proposed Development Sites

Wealdstone Town Centre Study Development Sites

. STATUS AUGUST 2016
RevE

02 LEISURE CENTRE » presplanning
Residential = 625 units.
B Closs = 10,000m?

03PALMERSTON / DELLERS - pre-planring
Residential = 180 unies.

Residen:
A Clazz = 2550m*
D Class = 3315m¢ (of which 2375m? i school)

05 WICKES HOUSE - planning corsent
1D Class = 1000 fschool for 420 pupis)

04 PREMIER HOUSE & CAR PARK - scoping
Residential = 100 units.

07 SAM MAGUIRE PUB - planning consented
Residential = 27 units.
A Class = 200m2

08 HEATH MOTORS - scoping

Residential = 25 units.

10 MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY - scoping
Residential = 60 units.

11 STATION CAR PARK - scoping
Residential = 58 unit

AClass = 582m?

12 CAR WASH - scoping
Residential = 14 units.

AClazz = 271m?

13 ARTISAN STUDIOS + PLACE - on site

4 Residential = 189 units.
B Class = 2,200m*

o o i

+ InPoges  Plming  Scoping

i A e
Mark Projects Ltd. Architecture Landscape Urban Design LL;
¢ i

oo 44 (0)7845 291 B0, markprojects.co.uk

3.2.1. The Kodak Site (Harrow View)

The Kodak and Zoom Leisure site has been identified as an important development opportunity in Wealdstone.
Planning permission was granted in 2012, for a mixed-use development located to the west of Wealdstone
town centre, comprising of both Harrow View East and Harrow View West sites. Key proposals at the site
include the delivery of residential dwellings, employment, senior living, community facilities and a three-form
entry primary school. The Intensification Area defined in the H&W AAP has been upgraded to one of London’s
newest Opportunity Areas as part of the London Plan, and hence Land Securities (in partnership with the
Council) is producing an updated planning application with increased housing densities, providing up to 1,800
new homes on the eastern part of the site.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver353i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 19



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

3.2.1.1. Harrow View West (Under construction)

The Harrow View West site is approximately 20 acres in size, with the site previously comprising of the former
Zoom leisure sports grounds and car parking areas that closed in 2011. Planning permission was granted in
2012 for the provision of 314 new homes, plus extensive public space and recreational areas. Detailed consent
was received in 2015, although the planning application was subsequently revised in summer 2016 to provide
a total of 580 new homes, including four-storey blocks of dwellings. A planning decision has yet to be made
on the revised application, which was open to public consultation until the end of October 2016. Construction
began on site in 2016 for the first phase of construction, with five phases proposed to complete the Harrow
View West development. The completion date is currently 2023.

3.2.1.2. Harrow View East

A joint venture is under way between Hyde Housing and Barratt London to develop the 30-acre site known as
Harrow View East. The Harrow View East scheme has outline planning permission for a large-scale mixed-
use development to provide 1,150 new homes, 350,000 square feet of employment space, senior living
facilities, a community centre and leisure facilities.

Current plans are to demolish the existing site and start rebuilding the first phase in spring 2018, with homes
available from late 2018.

3.2.2. ColArt Site

A mixed-use development has been completed at the ColArt site in December 2016, which is located to the
north of Wealdstone town centre. Planning permission was granted in 2013, due to the proposals aligning with
the H&W AAP. The development includes the provision of 195 new homes and 190 jobs, including homes for
both shared ownership and affordable rent. The development has refurbished a former manufacturing site with
office and residential provisions. The Winsor and Newton office building and frontage were retained to support
and reinforce a strong local identity to Whitefriars Avenue and the building heights varied between 3-4 storeys
high, in line with recommendations set out within the H&W AAP.

3.2.3. Current Civic Centre Site (Poets Corner)

Plans are currently being developed to formulate a strategy to redevelop the 4.6-ha site that currently operates
as the LBH’s Civic Centre, located on Station Road, south of Wealdstone. A planning application is yet to be
submitted for the site, but it is expected to provide between 800 and 900 new homes, a community facility such
as a school, employment space, retail and public realm areas. The site will also look to improve pedestrian
links to Harrow and Wealdstone station.

The LBH held a consultation for local residents to comment on the proposals at the site between 23 February

and 31st March 2017. It is anticipated that the development will comprise of at least two phases, with phase 1
to be completed by 2021.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic54l) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 20



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 3-4 Poet's Corner Masterplan

3.2.4. Proposed Civic Centre Site

Architects have been appointed to develop designs for the proposed Harrow Civic Centre site, which is
proposed to move from its current location on Station Road to Wealdstone town centre. The proposal includes
moving the council offices to the current Peel House multi-storey car park, therefore relocating council staff to
Wealdstone town centre to stimulate new trade and opportunities to regenerate the High Street. This will be a
mixed-use development comprising a major new civic building, a religious building and a residential
development of between 80-100 homes.

It is proposed that the new Civic Centre site in Wealdstone will be completed and occupied by 2020.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver355i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 21



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 3-5 New Civic Centre masterplan

3

j0ans ubH

|

\ Pomerston g
We Made That, 2017 :

SN \ A
3.2.5. Byron Park Site

The current Harrow leisure centre and Byron Park site houses the single most used leisure facility across the
borough. The Byron Quarter development aims to better meet current user demand at the leisure centre, by
providing new and improved sports and leisure facilities, better connections with Byron Park, in addition to
providing a mix of new housing with a minimum of 200 homes. The project looks to create a vibrant
neighbourhood and leisure destination for residents.

c
s

Public consultation on the scheme was held in spring 2017, with planning applications for phase one and
outline proposals for later stages to be permitted to the LBH. If permission is granted, phase one of the scheme
will include 200 build-to-rent units, to be completed in 2020.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic56£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 22



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 3-6 Byron Park Site masterplan

58 e L
R kit il ®
E __‘\lhlm =
",‘“\"Q‘-_'—““‘!“““‘fﬂ? gl

%
E
=
]
-
L
-

0

AT

*

3.2.6. Palmerston Road / Deller Site

A planning application was submitted to the LBH in May 2016 for the redevelopment of the Palmerston Road
and Deller site, located either side of the A409, on the southern side of Palmerston Road, connected under
the fly over. The proposals are for the redevelopment of the two sites, to provide 187 new residential units,
and seven commercial units amounting to 2,548m2. The development will comprise five buildings, between
one and 17 storeys in height.

The planning application was rejected by the LBH as the 17-storey development was considered too high. In
January 2017, the Mayor of London took over the application for the redevelopment of Palmerston Road. A
public representation hearing was held in March, and following this, the Mayor granted permission subject to
planning conditions and a section 106 legal agreement to provide affordable new homes in Wealdstone.

3.2.7. Additional Opportunity Sites

A plan of the committed and proposed developments and planning stage in August 2016 can be found in
Appendix A. Additional opportunity sites in the vicinity of Wealdstone town centre include the following:

e Proposed redevelopment at Wealdstone Infills site, supporting 95 jobs and 100 new homes, improving
the public realm by making use of derelict buildings, currently at scoping stage;

e Proposals are currently at scoping stage for the development of The Bridge / A409 George Gange
Way site to improve the impression of Wealdstone to drivers, providing office and industrial land use
as well as target outputs of 95 homes and 95 jobs; and

e Planning has been consented for a proposed primary school at the Wickes House site located on
Station Road.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers 57i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 23



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4. Existing Situation, Issues and
Opportunities

This section details the key characteristics of the existing urban environment in Wealdstone town centre and
highlights some of the issues identified.

4.1. Traffic Management Arrangements

There are several banned turns, one-way streets and vehicle restrictions on the highway network around
Wealdstone Town Centre. A plan of the traffic management in place within the study area is provided in Figure
4-1 and Appendix B.

The High Street is only accessible by buses and cycles from the north, with general traffic diverted via A409
George Gange Way, therefore by-passing the High Street. Right turns from The Bridge are restricted to buses
and cycles only, with general traffic only permitted to turn left. Therefore, traffic wishing to access the A409
George Gange Way southbound must take a convoluted route, either using the High Street or u-turning at the
Palmerston Road roundabout.

Figure 4-1 Wealdstone Traffic Management Arrangements

A g e = o
N 2
> - VEL A m
e
Y —a B
- | Busand cvcle =
A2~ o | nn[y entry
> ) |O RO
> GRANT ROAD
" X

. Wealdstone
‘Ns ROAD

'

Recreation Ground

Leisure

No Access (dead end) B
One Way / Permitted Turns =
Buses / Cycles / Taxis only —

Strategic Road Network -

Height Restriction

n

y

13

]

1l

4l
X

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017 \
N e AR w — )

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic58£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 24



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.1.1. Freight

A plan showing HGV restrictions and industrial areas around Wealdstone is shown in Figure 4-2. The A409 is
the designated route for Heavy Goods Vehicles and other through traffic, forming part of the Strategic Road
Network (SRN). A 7.5 tonne restriction is in place on most of the roads surrounding the town centre, with
exceptions for access. The A409 and roads to the south of the town centre are permitted for use by HGVs.

There are multiple industrial areas around Wealdstone town centre, including the civic amenity site located on
Forward Drive, meaning many large vehicles and refuse trucks use the A409 George Gange Way and Oxford
Road to access the site. There are also industrial sites on Hailsham Drive, Cecil Road and Tudor Road, with
the latter two only accessible from the south due to a width restriction.

Figure 4-2 HGV Restrictions in Wealdstone

Key:
7.5 Tonne Restriction
Industrial Area D
Height Restriction 5

Width Restriction 2 @ g

Ly " X C.N

2\ S

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

4.2. Public Transport

Wealdstone town centre is well connected by public transport, with the majority of the area having a Public
Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 4, which represents a ‘high’ level of accessibility.

42.1. Bus Routes

Nine bus routes provide a service through Wealdstone Town Centre with most buses currently stopping on the
High Street and on The Bridge near Harrow and Wealdstone station. All the bus routes in Harrow are TfL
services. The route details and frequencies are provided in Table 4-1 and an illustrative map of bus services
in Wealdstone is provided in Figure 4-3.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver3595.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 25



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Table 4-1

Bus Routes and Frequencies Serving Wealdstone Town Centre

AM Peak Hour

Garage

Route From To Frequency (buses per
hour)
140 Harrow Weald Bus Heathrow Central Bus 10
(24-hour service) Garage Station
182 Bannister Playing Fields | Brent Cross Shopping 7
Centre
186 St Mark’s Hospital Brent CE?SS Shopping 5
entre
Watford Junction Railway South Harrow Bus
258 . . 4
Station Station
340 Edgware Bus Station Harrow Bus Station 5
640 South Harrow Bus Bentley Wood High o
(school service) Station School
H9 Harrow Bus Station Harrow Bus Station 6**
H10 Harrow Bus Station Harrow Bus Station 6**
N18 Harrow Weald Bus Trafalgar Square 4

*Route 640 is a school service operating two services in the morning and two in the afternoon during term time only, with no service on
weekends or during school holidays.
**Route H9 and H10 are circular routed, with H9 operating anticlockwise only and H10 operating clockwise only.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic60£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

26



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 4-3 Bus services in Wealdstone Town Centre

? (OR
- £ -

., Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017
W " 4 o AR A A W ¥ | = z

Route 140
Route 182
Route 186
Route 258
Route 340
Route H9

Route H10
Route 640
Route N18

BusStop @

[T

42.1.1. Issues for Bus Services

Although the town centre is well serviced by buses, there are several issues that could be addressed to
improve bus journey times and service provision for users. The issues in have been identified for buses

within the town centre:

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers61i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

27



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Table 4-2 Issues for Buses
Location Issue
Whole town centre e There are no bus standing facilities within the town centre, with routes

starting and terminating outside of Wealdstone. The closest bus
standing facility to Wealdstone, at Harrow Weald has recently been lost,
with no scope for replacement. Therefore, scope to replace this facility
could be considered.

A409 High Street / Locket e When in use, the loading bay on southbound side of the A409 High

Road junction Street (south of Locket Road) causes traffic to move into the opposite
side of the road.

e The loading bay on the northbound side of the A409 High Street, when
in use, causes delays to general traffic as there is limited room to
overtake buses.

High Street / A409 George  |e  Southbound buses must wait to turn right from the A409 High Street,

Gange Way junction onto the High Street, as there are no bus priority measures at the
junction.
High Street e The location of bus stops opposite each other in the middle of the High

Street causes delays to general traffic, as there are often buses
standing on either side of the carriageway, meaning traffic cannot
overtake

A409 George Gange Way / e General traffic on The Bridge can block back, preventing right-turning
The Bridge junction buses from accessing the right turn lane (which has bus priority),
therefore causing delay.

4.2.2. Route 140

A route study assessment for route 140 has been undertaken, identifying bus performance and many issues
at locations along the route. This service is a key route, connecting Harrow Weald and Heathrow airport. A
number of issues and points of delay along the route were identified in Wealdstone town centre, as summarised
below:

e Analysis of iBus data for the AM peak indicated delays of 45-180 seconds southbound, on the A409 and
through the High Street. Delays of 15-45 seconds were recorded northbound;

e During the PM peak, delays of 15-45 seconds were recorded southbound between Locket Road and the
Bridge and 45-180 seconds from the Bridge to the A409 Station Road. Northbound, delays between 15-
45 seconds were recorded from the A409 Station Road to The Bridge, and 45-180 seconds from The
Bridge travelling north through the High Street;

e The loading bay north of Locket Road blocks northbound traffic when in use, therefore delaying buses;

e Southbound buses must wait to turn right onto the High Street at the junction with the A409 George Gange
Way. Provision of bus priority measures, such as a bus gate, would reduce delay to buses;

e The loading bay opposite Sainsbury’s at the Palmerston Road junction creates a pinch point when in use,
delaying the ahead movement and therefore buses;

e The location of two signalised junctions (High Street / Palmerston Road and High Street / Ellen Webb
Drive) close together restricts flow and causes delay to buses;

e Southbound traffic on the A409 George Gange Way can block back, restricting the right turn from The
Bridge which operates with bus priority. Yellow box markings could be installed to restrict blocking; and

e Consideration of providing bus lanes on either side of The Bridge as the carriageway is wide.

The issues and opportunities identified from the route 140 study should be investigated in the transport study
to identify measures to improve bus journey times, particularly for key routes.

4.2.3. Rail Facilities

Harrow and Wealdstone rail station is located on The Bridge to the south of Wealdstone High Street. The
station is well connected to London, the Midlands and the North West. The H&W AAP recognises that the
public realm around the station entrance is poor, with no designated pedestrian routes through the car park to
the west and poor signage towards Station Road or other destinations. The AAP recognises clear pedestrian

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic62£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 28



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

routes to and from the station, along with eventual upgrades to the station and environs as important
considerations.

Harrow and Wealdstone station is served by London Overground, London Midland, Southern and London
Underground Bakerloo line services to the following stations:

East Croydon

London Euston

Milton Keynes Central
Tring

Watford Junction
Elephant and Castle

Bus stops in either direction are located on The Bridge, approximately 30 metres from the station. Harrow and
Wealdstone station is served by London Buses routes 140, 182, 186, 258, 340, H9, H10 and N18.

4.3. Cycling Environment

There are several designated and recommended cycle routes that pass-through Wealdstone town centre and
these are shown on Figure 4-4 which includes existing signed cycle routes, based on the information provided
in London Cycling Guide 3 (2015). Although there is some provision for cyclists, much of the infrastructure is
inconsistent and disjointed providing poor quality cycle links to the town centre. Therefore, as part of the LBH'’s
Major Scheme Bid, proposed future cycling routes are also shown on the plan, to better connect Wealdstone
to the east / west and north / south.

There are cycle parking facilities located outside Harrow and Wealdstone station and cycle stands located at
various points along Wealdstone High Street and on side streets.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers63i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 29



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 4-4

Swilox

Key:

Existing Cycle Routes
Proposed Section of Route
Heart of Harrow Route
Cross-Harrow Route
Stanmore / Thames Route
Bakerloo Route

Other Routes

Map of Existing and Proposed Cycle Infrastructure in Wealdstone Town Centre

Table 4-3 Existing Cycle Facilities and Issues
Location Cycle Provision Issues
A409 George Gange On-carriageway advisory cycle lanes |e On-carriageway cycle routes
Way (between High are present on either side of the present a conflict between vehicles
Street / A409 junction carriageway between Canning Road and cyclists.

and Canning Road).

and the junction with the High Street.
The southbound route continues to the
Toucan crossing opposite Peel road.

e There are no advanced stop lines
for northbound cyclists.

A lack of connecting routes when
cyclists reach the junction with the
High Street.

A409 George Gange
Way (between
Palmerston Road
roundabout and Canning
Road)

There is a two-way cycle track on the
northbound footway between the
Palmerston Road roundabout and
Canning Road, with a dedicated cycle
crossing on the Palmerston Road (W)
arm of the roundabout.

e The track is approximately 130

metres long, meaning cyclists must
switch from on-carriageway to off-
carriageway cycle tracks over short
distances.

A409 George Gange
Way (between The
Bridge and Palmerston
Road roundabout)

On-carriageway advisory cycle lanes
are present on the northbound side of
the carriageway between The Bridge
and Palmerston Road.

e There is a conflict between cyclists

and general traffic on the
carriageway.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic643 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

30



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Location

Cycle Provision

Issues

e The cycling infrastructure on the
A409 is poorly linked, making the
route disjointed and confusing for
cyclists.

Palmerston Road
(between the High Street
and Palmerston Road

On-carriageway cycle markings at the
eastern end of Palmerston Road,
where it meets the A409 roundabout.

e The cycle markings have been
painted over with double yellow
lines and are only 15 metres in

Byron Road, with connecting south to
Harrow Leisure Centre, east to
Belmont and Edgware and west to
Harrow & Wealdstone, North Harrow
and Northolt.

roundabout) length. This creates a poor
connection for cyclists to the High
Street.

Peel Road There is a toucan crossing on the e Poor route definition for cyclists
A409 opposite Peel Road. Peel Road travelling east, with a lack of cycle
is a signed cycle route connecting to signs and markings to direct
Harrow Leisure Centre and the Byron cyclists.
recreation ground.

Byron Road There are cycle route signs presenton |e  Cycle signs are only provided at the

Byron Road / Peel Road junction.

e On carriageway parking on either
side of the road reduces the space
for cyclists and increases the
conflict with general traffic.

Ellen Webb Drive

There is a 20-metre two-way cycle
track on the footway between Harrow
and Wealdstone station and the
toucan crossing on Ellen Webb Drive.
There are advisory cycle lanes on
either side of the carriageway between
the Ellen Webb Drive / The Bridge
junction and the pedestrian crossing
south of Headstone Drive.

e Disjointed and confusing cycle
infrastructure at the junction
dominated by traffic.

e Westbound advisory cycle lane is

not continuous, giving priority to
general traffic.

Headstone Drive

There are advisory cycle lanes on
either side of the carriageway on
Headstone Drive between Walton
Road and the zebra crossing to the
west of the Princes Drive roundabout.
Cycle markings are also present on
Headstone Drive from the junction
with Cecil Road and connecting to the
High Street through Trinity Square.

e Cycle markings at the Cecil Road
junction are faded with no
designated cycle lanes provided.

e Advisory cycle lanes east of Princes
Drive are not continuous, creating a
disjointed route.

Although there are existing cyclist facilities across the study area, in many cases these are disjointed and
confusing, meaning that they are not attractive to cyclists. The current cycling infrastructure does not provide
safe routes for cyclists to navigate to and from the town centre. By providing improved facilities for cyclists,
particularly connecting development sites, will encourage greater number of cyclists and therefore mitigate the
impact of future developments on the highway network.

The Cycling Strategy for Harrow 2015 — 2018 recognises that more needs to be done to expand the cycle
network and improve the cycle links across the borough. The LBH’s aspirational cycle network is shown in
Figure 4-5 and proposed routes highlighted in green in Figure 4-4. The future aspiration for Wealdstone
includes a main east — west route connecting to Belmont and Canons Park in the east and Headstone and
North Harrow in the West. The north — west aspirations include linking to Harrow Weald in the north and Harrow
town centre to the south of Wealdstone.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers65i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 31



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 4-5 Harrow's Aspirational Strategic Cycle Network (Cycling Strategy for Harrow 2015-2018)

Harrow Cycling Connectivity Map

QUEENSBURY

BAKERLOO ROUTE KINGSBURY
CROSS HARROW ROUTE
HEART OF HARROW ROUTE
JUBILEE ROUTE
METROPOLITAN ROUTE

NORTHERN ROUTE

LT

STANMORE TO THAMES
ROUTE

From Cycling Strategy for Harrow 2015-2018

4.4. Pedestrian Environment

Footfall in the town centre is moderate throughout the day. In general, the existing pedestrian facilities are
adequate for the recorded pedestrian flows, however the existing public realm could be greatly improved to
provide better pedestrian links and a much more attractive environment on the High Street.

4.4.1. Crossings

Controlled pedestrian crossing facilities provided within the study area and associated issues are outlined in
Table 4-4.

Table 4-4 Pedestrian Crossing Facilities and Issues

Location Provision Issues

A409 High Street / | Traffic signals at junction — straight e Unconventional junction layout with

Locket Road through pedestrian crossing with central pedestrian crossing set back from the
island on A409 High Street (North). desire line on Locket Road. Guard
Straight through pedestrian crossing, set railing is present to prevent
back from the pedestrian desire line on pedestrians crossing Locket Road,
Locket Road. closer to the High Street,
No crossing on the A409 High Street
(South) arm.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic66£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 32



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Location Provision Issues
A409 High Street / | Traffic signals at junction — straight e Staggered crossings on the High
A409 George through pedestrian crossings with central Street arm are less desirable for
Gange Way islands on the A409 High Street and A409 pedestrians.
George Gange Way arms.
Staggered pedestrian crossing provided
on the High Street (South) arm.
Traffic signals at junction — straight e Noissues
High Street / through crossings on all arms.
Palmerston Road
High Street / Traffic signals at junction — straight e The size of the junction is daunting for
Masons Avenue / | through pedestrian crossing on the High pedestrians. At least two crossings
Ellen Webb Drive / | Street. must be made to access the eastern
The Bridge Straight through pedestrian and cycle footway of the High Street.
crossings on The Bridge and Masons
Avenue.

Straight through pedestrian and cycle
crossing with central island on Ellen Webb
Drive.

No crossing facilities provided on Masons
Avenue left turn.

A409 George Traffic signals at junction — unsignalised e No signalised crossings are provided,

Gange Way/ The |pedestrian crossings provided on all arms. with high traffic flows recorded on the

Bridge A409 George Gange Way, making it
difficult for pedestrians to cross safely.

Ellen Webb Drive | Straight through Pelican crossing. e Noissues

(south of

Headstone Drive)

A409 George Straight through Toucan crossing. e Noissues

Gange Way (south

of Peel Road)

Despite the provision of crossing facilities at several locations through Wealdstone town centre, the links
beyond the High Street restrict pedestrian movement. This includes the east-west links, particularly due to the
excessive guard railing at the Headstone Drive / Cecil Road junction. In addition, although Harrow and
Wealdstone station is near the High Street, the High Street / Masons Avenue / The Bridge / Ellen Webb Drive
junction dominates the streetscape at this location and is a barrier to pedestrian permeability.

Opportunities should also be explored to improve the existing pedestrian crossing facilities on the A409 George
Gange Way, as this route will become increasingly used by pedestrians, particularly with the development of
the new Civic Centre and development sites at the Palmerston Road roundabout. Development sites are
expected to increase pedestrian crossing movements along the corridor.

4.4.2. Footways

The footways within the town centre vary in width, with street furniture contributing to the creation of pinch
points at many locations along the High Street. These are caused by market stalls and signage that restricts
the available space for pedestrians. The northbound bus shelter located on a busy part of the High Street also
creates an acute pinch point, as shown in Figure 4-6.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers67i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 33



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 4-6 Pinch Points on the High Street

The presence of guard railing at the High Street / Locket Road and Headstone Drive / Cecil Road junctions
reduce the effective footway width which forces pedestrians to take inconvenient routes and results in people
walking in the carriageway, which was particularly evident at the Cecil Road junction during a site visit.

Throughout the town centre, a mix of paving materials has been used which, in places, is dated in appearance
and in need of renewal. This adds to the cluttered appearance, as there is no clear palette or identifiable
character to the materials used for footways. The quality and disrepair creates a poor impression, as shown in
Figure 4-7.

Figure 4-7 Mix of Paving Materials in Wealdstone

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic68£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 34



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.4.3. Pedestrian Survey

Pedestrian surveys were undertaken in Wealdstone Town Centre on Thursday 9t June 2016. The count
locations are indicated by the arrows presented in the pedestrian flow maps in Appendix C. Both the number
of pedestrians on footways and crossing counts at specified points were recorded. The AM and PM peak hours
were assessed using the TfL Pedestrian Comfort Guidance for London (2010).

The total pedestrian footfall data was analysed to determine the pedestrian peak hours on the day of the traffic
surveys. The following peak hours were identified:

e AM Peak — 08:00 — 09:00; and
e PMPeak —17:15 - 18:15 hours.

Pedestrian flows recorded in Wealdstone town centre are modest in comparison to other town centres in
London. This is due to Wealdstone’s role as a district town centre, rather than a major centre. The highest two-
way flow recorded was 687 pedestrians. Based on TfL's Pedestrian Comfort Level Guidance, flows between
600 and 1,200 people per hour represents an ‘Active Flow’ so the peak flows fall into this category, with flows
at most other locations in the town centre falling into the ‘Low Flow’ category.

4.4.4. Key Findings of Pedestrian Surveys

The following trends were observed from the pedestrian footfall and crossing counts during the AM Peak hour:

e The highest two-way pedestrian flow was recorded on the footway outside Harrow & Wealdstone
station, with 687 pedestrians recorded.

e 515 pedestrians were recorded on the western footway of the High Street, at the count just north of
Headstone Drive.

e The highest crossing counts were recorded on the Ellen Webb Drive signalised crossing and the zebra
crossing on The Bridge, with 491 and 441 two-way crossings recorded respectively.

e Low pedestrian counts were recorded at counts along the A409 and all arms of the Palmerston Road
roundabout. The highest counts recorded to the east of the town centre were at the Peel Road toucan
crossing, with 174 crossings recorded.

e Higher pedestrian footfall counts were recorded on the western footway along the High Street, with a
total of 2083 pedestrians recorded, in comparison to 1121 recorded on the eastern footways.

The following trends were identified from the pedestrian footfall and crossing counts during the PM peak hour:

e Generally, the two-way trends followed a similar pattern to the AM peak counts, with the highest
numbers of pedestrians recorded by Harrow & Wealdstone station.

e The highest two-way pedestrian flow on the footway was recorded on the western footway outside
Harrow & Wealdstone station, with 651 pedestrians recorded.

e The highest two-way crossing counts were recorded on the zebra crossing outside the station, with
536 crossings recorded.

e Higher pedestrian footfall counts were recorded on the western footway along the High Street, with a
total of 2159 pedestrians recorded, in comparison to 1477 recorded on the eastern footways.

e During both the AM and PM peak hours, crossing flows were low across the High Street at the junction
outside the station, with 33 and 49 crossings recorded during each peak hour respectively.

4.4.5. Level of Service Analysis

Footways are the infrastructure for walking and, as such, appropriate provision is an essential factor in
encouraging or hindering walking. To encourage walking, footways should have sufficient width for the number
and type of users.

Footway provision is measured by calculating the level of crowding of the footway in pedestrians per minute,
per metre of clear footway width (ppmm). This is calculated from data on pedestrian activity and the clear
footway width. Clear footway width is the actual space available for walking and considers any barriers, street
furniture, (e.g. benches, bins) or blockages (such as guard railing) that permanently reduce the space available
for walking. The TfL guidance also gives recommendations of the ‘buffers’ around each object, as people would
not walk closer than 0.2m to a kerb, for example.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers695.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 35



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Transport for London’s Pedestrian Comfort Guidance gives recommendations on how many ppmm is
comfortable for different area types, with Level B+ (9-11 ppmm) the recommended minimum for all area types.
The peak hour flow recorded at each location was used, to assess the worst-case scenario on the day
surveyed. The data collected for Wealdstone town centre shows that most two-way pedestrian flows are <500
people per hour, on average, with 687 people per hour recorded at the busiest point. The Pedestrian Comfort
Level for both the average and peak hour pedestrian flows at all locations ranged from A to A+ PCL,
comfortably within the recommendation of PCL B+.

TfL’s Pedestrian Comfort Guidance states an absolute minimum clear footway width of 1.5m, which translates
to a width of 2m if typical street furniture, such a lamp columns and road signs need to be accommodated.
This total width is required for two users to pass each other comfortably and to meet Department for Transport
(DfT) minimum standards. However, as Wealdstone is a district shopping centre with significant footfall, a
wider footway width should be provided wherever possible. For Active Flows, TfL's Guidance recommends a
total width of 4.2m, which allows enough space for comfortable movement and street furniture, such as a
wayfinding signs, benches or bus shelters. However, there are currently pinch points within the town centre
where the footway widths would not be sufficient for one person and a buggy to pass each other. Therefore,
opportunities to widen footways to provide sufficient space for all users will be considered.

Although the level of service analysis for Wealdstone showed the PCLs for the surveyed footways were within

recommended levels, the analysis will be used to inform design options to widen footways and reduce street
clutter where possible, therefore improving pedestrian accessibility around Wealdstone.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic70£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 36



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.5. Parking

An assessment has been undertaken of the provision and demand for parking in Wealdstone town centre. A
technical note was produced analysing the results which is presented in Appendix D, with the results
summarised below. The assessment of demand in the study area has focussed on the following car parks and
on-street pay and display bays (Figure 4-8). Both the on-street and off-street parking can facilitate long stay
duration parking and there is no maximum stay limit set. The details of car parks and on-street pay and display
bays are as follows:

Car parks
e Peel House multi-storey car park — 257 bays; and
e Palmerston Road Pay & Display car park — 27 bays.

On-street pay and display bays

High Street — 7 bays (including 1 disabled bay);

Canning Road — 6 bays (including 2 disabled bays);

Gordon Road — 3 bays

Headstone Drive — 33 bays (including 1 disabled bay and 1 motorcycle bay)

Figure 4-8 Map of the location of the parking surveys

‘ / A

High Street Pay and
ﬁyho Display (5 bays)
= Y

Gordon Road Pay and
Display (3 bays)

- GRAN

Canning Road
Pay and Display
(4 bays, 2
disabled bays)

/

Peel House car
park (257 bays)

High Street Pay and
Display (2 bays)

HIGH STREET

Headstone Drive Pay
and Display (30 bays,
2 disabled bays, 1

Motorcycle only bay)

Palmerston Road Pay
and Display (25 bays,
2 disabled bays)

91
\o‘. . ) -
Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017 'o

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers?li.o | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 37



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.5.1. Peel House Multi Storey Car Park

Car park data was obtained from LBH for the Peel House multi-storey car park to establish the occupancy at
different times of the day and different days of the week. The volume of entries and exits to the car park per
hour were provided for October 2015.

The minimum occupancy recorded was 12 vehicles (5% of capacity) and the maximum recorded was 173
vehicles, 69% of the maximum capacity.

The car park occupancy data was also broken down into business permit holders and ‘pay on foot’ tickets. On
average, between 0900 — 1700 hours during weekdays there is an even split of permit holders and ‘pay on
foot' tickets in the car park. As expected, the number of business permit holders reduces from 1600 hours at
all locations.

4.5.2. Palmerston Road Pay and Display
Car park data for the Palmerston Road car park was provided by LBH for October 2015, showing the daily
number of tickets purchased and the average length of ticket purchased. The car park has a charge of £0.80
per hour, with charges operating Monday to Saturday between 0800 and 1830 hours.

The data obtained from the LBH shows that, in October 2015, the average number of tickets purchased per
day was 147, with an average transaction of 1.5 hours.

The results of the on-street parking beat surveys are summarised below:

e The average occupancy recorded in the car park was 23 vehicles (85%), with a maximum recorded
occupancy of 26 vehicles (96%).

e Demand recorded at the Palmerston Road car park was high, with occupancy varying between 62%
and 96%.

e The highest occupancy (96%) was recorded at 1130 hours.

e The lowest recorded occupancy was 17 vehicles (62%) at 1530 hours.

45.3. New Civic Centre

It is expected that when the Civic Centre is relocated to the current Peel House car park site, both the
Palmerston Road and the Peel House car parks would be removed and replaced with a basement car park
with a capacity of around 120 spaces. The data analysed from October 2015 indicates that, based on weekday
average data, a total of 97 spaces (60 public spaces, plus 37 business permit spaces) would be required to
accommodate existing demand (Palmerston Road and Peel House car parks), as detailed in the breakdown
in Table 4-5.

Table 4-5 Average and Maximum Car Park Occupancy
Weekday Average
Car Park Permit Pay on Foot Maximum Occupancy
Holders
Peel House 37 34 179
Palmerston Road - 26 26
Total 97 205

It is not feasible within the proposed New Civic Centre layout to accommodate both the existing public demand
to park from the car parks and the demand for council staff and visitors on the current Civic Centre site. A
reduction in the number of parking spaces for council staff is planned for the New Civic Centre and there will
be very limited on-site provision. LBH'’s parking policy will be to introduce a new travel plan and travel change
programme focussed on promoting alternative sustainable modes of transport for the transition between sites.
Additionally, public parking would be limited to existing demand (60 spaces) and if additional provision is not
created there is potential that demand may decline or on-street parking activity may increase putting additional
pressure on public highway parking spaces. It is possible that additional on-street parking restrictions will be
required.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic72£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 38



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.5.4. On-street Parking Beat Surveys

Parking beat surveys were conducted in Wealdstone town centre at the locations identified in Figure 4-8. Spot
checks were undertaken at eight time periods during the day (between 0900 to 1700 hours) and on various
days of the week across June and July 2016, to obtain a robust estimate of parking demand in the town centre.
The surveys also recorded any illegal parking which occurred during the survey (i.e. parking outside of the
marked bays) hence maximum occupancies occasionally exceed 100%.

The results of the parking beat surveys show that the average and maximum parking occupancy is generally
high in Wealdstone, with the maximum exceeding 100% where vehicles were recorded parking outside of
marked bays. The following trends were observed:

e The demand for parking in Headstone Drive was high, with an average of 83% and maximum of 109%
occupancy. The highest utilisations were recorded at 10:30 and 13:30 across the surveyed area.

e Occupancy exceeded 100% in three of the four surveyed areas, where vehicles were observed outside
of marked bays or on double yellow lines.

e Every location in the survey was observed at 100% capacity at least once during the surveyed time
periods.

e The survey indicates that all on-street parking within the surveyed area is well used, although there is
only provision of 43 bays, 5 disabled bays and a motorcycle bay.

In the future scenario, the quantity of on-street parking for local amenities would need to be maintained. The
high levels of occupancy recorded during the surveys may be due to the bays being utilised for long-stay
parking. Due to the shortage of dedicated short stay parking in Wealdstone town centre, on street Pay and
Display parking bays should be prioritised to short stay provision and have a maximum stay limit introduced to
prevent long term parking. This will provide improved access for customers to local shops.

4.5.5. Existing Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs) in Wealdstone

Due to the parking pressure in Wealdstone, many roads around the town centre are within existing Controlled
Parking Zones (CPZs).

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers73i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 39



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 4-9 CPZs in Wealdstone

PR ‘ : R\ o w38 Provided by London Borough of Harrow, 2017

& o " < i . - et o % = R
3 & 3 ney 3 / 3 ‘ =
\A 7y % -
n . p /
| \ = 0
/ Z 2 i &
| / @\
) N A N
- Y
A el A : 5 T
p ki > 3 2
1Lz =T C1, 0 2 A
o2 \ : - “
- e - =
= ol
—\v - X
£ \ | \ -
B (% =

‘‘‘‘‘‘

KEY: Longer duration restrictions (including evenings):

Zone C1 - Monday to Sunday, 8am - Midnight

Zone C - Monday to Friday, 10am - 11am - Zone J - Monday to Sunday, 7am - 12am
Zone P - Monday to Sunday, 8:30am - 8:30pm
—

Commuter parking zones:

Zone CA - Monday to Friday, 10am-11am and 2pm-3pm Zone R - At any time

Zone Z - Monday to Friday, 10am - 3pm . .
Y Y 3p Regeneration sites

Working day zones: EZZ3 Council regeneration sites
Zone F - Monday to Saturday, 8:30am - 6:30pm [~ Areas of potential parking displacement
Zone K - Monday to Saturday, 8:30am - 6:30pm == CPZ review within council works programme (2017/18)

The CPZs around Wealdstone are shown in Figure 4-9 and Appendix E. The following restrictions are currently
in place:

Zone CA — Wealdstone — Monday to Friday between 10:00 — 11:00 hours and 14:00 — 15:00 hours.
Zone C1 — Wealdstone — Monday to Sunday between 08:00 — 00:00 hours.

Zone C — Wealdstone (Royal Estate) Monday to Friday between 10:00 — 11:00 hours.

Zone J — Leisure Centre — Monday to Sunday between 07:00 — 00:00 hours.

Zone K — Harrow Town Centre (North) — Monday to Saturday between 08:00 — 18:30 hours.

Zone P — Rosslyn Crescent and Frognal Avenue — Monday to Sunday between 08:30 — 20:30 hours.

A large proportion of Wealdstone town centre is already within a CPZ, however, with the quantity of public car
park spaces set to reduce significantly at the new Civic Centre site, and on-street parking demand likely to
increase because of the increasing number of new homes and businesses in the area, it is inevitable that
parking will become an issue on the uncontrolled residential roads located around the town centre. The areas
highlighted in red (Figure 4-9) are currently uncontrolled but may experience long stay parking pressures in
the future from a combination of commuters for the rail station, work place parking, local businesses and new
residents in the area.

The current extent of the existing CPZs is unlikely to deter the use of the private car, for example, the estimated
walking time from the northern end of Byron Road (currently not in a CPZ) to the new Civic Centre site is 8
minutes, which is only a short walk and it is unlikely that drivers would change to an alternative and more
sustainable mode of transport.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic74C) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 40



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The intensification of the development in Wealdstone over the next five years is likely to lead to greater
pressure on parking availability in Wealdstone town centre and the surrounding areas. Therefore, it is
anticipated that increases to the operational hours of existing CPZs and the introduction of new CPZs covering
additional areas will be required to restrict long-term parking on-street by commuters, work place parking,
businesses and new developments. CPZ controls aims to protect the parking amenity of the local residents
and contribute to encouraging modal shift in line with the MTS. A CPZ review is already underway in the
Leisure Centre area, as a consequence of existing parking pressures, shown by the dashed blue line in Figure
4-9, and this is already indicating a trend towards longer operational hours to protect local residents’ parking
amenity.

4.5.6. Parking Summary

In summary, a total of 333 parking bays in Wealdstone have been surveyed. Of these, 257 are located within
the Peel House multi-storey car park, 27 in the Palmerston Road pay and display car park and 49 on-street
pay and display bays.

There are a limited number of on-street bays in Wealdstone town centre, and based on the 2016 surveys,
these are in high demand throughout the day. The average occupancy recorded across all on-street parking
bays was 81%, with illegal parking on double yellow line and in loading bays at many locations. The Palmerston
Road car park is also well used but, based on the October 2015 data, the Peel House car park has a lower
level of occupancy, with a maximum of 69% (173 vehicles).

The maximum occupancies were observed at the following times in each location:

e On-street — 50 vehicles (104%), 1330 hours
e Peel House car park — 173 vehicles (69%) Friday, 2300 hours
e Palmerston Road car park — 26 vehicles (96%) 1130 hours.

The reduction in the quantity of public car park spaces in the development at the new Civic Centre site (longer
duration parking), may encourage an increase in travel to Wealdstone by sustainable modes of transport, but
there is a significant risk that on-street parking (both legal and illegal) will increase significantly due to the
reduced number of car park spaces being provided in the future. This may result in the need for increased
parking restrictions on-street to regulate demand.

The existing short stay parking provision in the town is limited to the on-street pay and display bays which are
currently heavily used by long stay parking because there is no maximum stay limit. This makes access to
short stay parking difficult. It is suggested that the quantity of parking bays be maintained and that these bays
be dedicated to short stay parking with a maximum stay limit in order to facilitate customer parking for local
shops and amenities to benefit the local economy.

The wider impact of the regeneration programme with the creation of up to 5,500 new homes and 3,000 new
jobs in the area will place significant additional parking pressure on public highway parking space in the town
and surrounding areas by new residents, employees and businesses. The amount of public highway parking
space will remain static and there will be greater competition between different user groups for the available
parking space. Therefore the extent and duration of CPZs and parking controls in the area will need to increase
significantly in order to manage long stay parking, to protect local residents parking amenity and to encourage
the use of sustainable modes of travel in line with the MTS.

4.6. Collision Analysis

A review of personal injury collisions recorded in the study area over the three-year period from 15t December
2012 - 30t November 2015 has been conducted. The aim of the analysis is to identify and understand any
trends or patterns in the in the occurrence of collisions within the study area.

The collision data provided by TfL shows that 57 collisions were recorded in the study area during the 36-

month period specified, resulting in 67 recorded casualties. Of these, 19 (33%) involved pedestrians and 9
(16%) involved cyclists.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers75i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 41



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.6.1. Collision Severity

All recorded collisions are classified by their severity. The possible classifications are slight, serious and fatal.
Table 4-6 provides details of the reported collisions by severity.

Table 4-6 Collision Severity

Severity Number of Collisions
Serious 9 (16%)

Slight 48 (84%)

Total 57

There were no fatal collisions recorded in the study area over the three-year period. Of the nine recorded
serious collisions:

e 4 involved pedestrians failing to look properly for oncoming vehicles when crossing the road, three of
which were away from formal crossing facilities;

1 involved a car driver failing to indicate right at a roundabout and colliding with another vehicle;

1 involved a car driver mounting the kerb and hitting a pedestrian on the footpath;

1 involved a car driver reversing into a stationary vehicle;

1 involved a driver under the influence of alcohol losing control of the vehicle; and

1 involved an elderly passenger tripping whilst getting off the bus.

Out of the 48 collisions classified as slight:

e 9 were caused by rear shunts;

8 were caused by vehicles colliding with pedestrians crossing the road away from formal crossing
facilities;

6 were caused by vehicles turning into the path of other vehicles;

4 were caused by drivers opening vehicle doors into the path of oncoming cyclists;

4 were caused by drivers disobeying give way markings / traffic signals;

3 were caused by vehicles colliding with pedestrians at a formal crossing facility;

2 were caused by buses suddenly braking, causing passengers to fall;

2 were caused by vehicles trying to overtake and colliding with oncoming vehicles;

2 were caused by vehicles turning across the path of a cyclist;

2 were caused by drivers losing control of their vehicle;

2 were caused by vehicles pulling out into the path of other vehicles;

2 were caused by sudden braking to avoid collisions;

1 was caused by a cyclist riding off the pavement into the path of an oncoming vehicle; and
1 was caused by a pedestrian colliding with a bus whilst chasing it.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic76£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 42



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.6.2. Collision Locations
Figure 4-10 shows the locations of the recorded collisions in the study area.

Figure 4-10  Collision Locations and Severity

I

<>

: ealdstone
= il 0]
PW |1
HAI 5
PEEL_ROAD
g D
A
%
< Wks
43,
4ys -
Sta S
Liby
Ciic -
OCe re 2
W\ 7
RORL. Z
Study area I
: I TH_ROAD %
" Slight Q BLAY 2
P
Serious @ =
: &

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017 3

The collisions are dispersed across the study area, however there is a higher concentration of collisions around
some junctions. Details of these are as follows:

e A409 High Street / Locket Road junction
A total of nine collisions were recorded at this junction. Of these, three involved pedestrians and one
involved a cyclist. One serious collision occurred at this junction where a pedestrian crossed the road
into the path of a motorcycle.

e Ellen Webb Drive / Cecil Road / Headstone Drive junction
A total of four collisions were recorded, one of which involved a vehicle colliding with a pedestrian
crossing the road away from a formal crossing.

e Ellen Webb Drive / The Bridge / High Street / Masons Avenue junction
Eight collisions were recorded at this junction, three involving pedestrians and two involving cyclists.

e A409 George Gange Way / Palmerston Road roundabout

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers77i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 43



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

A total of seven collisions occurred at the roundabout, one of which involved a pedestrian failing to
look and being hit by an oncoming vehicle and one involving a vehicle passing too close to a cyclist.

Christchurch Avenue / Masons Avenue / Byron Road roundabout

Three collisions occurred at this location, including a serious collision. The serious collision involved a
driver turning right over the centre of the mini-roundabout without indicating and colliding with an
oncoming vehicle.

High Street

A cluster of seven collisions were recorded between the junctions with Canning Road and Palmerston
Road. Most of these collisions involved pedestrians failing to look whilst crossing the road and being
struck by oncoming vehicles. Two involved passengers falling whilst on a bus and one occurred when
a vehicle lost control and mounted the footway.

4.6.3. Casualties

There were 66 casualties as a result of the 57 recorded collisions during the study period. The casualties from
the 9 recorded serious collisions included five pedestrians, three car drivers and one bus passenger. Most
casualties were vehicle drivers (25 casualties, 38%) but a large proportion were pedestrians (19 casualties,
29%) and cyclists (9 casualties, 14%). Table 4-8 compares the percentage of accidents by user group for the
study area to the percentage of all casualties in LBH in 2014 (DfT Road Accidents and Safety Annual Report
2014). The data indicates there is a higher proportion of pedestrian and cycle casualties in the study area
compared to the borough average. This may be attributed to the town centre location of the study area where
pedestrian and cyclists’ flows are likely to higher than average across the borough.

Table 4-7 Type and Number of Casualties
Casualty Type Number of Casualties Proportion of Total Casualties
Vehicle Driver 25 38%
Pedestrian 19 29%
Vehicle Passenger 13 19%
Cyclist 9 14%
Total 66 100%
Table 4-8 Summary of Casualties
Casualties (%)
User Group
Study Area LBH 2014
Driver / Passenger 57% 70%
Pedestrian 29% 22%
Cyclist 14% 8%
4.6.4. Condition at Time of Collision

Out of all recorded collisions in the study area, 46 occurred when the road was dry and 11 occurred when the
road was wet. Most collisions occurred during the day and with a dry road condition, see Table 4-9.

Table 4-9 Condition of Road and Light Levels at Time of Collision
Road Condition Light Level Number of Collisions
Dry Daylight 32
Dry Dark 14
Wet Daylight 6
Wet Dark 5

One third of recorded accidents in the study area occurred during the dark, the locations of which are identified
in Figure 4-11. There are clusters of collisions located at Locket Road, Palmerston Road roundabout and in

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic78£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

44




Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

the middle of the High Street. This is only a slightly higher proportion than the 29% average for LBH and the
whole of London and is not statistically significant. Nonetheless it is recommended that street lighting should
be reviewed to ensure the current provision is adequate. Four collisions were recorded at the same location in
the centre of the High Street, where there are two bus stops which may block the street lighting if two buses
are standing. Three of the five collisions recorded at the Locket Road junction involved pedestrians being hit
by oncoming vehicles. Street lighting is sparse around the junction which has an unconventional layout, so
should be reviewed here.

Figure 4-11  Collisions During Hours of Darkness

~rr

Collison recorded [}
in the dark

2 Collisions recorded 1
in the dark '

A )
|

| Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017

e L — — s =

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers79i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 45



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.6.5. Cause of Collisions

Most collisions were caused by driver, pedestrian or cyclist error and were not caused by the condition of the
road. Only three recorded collisions were attributed to drivers travelling too fast for the weather conditions. As
mentioned previously, most casualties were vehicle drivers and most collisions involving vehicle drivers were
caused by rear shunts. The high number of pedestrian casualties were caused by pedestrians failing to look
properly when crossing the road and cars not stopping in time, many cases occurring away from formal
crossing facilities. Other main causes of collisions involved vehicles turning into other vehicle’s paths and
failing to give way to other traffic.

4.6.6. Collision Frequency

Figure 4-12 and Figure 4-13 show a breakdown of collisions by month and day of the week respectively. Most
collisions occurred during March and June with the greatest proportion occurring on Mondays and Saturdays.

Jul Aug

Sep Oct Nov Dec

Figure 4-12  Collision Occurrence by Month

Jan

Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Month

10

Number of Collisions

9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

Figure 4-13  Collision Occurrence by Day
14
12

10

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

Day

Number of Collisions
[=)] [s.2]

=

(=]

4.6.7. Collision Summary

It has been identified, based on the collision data supplied by TfL that the majority (38%) of recorded collisions
between 1st December 2012 and 30" November 2015 resulted in a vehicle driver casualty. Pedestrian and
cyclist casualties made up 29% and 14% of casualties respectively, recorded during the study period. Most
collisions were caused by driver, pedestrian and cyclist error and were not caused by the condition of the road.
Only three collisions were attributed to a slippery road surface or drivers travelling too fast for the weather
conditions.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic803 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 46



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The proportion of pedestrian and cyclist casualties in the study area was higher than the average for LBH in
2014. Eight recorded collisions involved pedestrians at an uncontrolled or informal crossing point. Clusters of
collisions occurred at several junctions within the study area. A high number of collisions occurred at the A409
High Street / Locket Road junction, three of which involved pedestrians and one involving a cyclist.

The findings of this collision analysis will be considered during the preparation of the proposed design options
with the aim of addressing any identified road safety issues.

4.7. Issues and Opportunities Workshop

The combination of issues raised above results in a constrained environment for pedestrians and cyclists.
Street furniture and guard railing reduce the effective footway width at multiple areas within the town centre,
creating pinch points and congestion along the footway, reducing the attractiveness of the town centre as a
place to visit and spend time in. Therefore, there is an opportunity to improve the pedestrian environment along
the High Street by rationalising street furniture and enhancing the public realm, and hence has resulted in the
development of a major scheme bid by the LBH.

As part of this study a site visit was undertaken and a stakeholder workshop was held in May 2016 to identify
the existing issues in the town centre and generate potential opportunities to tackle these issues. The workshop
process and the resultant outputs are outlined below, with an issues and opportunities summary plan included
in Appendix F.

4.7.1. Workshop Attendees

The following stakeholders were represented at each of the three workshops:

London Borough of Harrow, Traffic and Highways;
London Borough of Harrow, Regeneration;

London Borough of Harrow, Economic Development;
TfL, Surface Transport;

TfL, Borough Planning;

Peter Brett Associates;

Mark Projects; and

Atkins.

The following sections detail the issues and opportunities in the town centre generated by stakeholders during
the initial project workshop. Many issues and opportunities were identified across the study area, based on
road network performance, the public realm and the impacts of developments. The issues and opportunities
identified and discussed are highlighted below, broken down by geographical location.

4.7.2. The Bridge and Harrow and Wealdstone Station
Harrow and Wealdstone Station is located to the south of Wealdstone High Street, and runs both National Rail

and London Underground / Overground services. The following issues and opportunities were identified on
The Bridge and near the station:

Issues

e The public realm near the station is relatively poor, where it should offer a gateway to the town centre
for those arriving by rail.

e Harrow and Wealdstone station is well positioned at the southern end of the High Street, however
there is a large expanse of carriageway at the High Street / Masons Avenue / The Bridge / Ellen Webb
Drive junction which severs the station from the High Street;

e Pedestrians do not have a direct route from the station to the High Street, having to cross at least two
signalised crossings between the two;

e Cycle routes provided at the junction are complex, making the busy junction daunting for cyclists;

e The area in the immediate vicinity of the station is poor, dominated by the taxi rank and poorly
positioned cycle racks on the footways;

e There is potential to make use of the open space between the station and Ellen Webb Drive to enhance
the public realm in this area and improve the arrival experience for those arriving by rail; and

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers8 1i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 47



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e On The Bridge, there are bus stops in either direction approximately 50 metres from the station exit,
however this is not immediately clear when exiting the station.

Figure 4-14  Outside Harrow and Wealdstone Station

piclisomething £

Opportunities

e Opportunity to identify whether the traffic signals at the Ellen Webb Drive / Masons Avenue / The
Bridge junction could be removed or reduced in size. The vast amount of space at the junction could
be used to create a gateway to the town centre — block paving roundabout suggested;

e Open space between taxi rank and Ellen Webb Drive could be utilised;

e Potential to improve pedestrian crossings connecting the station and High Street;

e Public art could be installed on The Bridge to make a more attractive gateway to the town centre from
the A409; and

e Potential to improve pedestrian crossings connecting the station and High Street.

4.7.3. A409 (George Gange Way — High Street)

The A409 by passes the town centre with the primary function of the road being traffic movement. Several
issues and opportunities have been identified along the by-pass.

Issues

e The A409 is a daunting environment for pedestrians with a single controlled toucan crossing adjacent
to Peel Road;

Excessive guard railing along the carriageway restricts pedestrian movement;
The pedestrian east-west link to the town centre is poor, currently being through an alleyway south of
the Peel Road multi-storey car park;

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic82£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 48



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Entry to the town centre from the A409 George Gange Way / The Bridge junction is not obvious and
the current artwork on The Bridge does not enhance the street scene;

A lack of active frontage is detrimental to the public realm at this junction and, again, does not highlight
that this is an entry into the town centre; and

The A409 / The Bridge junction is dominated by traffic and a lack of signalised crossings makes the
junction daunting for pedestrians.

Figure 4-15 A409 George Gange Way

Opportunities

Potential to re-instate the right turn on The Bridge to stop traffic using High Street / Palmerston Road
route;

Footways on the Bridge are wide with space to create shared use pathways;

Junction layout and pedestrian crossing facilities by Milton Road to be reviewed taking account of the
current Civic Centre development (Poets Corner);

Development potential plots to the north east and north west of George Gange Way / The Bridge
junction to create active frontages; and

Opportunity for lighting and planting on A409 between Station Road and Wealdstone to improve the
public realm.

4.7.4. High Street

The public realm on the High Street is poor, with several issues and improvement opportunities identified.

Issues

Atkins

A mix of paving materials is used along the High Street;
There is a large quantity of street furniture that restricts pedestrian movement with an excessive
amount of space given to vehicles;

Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers83i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 49



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The two bus stops in the centre of the High Street are located opposite each other which causes
problems for through traffic as nine bus services use the stops and there is limited opportunity for
general traffic to overtake buses when stopped;

e Atthe northern end of the High Street heavy queueing was observed during both the AM and PM peak
hours at the junction with the A409. Signal timings may need to be reviewed to synchronise this
junction with the Locket Road junction to the north;

e The junction is A409 / High Street junction is relatively wide, so there is an opportunity to improve the
layout and create a gateway to the town centre;

e Five parking bays on the High Street are close to the junction, restricting space for vehicles to queue;

e There are signalised pedestrian crossings on all arms of the junction, although unnecessary street
furniture and guard railing could be removed to enhance the pedestrian environment;

e Short term parking on the High Street and in nearby areas is limited. Current proposals to convert the
Peel House multi storey car park to the new Civic Centre may put further pressure on parking in
Wealdstone, potentially impacting the local economy;

e Within the study area, there are a total of five signalised junctions. Having signals along the High Street

cause delay and some junctions may benefit from a review of the current signal timings. For example,

the High Street / Palmerston Road junction has a signal phase for the derelict pub site which is
currently being utilised as a car wash.

As noted previously, the High Street southbound is restricted to buses and cycles only, therefore most traffic
uses the A409 rather than travelling down the High Street. Although this means traffic levels are low on the
High Street, much of the traffic completely avoids the town centre and may be unaware that it is there,
potentially negatively impacting the economy of the town centre.

Figure 4-16  Wealdstone High Street

Opportunities

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic84l) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 50



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Bus stops could be relocated along the High Street if there is sufficient space, allowing vehicles to
pass buses when stopping;

o Relatively wide junction at the top of the High Street could be improved to create a gateway to the
town centre;

e Option for timed restrictions northbound on High Street for buses and cycles only; and

e Review of carriageway and footway widths and alignment to prioritise pedestrian / cycle movement,
similar to the Harrow Town Centre, Station Road scheme.

4.7.5. Palmerston Road

Palmerston Road links the A409 and the High Street, yet the link between the two is currently unattractive with
a lack of awareness that the town centre is there. There is potential to create a gateway to the town centre at
the roundabout, which may encourage further use of the town centre.

The A409 / Palmerston Road roundabout has poor pedestrian crossing and cyclist facilities, and direction signs
are confusing.

Figure 4-17  Palmerston Road

Opportunities:

e There is potential to create a gateway to town centre by improving the Palmerston Road link, as there
is currently no indication to the town centre from the roundabout.

4.7.6. Headstone Drive

The quality of the public realm on Headstone Drive is poor, with parked cars dominating the space. The
following additional issues were identified by stakeholders during the workshop:

e The current footways are narrow, with space restricted further with shop stalls on the footways;

e As outlined in Chapter 4, Headstone Drive has 30 pay and display spaces, although during surveys
vehicles were often observed parking outside of marked bays;

e The Headstone Drive / Cecil Road / Ellen Webb Drive junction is part of a key east — west link for
pedestrians and cyclists, linking the Kodak development site with the town centre. The current layout
has excessive guard railing, creating circuitous and inconvenient pedestrian routes;

e The Cecil Road junction has an unconventional layout which may be confusing for drivers featuring a
combination of poor road alignment and multiple priority junctions;

A complimentary scheme to create a public space between Headstone Drive and High Street (Trinity Square)
has been approved and will be implemented. In addition, an enhancement scheme has also been proposed
for a signalised junction at Headstone Drive / Cecil Road / Ellen Webb Drive, which will be funded by developer
contributions. Both these schemes have been considered when evaluating proposals that affected this area.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver585i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 51



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 4-18 Headstone Drive

Opportunities

Potential to improve east / west connection, junction alignment and public realm on Headstone Drive;
Improving pedestrian route at Headstone Drive / Princes drive roundabout will connect Kodak
development to town centre; and

Potential to re-open route through Headstone Drive to traffic. May help with poor layout at Headstone
Drive / Cecil Road junction.

4.7.7. General Issues and Opportunities

Issues

The cycle facilities throughout the study are poor, with disjointed routes and a lack of direction signing
making the existing infrastructure confusing for cyclists;

Pedestrian access to the town centre is poor, particularly east-west links;

There is a lack of gateway features to highlight the town centre to both traffic and non-motorised users;
Poor public realm in Wealdstone in several locations throughout the town centre;

There is limited on-street parking within the town centre, with the current parking provision in high
demand;

Unnecessary street clutter and guard railing within the town centre which creates pinch points and
areas of congestion for pedestrians; and

Poor quality and mixed paving materials throughout the town centre contribute to the cluttered and
unattractive streetscape.

Opportunities

Potential to shorten bus routes in the town to improve circulation and reduce journey times;

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic86£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 52



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Some junctions could be converted to roundabouts (as seen in the LB Ealing) which would have
minimal impact on buses and may calm general traffic;
Proposed developments are 'car light' so present opportunities to improve pedestrian connections;
Prioritising connections into the town centre for the new residents may benefit the local economy

e High number of signalised junctions across the study area. Signals could be reviewed and amended /
removed; and

e There is a perception that a provision of parking means people will stop and spend more. TfL study
on spending by different transport modes suggested public transport users spend more, however short
term parking may remain important for the High Street and its users.

4.8.  Air Quality

As outlined in The Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy, improving air quality is a key consideration in London, where
many of the emissions are generated from motorised traffic. The London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory
(LAEI) identified five Air Quality Focus Areas within Harrow, one of which is in Wealdstone. The area of focus
in Wealdstone is around The Bridge, Masons Avenue and Palmerston Road. This is one of five designated air
quality areas within the borough.

An air quality map of the study area is shown in Figure 4-19, which shows the level of Nitrogen Dioxide (NOz2)
recorded in 2013. As shown in the map, the highest levels of NO2 were recorded at the High Street junction
with The Bridge, outside Harrow and Wealdstone station. The highest levels recorded here were between 76-
97ug/m3, whereas the annual mean NO:2 objective is 40ug/m3.

Design proposals will consider ways to reduce traffic and congestion along the route, to improve the air quality
in the area. This will be important when new developments bring a number of new homes and jobs to the area,
particularly the proposed Civic Centre development. Proposals to improve air quality should be identified
across the study area, as traffic and congestion are an issue throughout Wealdstone. Designs will consider
ways to encourage use of sustainable transport, in addition to making junctions operate more efficiently to
reduce queueing in the town centre.

Figure 4-19  Air Quality in Wealdstone

°

Air Quality
NO2 concentration 2013 (pg/m3)
.<l6
| TEET)
B2
| P
B2
B s
B -3
B 34-37
B 37-40
[J <043
[ a3-ss
[ ss-ss
W ss-7
| AR

Provided by London Borough of Harrow ) . >97

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers 87i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 53



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

4.9. Summary of Issues for Wealdstone Town Centre

A summary of the issues and opportunities, identified during the site visit to Wealdstone town centre, by
location, is included in the report in Appendix F. The key transport issues identified in the town centre are
summarised below:

o Wealdstone town centre is well connected by public transport, with several bus routes serving it as
well as both rail and underground / overground services from Harrow and Wealdstone station. Unlike
many other town centres, Harrow and Wealdstone station is close to the town centre.

e There is a high demand for on-street parking in Wealdstone town centre, and this pressure may
increase with the new Civic Centre development at the Peel House car park site and the wider
regeneration programme to build 5,500 homes and create 3,000 new jobs;

e The current cycle provision is disjointed and confusing, which may discourage people from cycling
around the town centre;

e The presence of street clutter reduces the effective footway width at several areas within the town
centre, creating pinch points and congestion;

e Excessive guard railing is present at several locations, creating convoluted routes for pedestrians; and

e The number of recorded cyclist casualties was higher than the borough average for the period
assessed.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic88£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 54



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

5. Urban Design Review

An urban design review has been undertaken by Mark Projects Ltd. It assessed the existing situation, identified
key public realm issues and opportunities and set out a public realm vision for the study area. The full report
is included in Appendix F.

Wealdstone is identified as an opportunity area and as such Wealdstone is undergoing major changes due to
the development of industrial sites, such as the former Kodak site, into residential sites to deliver 5,500 new
homes in the area. This is occurring alongside several other developments, including the relocation of the
current Civic Centre from Station Road to the centre of Wealdstone and the redevelopment of the leisure centre
at Byron Park.

5.1. Issues and Opportunities

Historic development in Wealdstone has, in some cases, had a detrimental impact on the integrity and
character of the high street, especially by ‘breaking’ its continuity on the southern side of The Bridge. Several
public realm issues and opportunities were highlighted across the study area, as summarised in section 4.7.
The strengths of Wealdstone were highlighted as its strong high street character, the existing local economy
and the public transport connectivity. The proximity of the station to the High Street is a particularly strength.
The main issues identified in the Urban Design review arise from the poorly planned public realm in terms of
pedestrian and cycle movements, exacerbated by high levels of vehicular traffic passing through the town
centre.

The public realm environment could be vastly improved by looking at the engineering of key junctions and
crossings from a pedestrian and cyclist perspective. In addition to this, a renewal of the streetscape and spatial
interventions in key spaces, such as the station forecourt, could make a huge impact on the sense of place
and the quality of public realm in the town centre. Outside the town centre itself, wider foot and cycle links will
need to be improved and rationalised to improve connectivity and encourage visit by the local residential and
business community on foot and by bicycle.

The public realm issues and opportunities that were identified as part of the Urban Design Review are
incorporated into those listed and discussed in the previous section of this report.

5.2. Public Realm Design Strategy

The following public realm vision and objectives have been identified for Wealdstone:

A strengthened walking connection between Station Road and Wealdstone town centre;
Improved arrival experience to the town centre from Harrow & Wealdstone station;
Improved appearance and quality in the high street public realm;

Integrated public realm in new development;

Active and distinctive public spaces;

Well planned, simple and useful cycle routes;

Clear and simple way finding and signage; and

Supporting new development.

The wider strategic objectives are that any public realm and highway improvements should boost strategic
connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists and support the future development of key sites within the study area,
including the Kodak site, the Byron Quarter, and the new and proposed Civic Centres, and thereby promote
the regeneration and economic growth of Wealdstone. A key consideration is improving the wider links to and
from Wealdstone, particularly east-west for pedestrians and cyclists.

Figure 5-1 shows the strategic linkages that will strengthened and supported by multiple and overlapping
schemes, including proposals emerging from this town centre study.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Vers895.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 55



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 5-1 Strategic Links to Wealdstone

—  High street
we=== Primary foot [ eyele link for imprevement.

-------- Secandary links for improvement.

-------- Link te be delivered outside of scope.

O Development site.

Stanmore Golf Club

1€,

Col Arts

BELMONT TRAIL

Prisstmaad Primary Schoal

High Street

T~

Trinity

Kedak Site

E

Mew Civie

Headstane
Manar

Recresation
Ground

Masons Avki_rih-;‘:.')
+ Ellen Webb
Drive

Kenton Ree +
Childrens Centre

The Bridge

HARROW STAT o ROAD

Greenhill Way

From Mark Proiects Urban Desian Report, 2017

5.3. Public Realm Proposals

5.3.1. The Bridge, Poet’s Corner Square and Station Square

The Bridge connects Wealdstone High Street to Harrow Station Road, for vehicular, pedestrian and cyclist
movements. Improving this link is an important factor in encouraging footfall between the two high streets and

supporting the local economy of both places.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic903 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 56



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study
Figure 5-2 Urban Design Proposals - The Bridge

STATION SQUARE

C)

north

THE BRIDGE

POET'S CORNER SQUARE

New public square.
Raised table crossing.

New trees.

Tree lighting installed in new or existing trees
New building velume.
Active frontage (existing).

3 . Active frontage (proposed).

Way finding element.

From Mark Proiects Urban Desian Report, 2017

Existing mature trees alongside The Bridge could be lit with canopy lighting so that as you walk up the bridge
you pass close to the lit canopies. Trees in planters could also be installed on the footways and the central
reserve. The site and history of the Railway Hotel could be remembered with a custom interpretation and
lighting piece.

Poet’'s Corner Square, forming part of the existing Civic Centre development, will feature new buildings with
active ground floor uses. The space will have trees and furniture installed, with options to use the area for
events such as markets. Provision of a raised table would make crossing easier for pedestrians and connect
the two sides of the road.

Public realm improvements to Station Square are key to reconnecting the station with The High Street. Key
features of the proposed design include creating a welcoming public space outside the station through public
realm enhancements consisting of high quality paving, new trees and public seating. These would be combined
with a revised junction layout, potentially including a raised table, aimed at reducing the dominance of traffic
and facilitating easier crossing of the junction by pedestrians and cyclists.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versgli.o | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 57



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 5-3 Station Square Proposals

= View of Station Square looking
south.

€ Large raised table with
diagonal crossing, surfaced
in alternative carriageway
material.

New kiosk / commercial edge
to public space.

New public space with semi-
mature trees and seating.

New commercial unit on site
of demolished building.

Resurfaced footways.
Disused rail track planted with
trees in pots.

Fence edge replaced with new
open mesh fence.

QOutdoor seating.

Bus stop layby surfaced in
footway material.

® 00 © ©0 © © ©

* The diagonal crossing shown has not been modelled, at this point the crossing is an aspiration. Way flndmg ||ght|ng / ﬂag /
This might have an effect on the all red phase and therefore bus journey times. sign in station tower.

From Mark Proiects Urban Desian Report. 2017

5.3.2. Wealdstone High Street

Proposed public realm improvements along Wealdstone High Street include footway widening, removal of
street clutter, high quality paving and street furniture, additional seating, new street trees and better pedestrian
crossings to compliment the traffic engineering proposals emerging from this study.

5.3.3.  Wealdstone Square to Kodak Site

The former Kodak site will deliver over 1,000 new dwellings and therefore walking and cycling to and from
Harrow and Wealdstone Station and the High Street should be encouraged through enhancements to the
public realm on these routes.

Figure 5-4 Urban Design Proposals - Wealdstone Square to Kodak Site

KODAK SITE ENTRANCE

G_ . MNew public square.
LOCAL SHOPS + COURT
north BUILDINGS. . Raised table crossing.
. New trees.
WEALDSTONE SQUARE

Tree lighting installed in new or existing trees.
Development site.

Active frontage (existing).

From Mark Proiects Urban Desian Report, 2017

Wealdstone Square, previously known as Trinity Square, is currently in the process of being redeveloped as
a key public space in the town centre. The project is scheduled for completion in 2018 and will provide a new

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic92£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 58



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

events space, parking and improved cycle and walking routes through the square. Improvements at the
junction with Ellen Webb Drive, consisting of enhanced crossing facilities for pedestrians and cyclists and
removal of guard railing, are also separately proposed and will be funded by developer contributions.

The environment under the railway bridge could be improved with a lighting scheme crossing facilities at the
adjacent roundabout could be improved through footway widening and raised tables. Outside of the Court
Building there is the opportunity to plant new street trees.

The Kodak site development will provide a new pedestrian and cycle route through Headstone Manor which
will provide connectivity through the site to the historic museum and green space.

5.3.4. High Street to Byron Park

Wealdstone high street was once connected to Byron Park by Peel Road. This relationship still exists, but has
been compromised by the building of George Gange Way and the Premier House car park which both restrict
pedestrian and cyclist movements to and from the High Street. A new walking route from the High Street
through Premier House site to the A409 George Gange Way is proposed as part of the new Civic Centre
proposal, which is currently being developed. This route will become increasingly important with new
development at the Leisure Centre site.

Figure 5-5 Urban Design Proposals - High Street to Byron Park (Leisure Centre)
NEW CIVIC LINK

Relaid footways.
PEEL ROAD FOOT + CYCLE LINK

- Raised table crossing in asphalt with rolled aggregate..

New trees.
BYRON PARK ENTRANCE

Tree lighting installed in new or existing trees.

Developrent site.

'

Ll

From Mark Projects Urban Desian Report, 2017

The Stuart Road carriageway could be realigned adjacent to the Byron Park entrance to provide a widened
footway on its southern side which could be landscaped with street trees (with canopy lighting) and public
seating, bringing a sense of the park into the street. A raised table with zebra crossing is proposed at the
junction of Stuart Road with Peel Road and Byron Road for the benefit of pedestrians and cyclists.

The carriageway on Peel Road could be raised and resurfaced with an aggregate rolled into the top surface
to calm traffic and give a sense of the link to the park which is proposed to have resin bond gravel paths. The
existing pub sign could be replaced with a bold new sign that acts as an attractor and way finding element.
The large tree on George Gange Way could also be lit as a way finding element.

Consideration should be given to relocating the existing crossing across George Gange Way to better align it
with the new link to the High Street through the new Civic Centre development.

5.4. Urban Design London (UDL) Design Surgery

LBH attended an Urban Design London (UDL) panel in May 2016 to discuss the TfL Major Scheme proposals.
The Panel were impressed by how much work had already been carried out to explain the proposed new
movements for buses and cyclists, as part of the boroughs step one major scheme bid. However, LB Harrow
were encouraged to be more ambitious with their aspirations for Wealdstone and were asked to reconsider
the project as a placemaking scheme that uses traffic management and an exemplary public realm to achieve
its objectives.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver393i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 59



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Due to the proposed increase in population and number of developments in Wealdstone, the development
strategy should be well co-ordinated between the Transport and Regeneration departments to ensure their
objectives align. The workshop noted that the LBH should consider pedestrian movements, the station
forecourt, cycle storage facilities and the ‘slow-street’ interventions needed to make the streets feel welcoming,
civilised and green in addition to the relationship between buildings and public spaces being key.

LB Harrow was urged to define the spaces in the town centre and set the circumstances for how they want
people to use them. This will help the area to develop its own character and should shape how traffic is
managed. The new Civic Centre is critical to the success of the project and the Panel advised LB Harrow to
consider the significant benefits a ‘Civic Square’ could have at the heart of the scheme. The borough should
clearly demonstrate how the scheme will make Wealdstone a better place for people, with better spaces,
facilities and infrastructure.

5.5. Urban Design Summary

The urban design issues and opportunities are summarised as follows:

e Several public realm issues have been identified across the study area, focused around the station,
High Street, The Bridge and the links to Byron Park and the Kodak site;

e The existing wider connectivity to and from Wealdstone, particularly for pedestrians and cyclists,
are poor;

e Improving links to Wealdstone will become increasingly important due to the large number of
proposed developments;

e A separate scheme, Wealdstone Square (formerly named Trinity Square) includes a new public
space and improved public realm between the eastern end of Headstone Drive and the High Street;

e Urban design proposals have been developed for the area outside Harrow & Wealdstone station, to
better connect the station with the High Street;

e Urban design proposals have also been developed to better link development sites to the High
Street, particularly for pedestrians and cyclists. This includes the Kodak Site, Byron Park (Leisure
Centre) and existing Civic Centre developments;

e LBH attended a UDL panel in May 2016 to discuss their Major Scheme proposals and were
encouraged to better define the spaces within the town centre and how they should be used.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic94l) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 60



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

6. Base Traffic Modelling

Base traffic modelling has been undertaken using both strategic and local modelling. This process has been
used to determine the current operation of the highway network, to predict the future situation taking account
of all planned development sites in Wealdstone, and to inform proposed intervention options.

As part of the traffic modelling assessment, TfL's strategic West London Highway Assignment Model
(WeLHAM) has been used to determine the future year traffic flows and turning volumes at key junctions within
the study area. The WeLHAM future year base model is used by TfL for forecasting the long-term impacts of
planned development and schemes across west London and is informed by the following suite of TfL London-
wide models:

e The London Transportation Studies model (LTS): A model which uses population and employment
forecasts and other inputs to predict the number of trips to be made in London in the future, where
people travel to and from, when they travel and which transport mode they use.

e The London Land-Use and Transport Interaction Model (LonLUTI): A model which predicts the use
of land for different human activities depending on Government policies and transport investment.

e Railplan Public Transport Assignment Model: A public transport model that predicts the public
transport mode (e.g. rail, underground, bus) and route that a person chooses to get to their destination,
as well as the associated crowding impacts.

These models incorporate all known planned development sites and committed highway improvements across
London, including those in Wealdstone, and therefore the WeLHAM model also takes account of all planned
development sites and committed highway improvements in Wealdstone when last updated.

The outputs of the WeLHAM model have been used to inform the detailed local junction modelling undertaken
to evaluate the traffic impacts of the proposed options on the town centre road network in more detail.

The study area in Wealdstone, including proposed development sites is shown in Figure 6-1.

Figure 6-1 Wealdstone Study Area with Development Sites

N P& S
o LESK

\ == A 5 f’ 4

’)

y/

/,
V/4

/

= I \ P |
— = ~ \ cns -
5 ~Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright'and database right 2016 |
E i =) a7\ J

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver3955.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 61



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

6.1.

Survey Data Collection and Analysis

Traffic surveys were conducted at the junction by Traffic Data Centre on Thursday 9th June 2016. The following
data was recorded during the traffic surveys:

The traffi

Automatic Traffic Counts (ATC) recording volumetric traffic and speed data;
Classified turning counts;

Queue lengths;

Cruise Times;

Pedestrian crossing flows;

Cycle crossing flows;

Frequency of demand for pedestrian crossings;

Pedestrian footfall counts;

Degree of Saturation (DoS) / Underutilised Green Time (UGT); and
Saturation flows.

¢ peak hours identified within the network were as follows:

o Weekday AM Peak Hour 08:00 — 09:00; and
e Weekday PM Peak Hour 17:15 — 18:15.

6.1.1.

Junction Turning Counts

The weekday peak hour flows (in PCUs) are presented within the report in Appendix G. The following trends
were observed:

6.2.

Atkins re

High Street southbound has low traffic flows (around 70 PCUs in the peak hours) as it is restricted to
buses and cycles only;

Low flows were recorded on the High Street northbound, where all traffic is permitted. The highest
flows recorded on the High Street were at the junction with Palmerston Road with 290 PCU during
the AM peak.

A409 George Gange Way (North and South) recorded the highest volume of traffic flow (around 1000
PCUs during the peak hours at the junction with The Bridge) as this is a by-pass route avoiding the
High Street;

High traffic flows were also observed on Ellen Webb Drive with 740 and 716 PCUs during the AM and
PM peaks respectively. These traffic flows are higher than the A409 George Gange Way junction with
the High Street where 642 PCUs were recorded travelling southbound during each peak hour.

Most traffic at the Ellen Webb Drive / The Bridge / Masons Avenue / High Street junction makes ahead
movements on Ellen Webb Drive and Masons Avenue (around 500 PCUs in each peak hour in each
direction);

Right turn flows from The Bridge onto Masons Avenue are low (around 30 PCU per hour);

The highest traffic flows were observed on A409 George Gange Way (North) travelling southbound
during the AM peak (964 PCUs);

Flows turning right from The Bridge onto the A409 are low as this movement is restricted to buses
and cycles only (around 50 PCUs per hour); and

High traffic flows were recorded making east / west movements at the Headstone Drive roundabout,
with 880 PCUs recorded on Headstone Drive (east).

WeLHAM Base Model Review
ceived the WeLHAM model for base year 2012 and forecast years 2021, 2031 and 2041 (AM, IP and

PM peaks). These were reviewed to confirm fitness of purpose for this study, especially for the 2021 forecast
year (specifically 2021).

A technical note, outlining the full process of updating the 2012 WeLHAM model to the 2016 scenario is

provided

in Appendix H.

The WeLHAM modelling study area for Wealdstone town centre is shown in Figure 6-2.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic96£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 62



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 6-2 WeLHAM Modelling Study Area

Junction Types

" =y / \ \ q N @ Prionty Junctkn

Lol S s ez N ¢ - @ Roundabout

L F 80 ! S| @ Roundabout with UTums
© signalised Junction

13 . )
y N
iy

b IS L oA
©'Crown cgqyﬂg.hl‘an?l database,right 2016

" Contains Ordnancé Survey data

N i o T Vi ¥ i A

The base year 2012 network was reviewed and compared against the existing road network. This identified
the need to modify the model to incorporate additional road links so that it would accurately represent the
existing situation at the level of detail required for this study.

The base year network was updated to reflect the latest road network for year 2016, including highway
schemes completed between 2012 and 2016.

Due to variations in the traffic survey observed flows and the modelled flows, the model matrix was examined
and adjusted to uplift the flows to 2016 levels based on London Transport System Model (LTS) and WeLHAM
data.

Although traffic flows were uplifted from 2012 to 2016 levels, there were some junctions where the difference
between modelled and observed flows was outside an acceptable level of correlation. Therefore, the model
matrix was adjusted in accordance with best practice to achieve a better level of correlation between modelled
flows and the 2016 observed traffic flows, and thereby ensure the model represented the existing situation as
accurately as possible.

6.3. Base LinSig Modelling

A traffic modelling assessment has been undertaken in Wealdstone Town Centre as part of the TfL Model
Auditing Process (MAP), to support the assessment of the current highway network to inform proposed design
options. The use of LinSig to assess the operation of the existing network and proposed schemes was agreed
with TfL during the TfL MAP Stage 1 Meeting held on Tuesday 315t May 2016.

The study area included in the LinSig base model is shown in Figure 6-3. The aim of the LinSig modelling was
to assess the current traffic conditions within the study area and create a base model against which proposed
intervention options can be tested. The LMAP Stage 2 and 3 were audited and approved by TfL, with the
validated Base Models being taken forward to test the proposed options. The LMAP 2 and 3 report is in
Appendix G with the base modelling process outlined below.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver397i.0 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 63



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 6-3 Signalised Junctions in the LinSig Model Network

Py BB OB\

2\ | A409 George Gange Way /
High Street

\V A409 High Street

“‘ . / Locket Road
e

r o
C3
i
nt

Wealdstone

7,

o - Q‘S““”“" AD

_ High Street/
1***" Palmerston Road

Pav

Leis
A409 The Bridge / Cer
George Gange Way

: . (5
Ellen Webb Drive / The
Bridge / High Street /
Masons Avenue

) L= 2
T\

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2016

L — - ——

v :r;‘.(m

S
¥ 7o
- F -l

|

A base LinSig model network was prepared for the following junctions in Wealdstone:

A409 High Street / Locket Road;

A409 High Street / A409 George Gange Way;

High Street / Gordon Road

High Street / Canning Road;

High Street / Palmerston Road;

High Street / Masons Avenue / The Bridge / Ellen Webb Drive; and
The Bridge / A409 George Gange Way.

In addition, the following junctions were modelled using TRL Junctions 9 (ARCADY and PICADY):

Headstone Drive / Princes Drive / Hailsham Drive roundabout;

A409 George Gange Way / Palmerston Road roundabout;
Christchurch Avenue / Masons Avenue / Byron Road mini-roundabout;
A409 Station Road / Marlborough Road; and

A409 Station Road / Milton Road / Rosslyn Crescent.

The purpose of the base modelling was to produce validated models that accurately represent the existing
performance of the highway network in Wealdstone town centre and could be used for testing proposed
intervention options against.

6.3.1. Degree of Saturation Results
The Degree of Saturation (DoS) results are presented in Table 6-1. Arms with DoS 90% or above are
considered to be operating over practical capacity, so are highlighted in red. Arms approaching practical
capacity, between 75-90% DoS, are highlighted in orange, and arms operating well within practical capacity,
under 75% DoS, are highlighted in green.

The modelled DoS on all arms were validated within five percent of the observed values during each of the
peak hours.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versic98£) | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 64



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study

Table 6-1

Modelled Degree of Saturation Results — 2016

Junction

Degree of Saturation (DoS) %

Approach
bp PM Peak

AM Peak

A409 High Street /
Locket Road

Locket Road

High Street (S) Ahead

High Street (N)

A409 George
Gange Way / High
Street

A409 George Gange Way

High Street (S)

A409 High Street (N)

High Street /
Palmerston Road

Palmerston Road

High Street (S) Ahead and Left

High Street (N)

Ellen Webb Drive /
The Bridge / High
Street / Masons
Avenue

Masons Avenue

The Bridge Ahead and Left

Ellen Webb Drive Ahead

High Street

The Bridge / A409
George Gange
Way

A409 George Gange Way (N)

The Bridge Right

A409 George Gange Way (S)

The modelled DoS results show that the Ellen Webb Drive approach is at practical capacity in both peak hours,
and the High Street (south) at the junction with the A409 is over practical capacity during the PM peak. The
A409 High Street (North) and Masons Avenue approaches were modelled with over 80% DoS in one or more
peak hours, so although they are currently within practical capacity, they may exceed this if more traffic
pressure is applied to the network. Therefore, these approaches in the network show the current traffic
pressure points, which may be exacerbated in future scenarios.

6.3.2. Queue Length Results

The modelled Mean Maximum Queue (MMQ) and observed maximum queue results, in PCUs, are presented
in Table 8-1. Approaches where long queues were observed (around 10 or more PCUs) have been highlighted
in red.

Generally, the modelled queue lengths correlate well with the observed queue lengths on most approaches.
There are disparities between the observed and modelled queue lengths at A409 High Street / Locket Road
(29/086) and A409 George Gange Way / High Street (29/079). Using the traffic survey video footage, the
following observations have been made:

e The main reason for longer observed queueing is due to the interaction between the two junctions.
Queues build up on A409 High Street (South), High Street (South) and A409 George Gange Way
when the green signals at junction 29/079 coincide with a red phase on High Street (South).

e Bus stops to the north and south of the A409 High Street / Locket Road junction exacerbates queues.

The queues which build up during the red phase clear relatively quickly and all queues clear during the green
phase.

Table 6-2 Observed Average Maximum and Modelled Maximum Queue Lengths — 2016 (PCUs)
Queue Length (PCUs)
Junction Approach AM Peak PM Peak
Observed | Modelled | Observed | Modelled
Locket Road 1 2 2 3

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versggi.o | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 65



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Queue Length (PCUSs)
Junction Approach AM Peak PM Peak
Observed | Modelled | Observed | Modelled

A409 High Street / High Street (S) Ahead 11 5 12 9
Locket Road High Street (S) Right 3 - 7 -
High Street (N) 12 5 11 6
A409 George Gange Way 14 10 20 12
A409 George High Street (S) 8 7 15 9

Gange Way / High :
Street A409 High Street (N) Ahead 13 12 12 11
A409 High Street (N) Right 3 - 2 -
Palmerston Road 5 4 6 5
High Street / High Street (S) Ahead and Left 3 2 4 2
Palmerston Road High Street (S) Right 2 - 2 -
High Street (N) 2 1 3 1
Masons Avenue 16 14 16 11
Ellen Webb Drive / The Bridge Ahead and Left 4 3 5 3
The Bridge / High The Bridge Right 1 - 1 -
Street / Masons Ellen Webb Drive Ahead 16 25 11 14
Avenue Ellen Webb Drive Left 6 - 4 -
High Street 7 5 7 6
The Bridge / A409 A409 George Gange Way (N) 9 12 8 10
George Gange The Bridge Right 1 1 2 2
Way A409 George Gange Way (S) 7 8 8 11

As highlighted in the results, there are many approaches to junctions that experience heavy queueing during
the traffic peak hours. The following areas of traffic pressure were noted within the study area:

e There is notable queueing at the Locket Road and A409 / High Street junctions. As the two junctions
are close together, but the signals are not linked, the interaction between the junctions exacerbates
the queueing with queues often observed blocking back from the Locket Road junction to the southern
junction.

e The junction outside Harrow and Wealdstone station is particularly busy, with long queues observed
on both the Ellen Webb Drive and Masons Avenue approaches.

e The highest traffic volumes were observed on the A409 George Gange Way; therefore, queueing was
observed on the A409 George Gange Way (N), with queues extending back to the Palmerston Road
roundabout.

6.4. LinSig Base Modelling Results Summary

The results of the validated base LinSig model show that generally, the Wealdstone Town Centre network is
within theoretical capacity during the peak hours assessed, however congestion and queueing were observed
within the town centre. The junction outside the station (High Street / Ellen Webb Drive / Masons Avenue / The
Bridge) is over theoretical capacity (90% DoS) on the Ellen Webb Drive approach during the both peak hours.
The Masons Avenue approach is also approaching theoretical capacity, with results of 86% and 81% DoS in
the AM and PM peaks respectively. Long queues were observed on both Ellen Webb Drive and Masons
Avenue during both peak hours, with queues not clearing during one cycle of green time.

There is also pressure on the highway network with high DoS and observed queueing at the top of the High

Street, at both the A409 High Street / Locket Road and the High Street / A409 George Gange Way junctions.
During a site visit and observing video footage, traffic was observed from High Street (S) at the Locket Road

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | VersilOOl 6 November 2017 | 5147962 66




Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

junction blocking back to the A409 George Gange Way / High Street junction as the traffic signals at the two
junctions run on a Vehicle Actuated (VA) system and are not linked.

High traffic volumes were observed on A409 George Gange Way (North and South) and have high volumes
of traffic flow (around 1000 PCUs during the peak hours at the junction with The Bridge) as this is a by-pass
route avoiding the High Street. However, the A409 / The Bridge junction currently operates within capacity as
the ahead movements receive long green times because the right turn from The Bridge is only permitted for
buses and cyclists.

6.5. WeLHAM Future Year Base Model

The 2021 WeLHAM model supplied by TfL takes account of most of the development opportunities planned in
the Wealdstone area. There are 13 identified sites where the planning data for the developments has been
collated and the trip generation calculated, which are identified in Appendix A.

The 2021 WeLHAM model was modified where appropriate to be consistent with the adjustments made to the
2016 base model. It was also amended to incorporate the following committed schemes to be implemented by
year 2021 that where not already accounted for in the 2021 model:

e Cecil Road / Headstone Drive — new signalised junction;
e Harrow View / Parkside Way — Localised widening of existing signalised junction; and
e  Whitchurch Lane / Wemborough Road - Localised widening of existing signalised junction.

Outputs from the 2021 future year WeLHAM model indicate that there will be an overall marginal reduction in
traffic flow on roads within the study area in the future, despite the overall increase in the quantum of
development within Wealdstone. This is likely to be because there will be a substantial overall reduction in car
parking provision as a result of the redevelopment of many sites. Therefore, the overall increase in the number
of trips generated by the proposed intensification of development in Wealdstone are forecast to be made
predominantly by modes of transport other than the private car, especially for commuting trips. Table 6-3
provides a comparison of traffic flows on key links from the 2016 Base and 2021 Do minimum WeLHAM
models.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | VerlOlO | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 67



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study

Table 6-3

Two-Way Base 2016 and WeLHAM Do Minimum 2021 Traffic Flows (PCUSs)

Road name and

AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour

. . 2021 2021
direction $|016 Do-min | Change % 2016 Do-min | Change v
ow flow Change | flow flow Change
é‘gg High Street- | gg1 | 595 14 21% | 457 | 445 12 | 2.6%
at%g High Street- | gog | 512 54 97% | 603 | 606 3 0.5%
Locket Road - (wb) | 6 6 0 0.0% 6 6 0 0.0%
Locket Road - (eb) | 192 214 22 115% | 277 273 4 1.4%
Byron Road - (sb) 576 603 27 4.7% 209 292 -83 39.7%
Byron Road - (nb) | 130 115 15 | -11.5% | 108 64 44 | -40.7%
Christchurch o o
Avonuo - (wb) 837 760 77 9.2% | 881 800 81 -9.2%
Christchurch 854 738 116 | -13.6% | 892 841 51 5.7%
Avenue - (eb)
(ijt‘)")way Approach - | g5 | gg5 77 95% | 1,002 | 1005 | -3 0.3%
gf)';""ay Approach - | 4 195 | 1196 1 0.1% | 897 820 77 -8.6%
'(*Vftf‘)dStO”e Drive- | 669 | 568 | -101 | -151% | 700 | 498 211 | -29.8%
'(je‘ff)‘dsmne Drive - | 908 772 136 | -15.0% | 659 739 -80 12.1%
Cecil Road - (sb) 303 200 103 | -34.0% | 284 265 19 6.7%
Cecil Road - (nb) 101 67 34 | -33.7% | 266 185 81 -30.5%
TOTAL inbound | 3,880 | 3,717 | -163 | -42% | 3548 | 3,311 237 | -6.7%
TOTAL outbound | 3,938 | 3,714 | -224 | -57% | 3,702 | 3,528 174 | -4.7%
Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi102| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 68



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

7. Design Options

As outlined in Section 5, an initial stakeholder workshop was held to identify issues and opportunities within
the town centre. Following this workshop, an optioneering process was undertaken by Atkins to develop
several schemes that could be considered to tackle the issues identified throughout the process. An appraisal
of the proposed schemes was undertaken by Atkins and at the second stakeholder workshop, with the results
outlined below.

7.1.  Option Generation

Our approach has been to develop several concept options for interventions. These have subsequently been
assessed, using an evaluation framework and during two stakeholder workshops, in terms of their relative
advantages and disadvantages on a set of criteria directly aligned with the objectives of the study. The concept
option plans are included in Appendix | and Figure 7-1 to Figure 7-11 and a description of the key interventions
are summarised in Table 7-1 below. Ten initial concept options were developed by Atkins, followed by a further
option by Atkins and another developed by the LBH for the TfL Major Scheme bid.

Table 7-1 Wealdstone Town Centre Feasibility Options

Option |Name Details

1 Do minimum e Retain existing traffic management arrangements.

e Re-design junctions and links to improve pedestrian and
cycle links and improve the public realm in the town centre.

2 High Street two-way and e Two-way operation restored on the length of the High Street.
Palmerston Road closed e Closure of the Palmerston Road arm of the A409
roundabout.
e Level surfaces outside the station and from Canning Road
to the A409 junction.
e Improved junctions, links and public realm as in Option 1.
3 Headstone Drive Two-Way e Allow two-way traffic on Headstone Drive and Canning
Road.

e Downgrade junction outside the station.
e Potential option to close Ellen Webb Drive to traffic.

4 New link to Palmerston Road e Create new carriageway link from Ellen Webb Drive to
Palmerston Road through public house development site.

e Downgrade junction outside the station.

e Potential to close Ellen Webb Drive south of development
site and release land for development.

a) The Bridge and High Street |e Bus and cycle only northbound and southbound on High
(Palmerston Road to A409) Street between Palmerston Road and A409.

bus only e Servicing on High Street to take place off peak.

e New cycle and pedestrian link through the public house
development site.

b) The Bridge and High Street |e As Option 5a.

5 (Palmerston Road to A409) |,  Headstone Drive east of Cecil Road to operate as one-way
bus only and Headstone eastbound with access onto High Street via Trinity Square.

Drive one-way e Access to A409 from the west would be via Ellen Webb
Drive — High Street — Palmerston Road.

c) The Bridge and High Street |e  As Option 5a.

(Palmerston Road to A409) |,  Mason Avenue eastbound only west of Herga Road
bus only and Masons Avenue (western access).

Eastbound Only

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1030 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 69



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Option | Name Details
6 High Street bus only (Masons e Bus and cycle only northbound and southbound on High

Avenue to A409)

Street between Ellen Webb Drive and A409.
Servicing on High Street to take place off peak.

Access to A409 from the west would be via Ellen Webb
Drive — The Bridge.

All movement signalised junction at the A409/ The Bridge
junction.

New cycle and pedestrian link through the public house
development site.

Potential to downgrade Palmerston Road and routes east-
west bus routes along Palmerston Road with new bus stops.

7 High Street pedestrianisation e Close High Street to all traffic between Palmerston Road
(Palmerston Road to A409) and A409.
e Re-route bus services along Palmerston Road and A409.
e Servicing on High Street to take place off peak.
8 High Street two-way and The e Allow general traffic to use High Street in both directions.
Bridge bus / cycle only e Close The Bridge to general traffic to create a dedicated
interchange space outside the station.
9 Headstone Drive and Canning e Canning Road and western end of Headstone Drive
Road bus / cycle only restricted to buses and cycles only.
e Revised route for east-west buses.
10 | LBH Major Scheme bid e As summarised in Section 7.2.2 below.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi104| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 70




Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-1 Option 1 - Do Minimum

L) e
W o e e\ X | T T
A : = 7/

-
ol

(In Progress / Planning Stage) !

Development Site
(Scoping Stage) .

Junction improvements ()
Gateway Feature | W=

Public Realm
Improvements - X

Study Area

o % 2 Tk u & ; & 7
ATKINS- | Option 1~ Do Minimum Figure 1

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1050 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 7-2 Option 2 — High Street Two-Way and Palmerston Road Closed
. o V¥
<\ 17l <
ARy
()
| i .k' I";- —
{T' = * J \ . \
: —-—-_:.—.:':l_fl
Level surfaces on High o™ 4
Street (Masons Avenue &
to Palmerston Road and e
Canning Road to A409) < :
Allow general traffic to use the =
\ A High Street in both directions
- =
| | T
i | b ® in
1‘"‘ = \7 L) { l {
) Close Palmerston Road arm @
\ = of the roundabout . ()
/ Ny : suvme =
' = i . =
4 ¥ 1oy E o ‘ et L
SQEEAY N - il =
o At \ = o;,-.._ ') 4 -
— N - : q \: = "'--q- - — L b =
AN e s ] Bl
— ; 1‘ I ; A I = = |
- e A
L S ! 2
Level surface " X ov
outside the station “ % o
All movements
Key: — signalised junction
Development Site - -":'I
(In Progress / Planning Stage) T T
a\% N
Development Site o
(Scoping Stage) ed ; T N
Level Surfaces N | L s~
Junction Improvements . S A\ by . 2 \
Revised Traffic
Movements \ - a
Road Closure (. \ /8
Study Area . r’__\‘
ATKINS‘ | Option 2 = High Street Two-Way and Palmerston Road Closed Figure 2

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi 106| 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-3 Option 3 — Headstone Drive Two-Way

= - 1
- - =
- D
| [ =
VT = 4 Ll =
i
i
' —
i i \ 4 A
I —\ - _4-’-_'\"‘
11 i \ a6 \‘“{i\_\‘-\l H
N i = * = AN
P A at
]

Allow two-way traffic [\ =
on Headstone Drive e
and Canning Road e
) s ==
\ | =
LS ﬁ o=
” J All movements =
) = signalised junction
=

iz = - —trn

[ == - s - i — jﬂ_
Ao, =

A < — O : ! - L&_‘

L SRR ;_ e 41T Close Palmerston Road jy
/ Y =g | arm of the roundabout
s - P
¥_

g Option to close ~ = =1 ) i
e Ellen Webb Drive W - i
and improve |
pedestrian and GI z =¥/
cycle facilities \ 4 e
Revise junction e O
layout due to ~ ¥
reduced traffic
flow
= :’i 5 =2
i s\
Key: — by T . "r 3
Development site | | LN\ B i o>, >
(In Progress / Planning Stage) SRk "'._’. —
Development Site ' % 7 \ = S ‘ PO, | Lh A »
(Scoping Stage) \ \\§ — \ z \
Junction Improvements . by = L 25 A"\ =
) R e
Revised Traffic T =
Movements \ —
Road Closure (I \ / -/ 4
Study Area =5
ATKINS" | Option 3 - Headstone Drive Two-Way Flewre 3

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1070 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 7-4 Option 4 — New Link to Palmerston Road
. fe ¢
il -
e - ] ”f - 3
|
I'g &
|i Z: i N4
I -\ Vs N . -
=3 / : - : . i ]
&\ Z 8 nr-_
S z =2
New link from Ellen A= =2
Webb Drive to R ryv) (O m i ,‘.‘- —
Palmerston Road o sy ‘
A\l o
LIRS r!
SN s e
- 8 - l | F
P
b fes=] T f -
’ / sy =YY 44 {
i - C=
7 Vro = 5 \ t._;_ 1 | I £
S i Ty & - H ==
- = S . O~ s =
= < T\ < e
S | i, f
= a8 |
yan s !
= e = I
Option to close Ellen y = iin
Webb Drive and ' 3 =, ¥ o
improve pedestrian ﬂ it =2 &,
and cycle facilities = 7,
=) | gl b
Revise junction [ 3
layout due to
reduced traffic flow
oy e
_1 &\
Key: - = 1 W ; = \3
Developmentsite [ | A\ 5 i~ 110>, >
(In Progress/ Planning Stage) B & \" —
Development Site : i) -\ \ S | =
(coping Stage) s R\ < \ W\ q
Junction Im ants. b \ X . - \ - )
{1 a
provem _ S O
Revised Traffic i :
Movements D Y
Road Closure i \ 7 L24
ATKINS- | Option 4 — New Link to Palmerston Road Figure 4

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi 108| 6 November 2017 | 5147962

74



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 7-5 Option 5a — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only
/ i ¥
T_ ¥ ! - P —
== (7=
i 4
|:\[. F
i AR X l
High Street restricted ﬁ
to bus and cycle only
in both directions
and servicing
restricted to off-peak
, 8
/ 5
T4 _'9|. : _‘ﬁ:
At . =) : I ES
-+ - =, . = 8 - - I
B » O‘ | N L O o E ==
- N A q P -...._ ==:=|i =
- ~ | o
- & .“h" /l & - I
L N )
= 7 . — ]
- ‘ z
- ! &
The Bridge restricted = ~ Y
to bus and cycle only ., o
in both directions
A =
\|b __-;= )
— B 4 c M :‘, [ .
=\ WY e N
M= f - =
Key: i -'1 i :—_: = \ | = -
i\ AR A 1
Development Site B\ BN =
(In Progress / Planning Stage) =\ g™ =
Development Site - . -
(Scoping Stage) (. \ =/
Bus/Cyceony [ \ -/4
Study Area T
ATKINS™ | Option 5a — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only Figure 5

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1090 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-6 Option 5b — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only and

Headstone Drive one-way

X

. St
- i \ L ==
= (] e c
— - =
I '.’n:
o i
)
4 —=
| \ Y \
PI\ = _
- = e s—" :
=P g ﬁf*
h ! il
A = High Street restricted
Headstone = _ to bus and cycle only
Drive one-way ~ 'ﬁ“ﬁ'ﬁ\ == in both directions
eastbound Sih bk : and servicing =
Revise junction s
layout as '
Headstone Drive 2N
is one-way -
A
/ = "
’
, -
h Sy -
i - - -
%0
4
= Q’\
i 2
The Bridge restricted
to bus and cycle only
in both directions >
T
= )
; g\ Y
> .0 A\
Key: -'.I'I i ;" N
Development Site R\ ¢ =g
(In Progress/ Planning Stage) _ - A\ S
Development Site  1==1 WL\ = | WA\ G | Qs 5
(scoping stage) == O\ A (VRN = A\!
Jum:‘tionlrnprmmems. AN e
Revised Traffic - : =
T —_— \ o
Bus / Cycle Only B3 \ -/ {
Study Area £ =\
ATK]NS"| Option 5b — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to Ad09) Bus Only and Headstone Drive ane-way Figure

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi 1 10| 6 November 2017 | 5147962

76



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-7 Option 5¢ — The Bridge and High Street (Palmerston Road to A409) Bus Only and
Masons Avenue Eastbound Only

o7 oz ¥
-
\ 1. o
¢ - ¢ /. ;
— -~ e
- B N
' —
iz \ ¢ >
il e -j' """ - =
[ IR 5 - \ — l
2 1 [\ _.—-—-——t-__‘
{0 i i
High Street restricted \ = EE q/||
tob = 3
ic us and cycle only 2 ==
n both directions S
and servicing = :.=='-=;"-:=‘< I
restricted to off-peak 7 s T
c = &
\ =
LR [
| "
Il
/ 3 / =7
i :
A Al 1= Lt {
7)) HRE =
20, 2 \' J Re-routed o
} = X . westbound traffic |
4 5' --t- .
Revise junction N [ NE -
layout due to : =n
? reduced traffic « £ i iy =17
flow '_.i ] R -
i h =2
The Bridge restricted - A s £
to bus and cycle only D —
in both directions | -
Traffic eastbound F
only on Masons
Avenue west of
Herga Road = == .
-':E '?Ii o b \
Key: JL A8 i ~
Development Site B S f y — s
(In Progress / Planning Stage) - Parths NI
Development Site ~ 1== ' \ %
(Scoping Stage) (- ' N A LR = 4\
Junction Improvements . ) s
Permitted Traffic o
Movements . \ E
Bus/Cycleony [ \ -/ 4
Study Area E=] ‘ —
AmNS"l Option Sc—The Bridge and High Street (Paimerston Road to A403) Bus Only and Masons Avenue Eastbound Only Fgwe?

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Verl 1 10 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-8 Option 6 — High Street Bus Only (Masons Avenue to A409)

O
=~ = 29
=
2 g
i (ot { <
; - v,
- ;
: =
| : Y4 N
(| ~ “ |
I i\ e 2 . ““‘\\‘-II. =
i\ A 7 A \‘a‘.@-&‘ﬁ"‘.'." ]
gl i o s
¥ il ==t |
o Z =h===3
igh Street restricted h, : 5 =2
to bus and cycle only = = ..:.ég =z
in both directions N £22% =
and servicing =. ’i‘ﬁg%ﬂ
restricted to off - i_ —
RS LT T o
\) s Halk 1 s
S [l1ma S
il =
" i (I =
iy = 3
|
= \/ s I = 1
= 1| public realm \lll @
ARG ;hgl i improvements | | 11 Oli
5 —/ A tiul s
s 2 A =
4 roy - » - 1 i
. h -r-- - %,
i 4 O‘ o 3 — All movements e
: 4 — signalised junction ]
.'P J — I-'
\Y 3 .
;E - i ] - . ::_'_s‘: =
Access to the - ‘ = A
A409 from {7 = &j
the west | ¢
e} S MRS S, 0
Potential revised - o
route for east-
west bus routes
Key: D . .
Development Site ] ) ,‘; 3 \
(In Progress / Planning Stage) =g\ )
(Scoping Stage) - &) ‘k = S,
Junction improvements (@) ’ =
Revised Traffic ; : =\C " N
A\
Bus / Cycle Only 5] A
Public Realm
Improvements [ D
Alternative Bus Routing <—> \ % <
Study Area =
ATKINS” | Option 6- High Street Bus Only (Masons Avenue to A409) fgres

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi 1 12| 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 7-9 Option 7 — High Street Pedestrianisation (Palmerston Road to A409)
. = ¢
: il I - \ Za
= n‘ = 3
i \
[
.'E. .
—
]!r' 1 \ =
3 3 | [\ -
Gl o 7 \ 4 ﬁ
Close High Street to
all traffic between \ Eal AORve RN
3 environment on
A409 and Palmerston - \ High Street
Road. Servicing 2 '
restricted to off-peak Mt —
St A —— J >
AT
| il 1
I Re-foute north-south
sme— ) bus services along A409
{ — and Palmerston Road
] ! 5 i
3 |
¢ | Re-route east-west 11‘[1 @
& B A busservicesalong | lU
/ Palmerston Road
/ & i =r ——
/ T / = o L;' ] o
- ) % t-.'"'_' 5 / l »)
, 0% - w o Re-routed westbound |~
= ¥ :\ traffic (Option 5¢)
=/ f =
»’ - I~ ;;? =
ot - r% o
S PR =2,
Potential to combine . = | Y% :
with Option S¢c [ S +
Masons Avenue
eastbound traffic only
west of Herga Road g
Key: \
Development Site =
(In Progress / Planning Stage) _[ ’-‘-‘L -
Development Site -y i L —
(scoping Stage) - i RN >4\
Revised Traffic 3 <
Movements
PedestriansOnly || \ s
Alternative Bus Routing <—3 \ /. 4
Study Area - >
ATKINS™ | Option 7 - High Street Pedestrianisation (Palmerston Road to A409) Figure9

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Verl 130 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

79



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 7-10  Option 8 — High Street Two-Way and The Bridge Bus / Cycle Only
. =z 3
i A
. 7t ) S
G
- |
! —
M= \& —
AR Y =3 G A =
Lz = < \ }}‘\"\g.‘.'n 1 [@ll]
i,“:-' . _':
= l \ /
Allow general traffic £
to use the High Street =
in both directions —
wliz
3 = =
& —
| [ 1 !
=] = . = [
= \7 y =
-\ =i o
B ni:l - { i ] | 1
< 4 = | "
/ R - o
’ / 5 1 - L"j
4 cpded ] =" & = |
7 A = ' A ' | =
b » @] Y’ S - = < ! ' = f -% -
Kot — ‘ dindl o ‘:"--_ S— . A=
% T NEA - :
i =: | = !|
- = ) -
- {is:
- 3 — J
1%
=" = ev
Section of The Bridge o
restricted to bus / cycle 2
only. Creation of
dedicated interchange
space outside the station i — =\
,_ :‘ i3 - N
_—— = 1 a
i 4 il 0 \ =]
A : i LR
Keys \\ES )10 N
Development Site § 2\ T\ : - -\ - =
(In Progress / Planning Stage) il B\ = 55 VI =
= L alies \ 2\
Development Site - W\ =il 1 -1 1
(scoping Stage) [ C AN A= =\
3 - —
Bus / Cycle Only =n 5 \
Revised Traffic 5 oo 2%
Movements \ s,
sl = . g
ATKINS™ | Option 8 — High Street Two-Wayand The Bridge Bus / Cycle Only Figure 10

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi 1 14| 6 November 2017 | 5147962

80



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-11  Option 9 — Headstone Drive and Canning Road Bus / Cycle Only

// T &
- g \
e o
k " = \
- 1 - -
e
: N \
’ D / 2
I i i W \¢ 4
= ) )
Y ===
o —
2 Section of Headstone T
Drive and Canning Road =
3 to be bus / cycle only T i
RS = =
; | ) =
5= . 2
Remove some parking | 7/ 7 3 i = O
bays on Headstone Drive - : Revised east-west
and Canning Road =l ,.J. bus routes
7 : D (R ___ i
’ 2 e
i ) =
< ) = i | =
,O.v S A- 4 e B = e
— -
§ NI =il ;
A - E !
- o {I_ 4 4 8
= i,
;‘l ’ n = =
ML =0
N\ AL
& = .Y
=~ o
i X, _I‘."?L )
e = .- 1 = o
>\ B b s
Key: RS ;-' YA ‘. 1 I, ~
Development Site m et | "‘ : \ If (| N S
(In Progress / Planning Stage) el ;c'i L N\ ~
i \ - war W U
Development Site - A\ - R W\ T 5
(Scoping Stage) = > = AN\ ="\
- = -
Bus / Cycle Only - i \
Revised Traffic > ;— /
Movements \ =,
Study Area I 4
ATKINS™ | Option 9— Headstone Drive and Canning Road Bus / Cycle Only Figure 11

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Verl 1 50 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

81



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

7.2.  Option Generation Review Workshop

Ten initial concept options were presented and discussed during the second workshop, held at the beginning
of June 2016. Each option was discussed in relation to addressing the issues identified in the initial workshop
and their ability to meet the study objectives. Stakeholders also made contributions in terms of their respective
opinions and positions.

Urban design proposals for key areas including the Civic Centre, The Woods, The Walkway and the Station
were presented at the workshop. It was discussed that the railway station is a key feature within the town
centre, and for public realm improvements to be focussed here.

The options proposed various alterations to the existing traffic management in the study area and new links
for traffic, buses, pedestrians and cyclists. The following contributions and design comments were made at the
workshop:

e As the relocation of the Civic Centre is an important regeneration scheme in the town centre,
considerations should be made for increased pedestrians and cyclists to access the site;

e As part of the new Civic Centre scheme, and reducing congestion on the A409, radical changes were
supported for the Palmerston Road roundabout;

e Funding had been secured for a Cycle Quietway route between Headstone Drive and Canning Road,
which should be taken account of and may impact options to open Headstone Drive to traffic;

e Opening Headstone Drive to traffic would also remove the pedestrian area proposed in the Trinity
Square scheme, although the option should not be discounted if it brings overall benefits to the area;

e Opening Headstone Drive may also cause delay to north — south bus routes, due to a high east — west
traffic flow; and

e Stakeholders from TfL Surface Transport were concerned that opening the High Street to general
traffic in both directions would provide little economic benefit without more on-street parking, however
providing more parking may cause delay to buses.

Following the option generation workshop, the following stakeholders held the following views on the proposed
options:

e A representative from LBH Traffic and Parking felt that the current operation and traffic management
on the High Street works well, so major changes may not provide sufficient benefits but tweaking the
existing arrangements may be beneficial.

e |t was also felt that proposals to increase east — west connections were important.

e A representative from LBH Regeneration indicated a preference for two-way operation for traffic on
Headstone Drive and Canning Road.

e A representative from TfL Surface Transport indicated a preference for a scheme providing bus only
access in both directions along the High Street.

Following the workshop, Atkins were to develop and score the concept options using an evaluation framework
based on the objectives of the study.

7.2.1. Wealdstone Square Project

As discussed in the second stakeholder workshop, an independent complimentary scheme to the Wealdstone
Town Centre study was being developed. The scheme aims to introduce a public square in Headstone Drive
at the High Street end, to act as a focal point in the town. The scheme started as a successful bid to the GLA
called Trinity Square, but was rebranded Wealdstone Square during design. The proposed design of
Wealdstone Square is in Figure 7-12. The scheme is being funded by the Greater London Authority (GLA)
Regeneration Fund.

The Wealdstone Square project was an important consideration when evaluating the concept design options
for Wealdstone, as some presented a direct conflict with the proposed scheme.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versil 16| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 82



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 7-12 Wealdstone Square Scheme Design

Proposed plan @ 0z X 03

gLy
U

\@)
I
>

A famity of three related. but D
distinct spaces can be formed
A.Dwell Space

B. Host Space

C. Service Space
Each of these is presented in L —|‘—,— r
detail overleaf. gL

[

Holy Triniey Church

U T B O TR FARR A ‘! """"""""
T Jflmh U T i A5 G e ¢
A e A
: I T W pace’ 7
—a. - owe [ i f o I
- ' - i
e L B
: 3 S | 4 5
A T S MG IO szl /[ £
- — 3
Post Office 3
Promer House
N ,
I :
D Lh;aw-:':(‘uun“nm E E
e — - ——
{01 oistgherbine ~ H
[ T ——— )
Provided by London Borough of Harrow, 2017

»

Q

7.2.2. Major Scheme Bid — Wealdstone Town Centre

Alongside this Transport Study, the LBH have developed and submitted an application to TfL LIP Major
Schemes fund for an improvements scheme for the High Street, Wealdstone. The scheme was developed on
the basis of the Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan, with a number of new homes and businesses
proposed for the area over the next 15 years. The intensification of development will place greater demands
on the existing transport network and public realm in the area which is already struggling to cope with the
existing levels of traffic. The general appearance, design and condition of the public realm is tired and
unattractive and not conducive to encouraging new businesses to come to the area. Wealdstone is an area of
deprivation which the Council seeks to revitalise through its regeneration plans.

The key issues identified in the Major Scheme bid directly align with those in the transport study, and are as
follows:

Poor quality of public realm and overall appearance, cluttered and excessive street furniture,
Perceived safety concerns and fear of crime from overall appearance and tone of area,

Traffic congestion and delay on main road network affecting journey time reliability, particularly buses
Poor environment for pedestrians, segregation by railway and SRN, excessive vehicle dominance,
Local cycle routes have complex routes and motor vehicle dominance makes access difficult,

Poor junction design with underutilised space for other modes.

The proposed scheme design, developed by LBH as part of the major scheme bid is shown in Figure 7-13 and
Appendix J.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Verl 170 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 83



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Figure 7-13  LBH Major Scheme Proposed Design
oY | | =
—=——na||5]
L B

20 o o bk o AR s High St
 Cua i st i s o ety s s

T A=
3 \ ’)\“\
N\
> s
R\ (
L
| ek, st | Cyche nhs. N — B = g nd ratendtmation of stret b, 20 rph speed bl
€ B |
& ; .
)_ n x‘:_.—ﬁ:‘f
[ T
oy & L=
2 / B "/%ffgi\ -
e EDESRm N e e
B - HIGH STREET, WEALDSTONE
— (- arroa’ IMPROVEMENT SCHEME
_:-::—_-‘ LONDON
OssgedtyNabeel Shahid it % Bl | e PROPOSED MAJOR SCHEME
BEAETEISmTATIRSY Tel: 020 8863 5611
RS Fax; 020 8420 9611

The proposed design changes in the study area are summarised below:

7.2.3.

Raised table junction at A409 High Street / Locket Road;

Mini-roundabout junction to replace signals at the A409 George Gange Way / High Street junction;
One-way operation on the High Street northbound, between Canning Road and the A409 junction;
One-way link for buses and cyclists only on Canning Road (west);

Closure of Palmerston Road eastbound, making the road one-way westbound;

Conversion of High Street / Palmerston Road from signalised to priority junction;

Footway and carriageway reconstruction along the length of the High Street;

Develop public realm and space outside Harrow and Wealdstone station; and

An extension of the existing 20mph zone to include the whole study area.

Station Road Major Scheme (Harrow Town Centre)

The Better Streets programme, established in 2009 has developed schemes aimed at transforming London’s
public spaces and street networks. The initiative aims to effectively understand the function of different places
in order to support economic vitality, social wellbeing and environmental sustainability. The principles outlined
in Better Streets should be considered, in conjunction with the policy guidelines above, to develop a design for
Wealdstone town centre that offers a functioning highway network in addition to proving a place that
encourages walking and cycling in addition to providing a place where people wish to gather and relax The
document proposes the following guiding principles:

Understanding function: a retail high street, a residential road, a place of cultural activity, a busy
through route or other use such as park space. The streets in this scheme serve various functions,
with the A409 being used as a by-pass where the movement of traffic is prioritised, whereas the High
Street is ranked equally on the ‘movement’ and ‘place’ matrices;

Imagine a blank canvas: every feature that remains or is replaced should be challenged and carefully
justified;

Decide on the degree of separation: Ideally segregation should be avoided;

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versil 18| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 84



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Reflect character: the street is the setting to the buildings or street frontage and the buildings frame
the street; and
e Go for quality: good workmanship and attention to detail and finishes can make all the difference.

The Better Streets Delivered (September 2013) outlined a number of completed schemes within London and
the lessons learned from them. At the time of publication, over 80 projects had been delivered as part of the
scheme, which included the Harrow Town Centre Station Road scheme.

The major scheme bid developed for Wealdstone town centre used the Station Road scheme, completed in
June 2011, as a model. Station Road in Harrow, located to the south of Wealdstone town centre, underwent a
£3.6 million improvement scheme. The scheme was awarded £2.4 million Major Scheme contribution to
improve the 500-metre study area, tackling the problems of uneven footfall, excessive street clutter and a
confusing on-way bus system.

The scheme involved a public realm review, updating it with functional, accessible spaces to improve the
shopping experience, re-ordering traffic flows including simplifying bus routes and increasing access for
pedestrians and cyclists. The area is now attractive to all users, making Harrow more appealing for both
existing users and those unfamiliar with the area. It is hoped that the success and lessons learnt from the
Station Road scheme can act as a catalyst and template for further improvement within the borough,
particularly by bringing regeneration north to Wealdstone town centre.

A before and after of part of the Station Road scheme (from Better Streets Delivered) is shown in Figure 7-14.

Figure 7-14  Harrow Station Road Major Scheme

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Verl 190 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 85



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

8.

Shortlisting of Options

To assess each of the concept options, an appraisal scoring system was developed based on the study
objectives. The range of scores applied in the appraisal process are outlined in Table 8-1. The scores represent
a comparison of the proposal to the existing situation. The results of the options appraisal are shown in Figure
8-1, with a ranking of 1 to 12 given to each option based on the total score.

Table 8-1 Appraisal Scoring

Score |Impact

+3 Significant improvement on existing situation
+2 Noticeably better than existing situation

+1 Marginally better than existing situation

0 No different to existing situation

-1 Marginally worse than existing situation

-2 Noticeably worse than existing situation

-3 Significantly worse than existing situation

A high-level appraisal was undertaken for each concept option against the following criteria:

Highway operational performance: impact of the proposed option on the highway network, including
the impact on journey times, queue lengths and the impact on freight traffic (LGVs and HGVs).
Pedestrian environment: implications on pedestrian movements within the town centre, particularly
east-west due to the Harrow View (Kodak site) development, connections between Harrow and
Wealdstone station and the High Street and connections to other key development sites outlined in
the H&W AAP.

Cycling environment: measured similarly to the pedestrian environment scores, looking at the impact
proposals will have on connections to the town centre for cyclists.

Public transport: a focus on maintaining journey times for buses and enhancing connections to public
transport from the town centre.

Public realm: improving the quality of the public realm in the town centre, particularly along the High
Street and Headstone Drive (alongside LBH’s Trinity Square scheme), reducing street clutter across
the study area and improving air quality.

Regeneration: facilitating regeneration in the town centre and promoting economic growth.

Waiting and loading: impacts of the proposal on on-street parking and servicing.

Other considerations: ease of implementation, estimated cost of the scheme and third party land
requirements.

8.1.1. Option Appraisal Workshop

A third workshop was held at the end of June 2016 to present an evaluation framework that had been
developed by Atkins (Figure 8-1) and score the options against the study objectives. The design options were
re-considered from the second workshop, and the evaluation scores presented and discussed. The outcome
of the workshop was to determine the preferred options to take forward for further testing.

The key discussions held at the third stakeholder workshop were as follows:

High Street two-way: benefits were questioned of providing two-way operation for general traffic if
additional parking is not provided. Decision needs to be made as to whether increased short-term
parking provides a benefit or not.

It was suggested that traffic should be able to pass stationary buses at bus stops on the High Street.

It was highlighted that there is a need to consider the long-term parking needs of the new Civic Centre.
As Wealdstone is a District Centre, it should be a location people walk to rather than drive. Therefore,
focus should be on improving walking and cycling routes.

The Trinity Square scheme has since gained approval, been through consultation with stakeholder
and secured funding, therefore delivery of Option 3 may be an issue.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi120| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 86



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

e Some of the highest footfall in the town centre is around Trinity Square, which is predicted to increase
with the proposed Civic Centre relocation.

e Introducing signals at the A409 / Canning Road may cause traffic to queue back onto the High Street.

e The High Street being the only pedestrian-friendly road is not good enough, it was felt that George
Gange Way needs improvement for pedestrians.

e Adding further traffic on the High Street would be detrimental to bus journey times.

e Options should not be considered standalone, but elements could be chosen from a number of options
to determine a preferred option.

e Public realm was deemed important on the High Street, rather than dramatically changing the traffic
operation.

e TfL noted that their focus is around the Mayor’s Transport Strategy, with pedestrians, cyclists air quality
and accessibility important considerations.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver12 10 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 87



88

296.11G | 2107 JoquianoN 9 | 0°9 uoIsIoA | ApmiS podsuel | 85us) UMO | SUOISPIEBM  SUBIIY

%////////////%

N

ONDINVY
34025 V101
€0 Ly L9 € 9 EE° 13 00'€
T T z T 8 T I 6 lejoL gns
€ € € € € € € € € € €
T o o T € 4 z €
k4
00°¢- 00z a8esany
= & le301 ans
=
=
00T 00T
z z
T
T T T T T T T 4 € T T

AN

190 00t 00z ££T 00t 00T 00T 91 91 91 00t 3
v |eoL gns
00'e 00T 00T a8esany 2
o z z eorans | C\]
ano 0
€0 00T 00’1 a8esany
3 € € [e30L gns
oud
00T (3 00T
€ 3

T T 1

4

T

1

T

T

N

00'0

4

T

T

mmmmmmmmm

@suewlopad [euopesado Aemysiy [eao] uo edw 0'F

wnwiuiy og

NOILdO

VIY3LIY¥I LNINSSISSY

¥lomawel uolrenjeag suoiido 1daduo) 811uad UMO | UOISP[ea T-8 21nbi4

Apn)g uodsuel |
QJjU8D UMO | dUOISpleap



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

8.2.

Shortlisted Options

The results of the initial option assessment outlined in Figure 8-1 were presented to LBH officers and TfL
representatives at the third stakeholder workshop. As a result of the option appraisal and subsequent
discussions at the workshop, the following options were rejected as unsuitable for further consideration:

Option 4 (new east-west link) — this option was ruled out due to the difficulty in acquiring the necessary
land to provide a new link to Palmerston Road.

Option 5a, 5b and 5c¢ (bus only for various parts of the High Street) — all three of these options were
ruled out as the bus journey time savings were predicted to be minimal, with limited scope to provide
improvements for pedestrians and cyclists. The schemes would also result in complex traffic
management arrangements within the town centre.

Option 6 (bus only along the High Street) — this option was discounted due to the negative impact on
traffic congestion due to diverted traffic and the fact that this was previously implemented and
removed.

Option 7 (pedestrianisation of the High Street) — discounted due to the impact on traffic congestion
and the resultant impact on bus journey times due to diverted traffic.

Option 8 (High Street two-way and The Bridge bus / cycle only) — although this option scored well on
the evaluation framework, this option was not taken forward due to the resultant reassignment of traffic
and the negative impact this would have on the High Street.

Option 9 (Headstone Drive and Canning Road bus / cycle only) — this option would not provide many
significant benefits and would have a negative impact on on-street parking. It would also be difficult to
implement. With this option, buses would be re-routed through Headstone Drive, Trinity Square and
the junction of the High Street with Canning Road, which would also be likely to have a negative impact
on bus journey times. Consequently, this option scored relatively poorly overall during the evaluation
and was not shortlisted.

Using the outputs of the option appraisal exercise, and discounting Option 8, the top four scoring options were
Options 1, 2 and 3 and 10. During the workshop, it was decided that all four options should be investigated
further to determine the preferred scheme for the town centre. These options were taken forward for the
following reasons:

Option 1 (do minimum) — the cumulative benefits were thought to be significant, and if elements from
other options are advantageous, they could be added to the Do Minimum package.

Option 2 (High Street two-way and Palmerston Road closed) — as Option 1, with the opportunity for
further public realm improvements on Palmerston Road to complement the new Civic Centre
development.

Option 3 (Headstone Drive two-way and Palmerston Road closed) — it was agreed at the workshop
that this option would be tested due to the high score in the evaluation process.

Option 10 (Major scheme bid)- this option is based on the LBH major scheme bid and was discussed
at the UDL Design Surgery. The scheme offers public realm benefits along the High Street and
Palmerston Road, with a proposed new bus link that may generate benefits for bus journey times.

The proposed layouts of the four shortlisted options are shown in and in Figure 8-2 to Figure 8-5 and Appendix

K.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1230 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 89



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 8-2 Option 1 Proposal

N S 2, s G

ATKINS"| e — |

Figure 8-3 Option 2 Proposal

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi124| 6 November 2017 | 5147962

90



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Optio

Tkt
N

X

7
N
S
AN

= N
X NN
RN
W RS N
A

R 7S
AR\
adia

| meeazes roorusy mossz
REPOSED CANAGENAY WENSIG

[ ———
A

1 meres.
[ =R ——
iy

| ATKINS'|

Figure 8-5 LBH Major Scheme (Option 10) Proposal

O]

o 29

ore™

[ TT—r——

- rmway et aving R (vt o s H S+ No v s Ty S i v g S
o ety et st I one ey Rt it e e
Eutar e e e prcteiveny ey

;F! s »a

High Sret Puston Rond pmction

P s ° ot iy
e 3 s e s s o e L.

KEY:

Casisson

Lousi S
— s

Crde e
S Tt
oERE
) LONDON
e
Oespedty._Nabeel Shahid MMUN NMEN P.0. 8ox 39, Civic Cantre,

TR Te; 030 8863 561

SEITTEII TR e

PRSI

K

@B

6

61 63

11026

Sunset Hof
couing.
20 mch s bk AL e igh S
ki 0 conto ety b vt uat ke g ity s s

+ Clom o Pumrston R, it bt o o+ Asputn o mcrs o pedesan | ok o Pec R st
et m
ey

HIGH STREET, WEALDSTONE
IMPROVEMENT SCHEME

PROPOSED MAJOR SCHEME

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1250 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi126| 6 November 2017 | 5147962

92



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

9. Appraisal of Shortlisted Options

9.1. Traffic Modelling Results

Following the workshop, traffic modelling was undertaken for the shortlisted options to assess the likely traffic
impact on the road network in Wealdstone and to determine the preferred option to take forward. The options
were modelled using the 2021 WeLHAM, with the change in flows then used to update the proposed LinSig
models to assess the traffic impacts on Wealdstone town centre.

9.1.1. WelLHAM (2021) Modelling of proposed options

The four shortlisted options have been tested using the WeLHAM 2021 model and the results compared to the
WelLHAM 2021 base model to establish the impact of each one on traffic flows, both within study area and
beyond.

Figure 9-1 to Figure 9-6 show the outputs of the WeLHAM modelling, comparing the actual flows on each link
between the Do Minimum and proposed scenario. In the figures below, blue lines show a reduction in traffic
flow compared to the Do Minimum scenario and green shows an increase. The thickness of the lines indicates
the scale of change in volume of traffic, therefore the thicker the line, the greater the increase or decrease in
the volume of traffic.

9.1.1.1. Option 1 (Do Minimum)

The WeLHAM modelling of Option 1 shows that it is likely to result in minimal change to traffic flows across
the Wealdstone town centre road network. Plans showing the WeLHAM output for Option 1 have not been
included because the change in traffic flow is too small to be visible and so these would simply show the road
network. Option 1 effectively retains the existing traffic flows, therefore providing no benefits or dis-benefits for
the High Street associated with changes in traffic flow, i.e. noise, air quality, traffic delays, severance,
dominance of vehicular traffic over vulnerable road uses, etc. with this option.

9.1.1.2. Option 2 (High Street two-way and Palmerston Road closed)

The WeLHAM modelling of Option 2 shows that it is likely to result in a shift of traffic flow onto the High Street
from the A409 George Gange Way, as shown in Figure 9-1 and Figure 9-2.

Figure 9-1 Option 2 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) AM Peak 2021
o\

T
A

A409 GEORGE
GANGE WAY

ELLEN WEBB DR

_______ :

N
~
/ \ ¥ Reduction in Traffic Flow
D 1A b >
\ e 25 N Increase in Traffic Flow — —
_____ P 2= | \
/( v 5

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1270 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 93



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 9-2 Option 2 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) PM Peak 2021
T

Ei : i

N : \
. ELLEN WEBB DR

Reduction in Traffic Flow =

Increase in Traffic Flow  M—

The main changes in traffic flows predicted as a result of the Option 2 modelling are as follows:

e Allowing general traffic to access the High Street southbound would increase traffic flows along the
High Street;

e Subsequently, this would reduce traffic flows on the A409 George Gange Way; and

e The model also predicts an increase of traffic flows on Masons Avenue, which already experiences
congestion and queueing during peak hours.

By allowing general traffic to use the High Street southbound, this would have a detrimental impact on the High
Street as increased traffic flows would generate more noise and traffic congestion, further reduce air quality
and opportunities for improved facilities in the High Street due to vehicle dominance.

9.1.1.3. Option 3 (Headstone Drive two-way and Palmerston Road closed)

The change in traffic flows from the WeLHAM model, as a result of Option 3, are presented in Figure 9-3 and
Figure 9-4. The WeLHAM modelling predicts that Option 3 will result in a significant reassignment of traffic
away from Wealdstone town centre, from both the High Street and the A409 George Gange Way, onto
inappropriate alternative roads including: Byron Road to the east and Cecil Road to the west. This is due to
the A409 George Gange Way / The Bridge and A409 High Street / A409 George Gange Way junctions being
unable to accommodate the additional traffic demand arising from the scheme, with traffic consequently
diverting onto alternative routes to avoid areas of congestion.

The diversion of traffic away from the main road network and onto more inappropriate minor residential streets

would be highly undesirable and case a significant reduction in the quality of life for residents living in those
streets.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi128| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 94



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 9-3 Option 3 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) AM Peak 2021

A o ’

A409 GEORGE
GANGE WAY
=

HIGH STREET
4 =~
S | ! Tt~
‘ - o L
, _
% ELLEN WEBB DR ™
Lz TR o N
= N MASONS AVE N
% N - Reduction in Traffic Flow

it & R s T AT % Increase in TrafficFlow — I—
E
2 ' \
WeLHAM AM 2021 - Network: V1.145NSIG - 7-1

Figure 9-4 Option 3 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) PM Peak 2021

- Y—

RGE

GANGE WAY

Reduction in Traffic Flow =

Increase in Traffic Flow — I—

WeLHAM PM 2021 - Network: V1.145NSIG  2- 7-17

The key changes in traffic flows predicted due to the Option 3 modelling are as follows:

Significant overall reduction of traffic in the study area, particularly along the A409;
Increased of traffic on Byron Road during both peak hours;

Increase of traffic on Cecil Road during the AM peak hour; and

Increase of traffic on Marlborough Hill during the PM peak.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1290 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

9.1.1.4. Major Scheme Bid (Option 10)
The WeLHAM modelling of Option 10 predicts an increase in traffic flows on the High Street northbound and

Palmerston Road. The changes in actual traffic flows are shown in Figure 9-5 and Figure 9-6. The conversion
of the High Street / Palmerston Road junction from signalised to priority, and the conversion of the A409
George Gange Way / Canning Road from priority to a signalised junction, reduces delay on the High Street

northbound, therefore attracting traffic from the A409 George Gange Way route.

Figure 9-5 Option 10 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) AM Peak 2021

L /

A409 GEORGE
GANGE WAY

A \ \ - kY Reduction in Traffic Flow ~Em—

/ L e ’ \‘\ Increase in Traffic Flow M-
- v : -

WeLHAM AM 2021 - Network: V1.145N5I6 11- 7-17
Figure 9-6 Option 10 SATURN Outputs (Change in Actual Flow) PM Peak 2021

& A \ r| R N J.‘"
/
i"fl‘l

L=

A409 GEORGE
GANGE WAY )i
f
/‘/ /

I\

I o [
|
/|

— |§\ a
=\ /I
. \\ \ i
MASONS AVE ~ ]
~ - -7
~ _ -
N
.
N
A Reduction in Traffic Flow -
- Ay
\ - N
R A Increase in Traffic Flow ~ I—
= 4
- v .
WeLHRM PM 2021 Network: v1.145MsIc 11- 7-17

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi130| 6 November 2017 | 5147962

96



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

The key changes in traffic flows due to Option 10 are as follows:

e Significant reduction of traffic on the A409 George Gange Way due to new signalised junction; and

e Significant increase in traffic along the High Street northbound and on Palmerston Road due to the
introduction of new signals at the A409 / Canning Road alongside the removal of signals at High Street
/ Palmerston Road junction.

9.1.2. Review of Option 10

Since the shortlisting of options for appraisal, there has been a change in London Mayor who has subsequently
published a draft London Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS). The draft was published in June 2017 for public
consultation, which set out a new direction for transport policy. As a consequence, a review of LBH’s Major
Scheme Bid Design (Option 10) has been undertaken to better align with the wider objectives set out within
the strategy as follows:

e Healthy streets and healthy people;
e A good public transport experience; and
e New homes and jobs.

The main challenge identified in the MTS is a growing population in London, coupled with a reliance on private
vehicles. Reducing the need to use cars will provide benefits for all Londoners, by promoting walking, cycling
and public transport as an attractive mode choice. The new Transport Strategy aims to change the way people
travel, so that by 2041 80% of all Londoners’ trips will be made by foot, bicycle or public transport. Currently,
only 64% of trips are made by sustainable modes.

The Mayor has identified the importance of providing reliable bus services as part of a strategy to avoid reliance
on cars. The Wealdstone regeneration programme is anticipated to generate an increase in public transport
use in the area as a consequence of the low car provision development proposed in the future and it will be
important to accommodate the likely increase in demand. Therefore, Option 10 was reviewed to better reflect
the draft MTS. Designs were revised to provide reduced delay to buses, therefore improving bus journey times
and providing bus priority to encourage greater use of public transport, in addition to making further
improvements for pedestrians and cyclists in the town centre. The process generated Options 11A and 11B,
which revised Option 10’s layout to provide greater benefits to buses.

9.1.3. Summary of Proposed WeLHAM Modelling

Following completion of the WeLHAM modelling of the four shortlisted options, local junction modelling was
undertaken on the TfL approved validated LinSig base model for the town centre. The change in traffic flows
between the Do Minimum and Do Something WeLHAM scenarios was inputted into LinSig to determine the
traffic impacts for general traffic and buses in the town centre, resulting from each scheme.

However, as Option 3 results in significant reassignment of traffic onto roads outside of the study area, it was
not considered appropriate to undertake local modelling of this option. The LinSig model would not capture
changes in traffic delay outside of the town centre, therefore providing results that would not be representative
of the overall traffic impact of this option across the wider road network.

Furthermore, with the change of London Mayor and the development of a new draft transport strategy with
new objectives focussing on sustainable transport modes and bus priority, the Major Scheme programme
ceased and has been subsequently replaced by a Liveable Neighbourhoods programme, reflecting a new
healthy streets approach.

Consequently, and following the initial modelling results, two additional sub-options of Option 10 were
developed with elements of the scheme refined to optimise the benefits for the town centre and public transport
to reflect the Mayor’s new transport objectives and revised scheme funding requirements.

The two sub-options of Option 10, labelled Option 11A and 11B, included the following scheme refinements:
e Options 11A and 11B: The junction of the High Street with A409 junction signalised rather than the
proposed mini-roundabout.

e Option 11A: An offside southbound bus lane on A409 George Gange Way between the High Street
and Canning Road and a modified layout at A409 George Gange Way / Canning Road junction, with

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver13 10 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 97



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

a secondary southbound stop line before the proposed signalised crossing on A409 George Gange
Way.

e Option 11B: Two-way bus operation on the High Street north of Canning Road, i.e. no rerouting of
bus services, and the existing layout at the junction of A409 George Gange Way with Canning Road.

The proposed arrangements for Options 11A and 11B are shown in Figure 9-7 and Figure 9-8 and also in
Appendix K.

Both Option 11A and 11B are likely to result in very similar changes in traffic flows to Option 10. Option 11B
would be expected to result in slightly less of a reduction in traffic flows on the High Street and a smaller
corresponding increase on the A409 George Gange Way compared to Options 10 and 11A, especially north
of Canning Road. This was accounted for in the more detailed traffic modelling through a manual reassignment
of traffic flow based on the outputs of the WeLHAM modelling for Option 10.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi132| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 98



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 9-7 Option 11A Proposal

\\\‘. "\\‘\\\“\;‘,’ '@;’:’9

3

2K

5

SR

i X %{( § ‘}} \ .

Ty 0
%, /a“ e
2N
N B 1
\ S e
o s

00
I.III.‘%
Nl

o o “.

i A
L aENZ
5 & "ﬁ\}’”‘ 3

==
==

— a ii..'!i‘!‘! ',

N
0

{
=
ik

i
=

31
= M
i

2 Sy

.!___ — -
! - I
WEALDSTONE TOWN CENTRE TRANSPORT STUDY » OFTION 11a

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1330 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Figure 9-8 Option 11B Proposal

>

> o L) \l”% ‘\ e \
- ’ ‘
<% .,,\Q\ AT

W\ ;@f—sé; 2

=
e

= '%\t\%\\\'\}“\\ Yo :k
e
N

il

%
T

!

yiipjm=m A RENREER0S
13

N

b

T

AN
\};..o" ’,o"ﬁ::?;\%& t‘ g\
ST > ‘,“'\‘§\ %‘\ % \‘?“‘\ .t‘iﬂ
§ £ §{§§§§@$§§}§§ '-‘l | = A . ! ‘1; “‘

-
-

l_

=}
= |

1\

'l %
==

W

g
\) \-tuer“..-""i
\‘ ';;‘i'-.-,.-

T A

)

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi134| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 100



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

9.1.4. Detailed Traffic Modelling Results

Based on the results of the WeLHAM modelling, the outputs were used to update the base traffic flows to
reflect the traffic patterns generated from each ‘Do Something’ scenario in the WeLHAM models. The traffic
flows were updated in the TfL validated base model and the junctions optimised, to predict the proposed traffic

impacts on the Wealdstone town centre network.

9.1.4.1.

Degree of Saturation (DoS)

The DoS results for the shortlisted options, including options 11A and 11B, are presented in Table 9-1,
comparing the base LinSig model results to each of the proposed options. Results with DoS of 90% or more
have been highlighted in red, results over 80% in orange, and all results under 80% DoS in green.

Table 9-1 Modelled Degree of Saturation Results — 2021 (AM Peak)
Degree of Saturation (DoS) %
Junction Approach Base |OPtion |Option |Option |Option |Option Option
1 2 3 10 11A | 11B
A409 High Locket Road
Street / High Street (S) Ahead
Locket Road High Street (N)
A409 A409 George Gange Way
George High Street (S
Gange Way igh Street (S)

/ High Street

A409 High Street (N)

High Street /

Palmerston Road

Palmerston | High Street (S) Ahead and Left
Road High Street (N)
Ellen Webb Masons Avenue
Drive / The .
The B Ah Left
Bridge / High e Bridge Ahead and Le
Street / Ellen Webb Drive Ahead
Masons i
Avenue High Street
The Bridge / | A409 George Gange Way (N)
A409 . ,
The Bridge Right
George e Bridge Rig
Gange Way | A409 George Gange Way (S)
A409 A409 George Gange Way (N)
George ]
Gange Way Canning Road
/ Canning
Road A409 George Gange Way (S)
Table 9-2 Modelled Degree of Saturation Results — 2021(PM Peak)

Degree of Saturation (DoS) %

Junction Approach
A409 High Locket Road
Street / High Street (S) Ahead
Locket Road High Street (N)
A409 A409 George Gange Way
George High Street (S)

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1350 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

101



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Degree of Saturation (DoS) %
Junction Approach Base |OPtion | Option | Option | Option | Option Option
1 2 3 10 11A | 11B

Gange Way A409 High Street (N)

/ High Street

High Street / Palmerston Road

Palmerston | High Street (S) Ahead and Left

Road High Street (N)
Ellen Webb Masons Avenue

Drive / The .
The Bridge Ahead and Left
Bridge / High © Bridge Anead anc -e

Street / Ellen Webb Drive Ahead
Masons ]
Avenue High Street
The Bridge / | A409 George Gange Way (N)
A409 . :
The Bridge Right
George e Bridge Rig
Gange Way A409 George Gange Way (S)
A409 A409 George Gange Way (N)
George
Gange Way Canning Road
/ Canning

Road A409 George Gange Way (S)

The results of the traffic modelling indicate that Option 1 will have a minor impact on the operation of traffic in
Wealdstone town centre, as it proposes only minor changes to the existing situation. Option 2 shows several
approaches exceeding practical capacity, particularly notable at the A409 George Gange Way / The Bridge
junction. All approaches at the junction are predicted to exceed 100% DoS in the Option 2 scenario, therefore
causing delays and congestion for both general traffic and buses. Option 10 shows approaches operating over
capacity at the Ellen Webb Drive / High Street junction and on the High Street at the junction with the A409
George Gange Way. The best results, in terms of DoS, are generated by Options 11A and 11B, with all
approaches operating within capacity during both peak hours, excluding Ellen Webb Drive in Option 11B during
the PM peak.

9.1.5. Queue Length

Modelled queue lengths, for the shortlisted options in both the AM and PM peak hours are presented in Table
9-3 and Table 9-4. Any modelled queues exceeding 10 PCUs have been highlighted in red,

Table 9-3 Modelled Queue Length Results — 2021 (AM Peak)

Modelled Mean Maximum Queue (PCU)
Junction Approach Base |OPtion |Option |Option |Option |Option Option

1 2 3 10 11A | 11B

Street / High Street (S) Ahead 5.2 3.8 6.8 5.3 5.3 5.3

Locket Road High Street (N) 46 | 46 | 54 44 | 44 | 44

A409 A409 George Gange Way 101 71 13.6 2.0 12.6 13.1

George High Street (S) 7.0 7.3 8.0 NA 69 | 119 | 125
Gange Way -

/ High Street A409 High Street (N) 120 | 13.0 | 86 42 | 154 | 158

Palmerston Road 3.9 3.2 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3

High Street (S) Ahead and Left | 2.1 2.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi136| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 102



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Modelled Mean Maximum Queue (PCU)
Junction Approach Option | Option | Option | Option | Option | Option
Base
1 2 3 10 11A | 11B
High Street / High Street (N) 1.0 1.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Palmerston
Road
Ellen Webb Masons Avenue 10.8 9.6 16.5 10.8 11.9 11.5
Drive / The ;
The Bridge Ahead and Left 2 2 4.2 . . 4,
Bridge / High e Bridge Ahead and Le 3 3 3.9 3.6 0
Street / Ellen Webb Drive Ahead 13.6 13.6 22.0 15.5 14.3 16.9
Masons
Avenue High Street 7.0 7.0 10.1 8.0 6.0 6.8
The Bridge / | A409 George Gange Way (N) 12.3 10.5 32.3 14.0 13.9 14.1
G’Z‘(‘)?ge The Bridge Right 1.1 11 | 282 1.1 1.1 1.1
Gange S\;Nay A409 George Gange Way (S) 8.7 12.5 64.1 8.1 8.1 8.1
A409
George A409 George Gange Way (N) 0.3 0.3 0.1 21.5 11.4 7.9
G}aCnge Way Canning Road 0.3 0.3 0.1 86 | 158 | 0.3
ooy | A409 George Gange Way (S) | 0.3 | 03 | 0.2 126 | 77 | 03
Table 9-4 Modelled Queue Length Results — 2021 (PM Peak)
Modelled Mean Maximum Queue (PCU)
Junction Approach Base |OPtion Option | Option |Option |Option Option
1 2 3 10 11A | 11B
Street / High Street (S) Ahead 9.1 5.9 10.0 9.9 101 10.1
Locket Road High Street (N) 58 | 58 | 86 55 | 56 | 56
A409 A409 George Gange Way 12.4 8.4 12.6 3.3 18.1 17.8
George High Street (S) 9.3 7.6 9.8 210 | 130 | 136
Gange Way -
/ High Street A409 High Street (N) 11.6 | 12.8 | 20.4 41 | 168 | 16.4
High Street / Palmerston Road 4.6 4.1 0.0 04 0.3 0.7
Palmerston | High Street (S) Ahead and Left | 2.3 2.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Road High Street (N) 10 | 1.0 | 01 00 | 00 | 00
Ellen Webb Masons Avenue 10.6 9.9 28.1 11.4 11.5 114
Drive / The | 1g Brigge Ahead and Left 32 | 32 | 146 | NA | 30 | 34 | 32
Bridge / High
Street / Ellen Webb Drive Ahead 141 141 17.7 15.7 16.1 16.1
Masons
The Bridge / | A409 George Gange Way (N) 10.1 10.6 48.9 9.8 10.3 9.8
GAeL:)?ge The Bridge Right 16 | 15 | 141 16 | 15 | 16
Gange ?Nay A409 George Gange Way (S) | 11.0 | 16.8 | 69.7 9.9 10.5 9.9
A409 A409 George Gange Way (N) 0.3 0.3 0.8 21.5 9.6 29
George Canning Road 0.1 0.1 1.5 89 | 126 | 02
Gange Way ing : ) : i : i
/ ng:('jng A409 George Gange Way (S) | 03 | 03 | 0.3 172 | 06 | 03
Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1370 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 103




Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

9.1.6. Bus Journey Times

The predicted changes in bus journey times are presented in Table 9-5. The results have been calculated
using average delay per PCU results from LinSig and compared for each link bus services would travel through
in each direction.

Table 9-5 Change in Average Delay per PCU for Bus Routes

Predicted Change in Average Journey Time for Bus Routes (seconds)

AM Peak PM Peak
Option | 'NB | SB |NB+ | EB | WB |EB+| NB | SB |NB+ | EB | WB | EB+
SB wB SB wB

33 bph | 30 bph | 63 bph | 6bph | 6bph |12 bph | 30 bph | 32 bph | 62 bph | 6bph | 6bph | 12 bph

1 2.2 2.3 4.5 3.1 -3.0 0.1 5.3 171 | -118 | -21.2 | -5.1 -26.3

209.8 | 1726 | 3824 | 412 | -62.8 | -21.6 | 278.4 | 2475 | 5259 | 34 -856.9 | -82.5

3 N/A

10 6.3 55.0 | 613 | 233 | -51.5 | -28.2 | 28.2 | 724 | 100.6 | 529 | -23.3 | 29.6

11A | -12.7 | 18.0 5,3 28.7 | -76.0 | -47.3 | -354 | 38.3 2.9 -3.1 -60.8 | -63.9

11B -40 | -145 | -185 | 11.2 | -709 | -59.7 | -339 | -16 | -355 | -16.5 | -66.5 | -83.0

9.2.  Option Costs

A rough order of magnitude construction costs for the shortlisted options are presented in Table 9-6. A high-
level breakdown of the cost estimate for each of the shortlisted schemes is provided in Appendix L.

Table 9-6 Construction Cost Estimates
Option Construction Costs Contingencies Total

1 £580,000 £240,000 £820,000-£902,000
2 £1,130,000 £340,000 £1,470,000-£1,617,000
3 £2,920,000 £1,170,000 £4,090,000-£4,499,000
10 £2,650,000 £800,000 £3,450,000-£3,795,000

11A £2,080,000 £840,000 £2,920,000-£3,212,000

11B £1,700,000 £680,000 £2,380,000-£2,618,000

9.3.  Appraisal Summary

A further appraisal of the shortlisted options has been undertaken, based on the agreed appraisal criteria with
the addition of a Health Streets category. The scoring of options against the ‘Impact on Local Highway
Operational Performance’ and ‘Public Transport Connections’ takes account of the traffic modelling outputs to
inform the scoring.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi138| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 104



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Table 9-7 Appraisal of Shortlisted Options

Option

Category

1 2 3 10 11A 118
Impact on local highway operational performance (Traffic delay) 3 1 0 2 4 5
Improve accessibility for pedestrians 0 1 4 1 3 2
Improve accessibility for cyclists 0 1 4 1 3 2
Improve public transport connections (Bus delay) 3 1 0 2 4 5
Opportunity for public realm Improvements 0 1 1 1 2 3
Facilitate regeneration and economic growth 0 0 4 1 3 2
Impact on on-street waiting and loading 2 2 0 2 2 1
Healthy streets 2 1 0 4 5 3
Ease of implementation 4 1 0 1 2 3
Construction cost 5 4 0 2 1 3
Overall score 19 13 13 17 29 29
Ranking 3 5 5 4 1 1

Scoring (excluding ranking): 0 = worst performing, 5 = best performing

The appraisal of the shortlisted options shows that the best performing options on balance across the appraisal
criteria are options 11A and 11B.

These two options perform the best in terms of: providing opportunities for the proposed public realm
improvements; local highway operational performance, i.e. minimising traffic delay; and public transport
accessibility by providing the greatest bus journey time savings. They also perform very well in comparison to
the other shortlisted options on: improving accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists through improved
connectivity, facilitating regeneration and economic growth; and meeting TfL's healthy streets objectives.
However, these options are likely to be more expensive and disruptive to implement than some of the other
shortlisted options.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1390 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 105



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

10. Healthy Streets for London

Healthy Streets for London is an initiative, developed by TfL, that aims to ensure people and their health are
put at the centre of decision making in London. It ultimately aims to reduce reliance on personal vehicles, in
favour of walking, cycling and using public transport to create a healthy city.

10.1. Healthy Streets Indicators

As outlined in TfL's Transport Action plan, transport has a central role in the health of Londoners. London’s
transport system enables people to access jobs, education, shops, recreation, health and social services, all
of which are essential for a healthy, fulfilling life. A ‘whole-street’ approach is required to make streets more
inviting for walking and cycling and better for health. The indicators of a healthy street environment are shown
in Figure 10-1, which aligns TfL's Transport Action plan and Healthy Streets for London guidance.

There are ten indicators within the Healthy Streets guidance that should be considered when developing
design proposals for public spaces, as shown in Figure 10-1.

Figure 10-1  Healthy Streets Indicators

Pedestrians from
3\l walks of [jfe

People choose t©
Walk, cycle and
Use puplic transpo™

An assessment has been made into the relationship between the Healthy Streets indicators and the existing
and future situation in Wealdstone Town Centre. The following considerations will be made when assessing
the existing situation and developing improvement proposals in the town centre:

Pedestrians from all walks of life — streets should be welcoming places for everyone to walk and spend time.
By improving the public realm in Wealdstone, looking to reduce street clutter, enhance footways and provide
public spaces will all enhance the vitality of the town centre and make it a more desirable place to spend time.
The existing situation includes street clutter and guard railing that reduces space for pedestrians and restricts
movement.

People choose to walk, cycle and use public transport — Wealdstone has a good provision of public
transport, but it is important that all residents can access it, particularly considering new developments.
Designs will be developed that aim to reduce bus journey times in Wealdstone. East-west connections for
pedestrians and cyclists will be vital to connect new residents living in new development sites to the town
centre.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi140| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 106



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

Clean air — high volumes of traffic and congestion is one of the main issues in Wealdstone. Improving air
quality, particularly by reducing traffic and congestion in Wealdstone, delivers benefits to all, reducing unfair
health inequalities.

People feel safe — ensuring people feel safe in Wealdstone will be key to encouraging further use of the town
centre, therefore improving the economic vitality of the area.

Not too noisy — reducing noise in the town centre, particularly from motor traffic, will benefit health of residents
in addition to improving the ambience of the town centre, making it more desirable to shoppers and other
users. Reduction in noise will also encourage further walking and cycling in the area.

Easy to cross — the pedestrian crossing facilities in Wealdstone are detailed in Table 4-4. Although the current
provision is adequate, any additional proposed crossings should be developed considering NMU desire lines
and reducing staggered crossings.

Places to stop and rest — although this study looks to reduce street clutter in the town centre, it will also look
to provide public realm improvements and spaces for pedestrians to sit and spend time in Wealdstone.
Providing spaces to stop will also benefit the local economy, encouraging people to visit and spend time in the
area.

Shade and shelter — enables streets to be used in all weather conditions.

People feel relaxed — more people are likely to visit Wealdstone if motor traffic is less dominant in the town
centre, there is plenty of space to walk and street clutter is reduced. The space outside the railway station is
the entrance to the town centre for many visitors, but currently is not an inviting space with excessive street
clutter.

Things to see and do — improving the public realm in Wealdstone, particularly at identified ‘gateways’ to the
town centre will make people more likely to use the streets. Attractive buildings, planting and street art are to
be considered to improve the current environment. If the environment to walk to the town centre is more
attractive, those making short journeys in private vehicles may be less likely to do so.

10.2. Healthy Streets Assessment

Both the proposed scheme designs and freestanding urban design projects have been assessed in relation to
the ten Healthy Streets indicators, particularly focusing on the impact of each proposal on the High Street in
Wealdstone. Each of the Healthy Streets criteria has been compared against the option proposal, and
subjectively judged as to whether the proposed design has a better, neutral or negative effect to the existing
situation, shown green, amber and red respectively.

Proposed Scheme Design Options

The four shortlisted design options have been considered in relation to TfL's Healthy Streets guidance, with
the results shown in Table 10-1 below.

Table 10-1 Healthy Streets Assessment

Healthy . Design Option

Streets SO Options 10, 11A

inelesin Situation Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 e
Pedestrians Provides limited | Two-way traffic on

from all walks
of life

public realm the High Street
improvements, no | restricts scope to
footway widening widen footways.

on H/S
People Small scale Limited Limited
choose to interventions may improvements improvements
walk, cycle & not significantly proposed for proposed for
use public improve use of pedestrian and pedestrian and
transport sustainable cycle links. Two- cycle links. New
transport. way traffic on H/S signals on H/S
may affect bus may affect bus
journey times. journey times.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1410 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 107



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Healthy Existi Design Option
Streets _X|st|_ng Options 10, 11A
Indicator Situation Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 P and 118

Clean air Provides minimal Improved public
intervention to the realm, pedestrian
existing situation links and improved

bus journey times
may reduce
reliance on cars.

People feel Provides minimal | Provides minimal | Provides minimal

safe intervention to the | intervention to the | intervention to the

existing situation. | existing situation. | existing situation.

Not too noisy | There are areas of | Option 1 provides
congestion and the small scale
junctions to the changes from the
north and south of | existing situation,
the High Street, so likely to have
which generates minimal traffic
undesirable noise. impact.
However, most
traffic uses the
A409.

If traffic increases
on the High Street,
pedestrians may
find it more difficult
to cross.

Easy to cross

Provides minimal Provides minimal
intervention to the | intervention to the
existing situation. | existing situation.

Places to
stop and rest

Shade and
shelter

Provides minimal Provides minimal Provides minimal | Provides minimal
intervention to the | intervention to the | intervention to the | intervention to the
existing situation. | existing situation. | existing situation. | existing situation.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi142| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 108



Wealdstone Town Centre

Transport Study
Healthy . Design Option
Streets Existing Opti 10, 11A
i i ; g . ions 10,
indicator Situation Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 P and 118
People feel Provides minimal Provides minimal
relaxed intervention to the intervention to the

existing situation.

Provides minimal

intervention to the

existing situation,
but supports
regeneration.

Things to see
and do

Provides minimal

intervention to the

existing situation,
but supports
regeneration.

existing situation.

Provides minimal

intervention to the

existing situation,
but supports
regeneration.

Provides minimal

intervention to the

existing situation,
but supports
regeneration.

Options 10, 11A and 11B scored the best in the Healthy Streets assessment, due to opportunities to widen
footways, improve the public realm by providing benches and places to rest and improving links for public

transport, pedestrians and cyclists.

Options 2 and 3 performed poorly in relation to the Healthy Streets objectives, as both options may increase

traffic and congestion in the High Street.

Option 1 has broadly neutral benefits on the High Street, as it offers limited improvements compared to the

existing situation.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1430 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962

109



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

11. Conclusions and Recommendations

Atkins has been commissioned by the LBH to undertake a Transport Study for Wealdstone town centre to
identify proposals which would support the economic regeneration of the town centre by enabling and
supporting developments outlined in the H&W AAP through the provision of enhanced infrastructure for all
modes of transport as well as public realm improvements. The objectives of the study are as follows:

e Understand the current conditions in the study area for all modes of transport;
o Determine the level of additional traffic demand and impact on the highway network due to committed
and known development proposals;
e Facilitate regeneration in the area by identifying opportunities and developing measures to:
- Mitigate the impact of proposed development on the road network in the study area
- Improve pedestrian and cycle access to the town centre, particularly east-west connections. This
should include links from confirmed development sites;
- Enhance the public realm in the study area, particularly within and around the core retail areas
and the station;
- Enhance connections to public transport and maintain journey times for buses;
e As part of the development of measures investigate ways to reduce street clutter; and
e As part of the development of measures identify schemes to improve air quality.

11.1. Key Conclusions

Wealdstone is identified as an opportunity area and as such will undergo substantial change due to proposed
redevelopment of several key sites which will deliver circa 5,500 new homes, two new schools and around
3,000 new jobs.

The proposed developments will need to be supported by transport infrastructure and public realm
improvements to ensure that they are delivered sustainably and that the regeneration and associated local
economic benefits are fully realised.

Wealdstone town centre benefits from good public transport accessibility due to the proximity of Harrow and
Wealdstone station and many high frequency bus services. However, there are several issues with the town
centre including: poor public realm; street clutter; large volumes of traffic; high-levels of traffic congestion; poor
air quality; poor connectivity for pedestrians and cyclist due to inadequate and disjointed facilities to overcome
barriers to movement; disorganised car parking arrangements with high demand for on-street parking, but
underutilisation of public car parks; inefficient bus routing; higher than typical accidents involving cyclists; lower
than average proportion of trips made by bicycle; and historic development that has broken the continuity of
the high street.

Although the proposed developments will generate additional trips in Wealdstone, modelling has shown that
this is not forecast to result in growth in traffic volumes on roads within the study area up to 2021, despite the
overall increase in the quantum of development within Wealdstone. This is because the proposed development
will have much lower levels of parking provision than the developments that they replace and the overall
increase in the number of trips generated by the proposed intensification of development in Wealdstone are
forecast to be made predominantly by modes of transport other than the private car, especially for commuting
trips. The increasing number of journeys to, from and within Wealdstone will therefore generate a greater
demand to travel by public transport, particularly bus services, as well as cycling and walking for more local
trips. Consequently, the transport infrastructure improvements will need to be directed towards encouraging
and accommodating these non-car modes of transport to unlock the full regeneration potential of the
opportunity area and align with the new MTS and Healthy Streets Guidance.

The intensification of development in Wealdstone over the next five years is likely to lead to greater pressure
on parking availability in Wealdstone town centre and the surrounding areas. Public car park spaces are
anticipated to reduce and on-street parking space will remain static. Therefore, it is anticipated that increases
to the operational hours of existing CPZS and the introduction of new CPZs covering additional areas will be
needed to restrict long term parking on-street by commuters, work place parking and businesses. Additional
CPZ controls will therefore be required to protect the parking amenity of local residents’ living within the area
and also encouraging a shift to the use of sustainable modes of travel in line with the MTS.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi144| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 110



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

An urban design review has identified that there are significant opportunities to improve the public realm at key
locations in Wealdstone that will support proposed redevelopment and associated local economic growth,
improve the townscape, as well as help to improve pedestrian and cyclist connectivity. LBH attended a UDL
panel in May 2016 to discuss their Major Scheme proposals and were encouraged to better define the spaces
within the town centre and how they should be used. Key locations identified for public realm improvements
are: The High Street, The Bridge from Poet’'s Corner to Station Square, Wealdstone Square to the Kodak site
and the High Street to Byron Park.

Of the long list of initial intervention options considered for Wealdstone Town Centre, four were shortlisted,
using multi-criteria evaluation aligned with the agreed study objectives, for more detailed appraisal including
traffic modelling. The four shortlisted options are:

e Option 1 - Do-minimum: Existing highway arrangements with only public realm improvements.

e Option 2 - High Street Two-Way and Palmerston Road Closed: two-way traffic for the entire length of the
High Street, allowing general traffic to turn right at the A409 High Street / A409 George Gange Way
junction and western arm of the Palmerston Road roundabout closed.

e Option 3 - Headstone Drive Two-Way: New east-west link for traffic through Headstone Drive and
Canning Road, allowing Ellen Webb Drive to be closed to provide a pedestrian and cycle link. Western
arm of the Palmerston Road roundabout closed.

e Option 10 - Major Scheme Bid: Improved public realm on the High Street and Palmerston Road, in
addition to providing a new link for buses through Canning Road. The signalised junction at the A409
High Street / A409 George Gange Way replaced with a mini-roundabout.

During the period of this study there was a change of London Mayor and the development of a new transport
strategy with new transport objectives, focussed on healthy streets and a good public transport experience.
The Major Scheme programme ceased and has been replaced by the Liveable Neighbourhoods programme
to reflect the new transport objectives. Consequently, and following the initial modelling results, two additional
sub-options of Option 10 (LBH major scheme bid), options 11A and 11B, were developed with elements of the
scheme refined to optimise the benefits for the town centre and bus services to reflect the Mayor's new
transport objectives and revised scheme funding requirements. These were subject to more detailed evaluation
along with the other shortlisted options.

e Option 11A — As Option 10 with traffic signal controlled at the junction of the High Street with George
Gange Way instead of a mini-roundabout and an offside southbound bus lane on the A409 between the
High Street and Canning Road.

e Option 11B — As Option 10, but with the existing traffic signal control operation at the A409 High Street /
A409 George Gange Way junction and southbound buses turning right onto the High Street. Westbound
buses routed via Canning Road, which operates one-way westbound.

Further detailed appraisal of the shortlisted options shows that the best performing options on balance across
the appraisal criteria are options 11A and 11B. These two options perform the best in terms of: providing
opportunities for the proposed public realm improvements; local highway operational performance, i.e.
minimising traffic delay; and public transport accessibility by providing the greatest bus journey time savings.
They also perform very well in comparison to the other shortlisted options on: improving accessibility for
pedestrians and cyclists through improved connectivity, facilitating regeneration and economic growth; and
meeting TfL's health streets objectives. However, these options are likely to be more expensive and disruptive
to implement than some of the other shortlisted options.

Options 11A and 11B will also deliver outcomes that are aligned with national, regional and local policy,
including the new MTS.

11.2. Recommendations

The successful delivery of developments in the opportunity area requires a significant investment in transport
infrastructure in order to unlock its full potential. The study has identified preferred schemes for improving the
transport network that will need to support sustainable modes of transport, identified a need to manage parking
controls in the Wealdstone area to mitigate the impact of development and identified opportunities for
improving public realm along key routes in Wealdstone. In order to deliver these requirements, the following
recommendations are made:

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Ver1450 | 6 November 2017 | 5147962 111



Wealdstone Town Centre
Transport Study

1. The best performing options against the study objectives, reflected by the appraisal criteria, are Option
11A and Option 11B. These two options should be taken forward for further analysis to identify a single
preferred option, supported by a business case that makes a case for improved bus services
infrastructure. TfL have already indicated to LBH support for undertaking this assessment of options
11A and 11B.

2. The Major Scheme bid submitted to TfL in 2016 made a strong case for improving sustainable
transport networks in Wealdstone. TfL have indicated to LBH that they would support a new Liveable
Neighbourhood bid for Wealdstone High Street and the town centre area that builds on the original
submission, takes account the findings of this study and the new MTS and Healthy Streets guidance.

3. The increased demand to park in Wealdstone area will require a responsive programme of parking
management schemes to mitigate the impact of development. LBH has an annual programme of
parking management schemes and the programme needs to take account of any emerging parking
pressures in Wealdstone as a priority.

4. The public realm opportunities identified along The Bridge, Headstone Drive and Peel Road will require
a significant funding investment that will require a combination of external funding, Council funding
and Developer Contributions in order to deliver them. LBH will need to undertake a detailed
assessment and cost evaluation of each scheme to assess the funding requirements, funding
opportunities and consider a possible delivery programme. It is likely that a costed programme of
interventions with identified funding sources will be required over the next 5 to 10 years to implement
these projects. These schemes link all the major development sites in Wealdstone and the design of
public realm schemes needs to be co-ordinated with the design of the developments, to ensure there
is a consistent overall design approach.

Atkins Wealdstone Town Centre Transport Study | Versi146| 6 November 2017 | 5147962 112



Aaenda Iltem 9
Pages 147 to 156

Traffic And Road Safety
Advisory Panel

th
Date of Meeting: 28" November 2017

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT

Wealdstone — Liveable Neighbourhood bid

Responsible Paul Walker — Corporate Director, Community

Officer:

Exempt: No

Wards affected: Wealdstone, Marlborough

Enclosures: Appendix 1 — Liveable neighbourhood scheme
plan

( l%l‘f'ﬂétCOUNCIL )

147 LONDON



Section 1 - Summary

This information report is presented to members to give details about the
Liveable Neighbourhood bid submitted to Transport for London (TfL) in October
2017.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Background

Members may recall that a Wealdstone Town Centre scheme Major Scheme
bid was submitted to TfL in 2016. The scheme was discussed between the
borough and TfL earlier in 2017 but eventually was not admitted to the Major
Scheme programme because of the changes in Mayoral priorities.

During 2017 a new draft Mayor’s Transport Strategy was published. The key
objective of the strategy was to increase the proportion of travel by
sustainable transport modes to 80% by walking, cycling and public transport
and reducing 3 million car journeys each day by 2041.This is a significant
step change from the previous strategy. The aims of the strategy are:

e Healthy Streets and healthy people
e A good public transport experience
e New homes and jobs

The healthy streets for London initiative aims to ensure people and their
health are put at the centre of decision making in London. It ultimately aims
to reduce reliance on personal vehicles, in favour of walking, cycling and
using public transport to create a healthy city. The Liveable Neighbourhood
programme will be an important delivery mechanism for healthy streets.

In the summer 2017 the Liveable Neighbourhoods Programme Guidance
was issued in line with the key policy drivers in the draft Mayors Transport
Strategy. A deadline for bids by October 2017 was set.

The late issue of the guidance and confirmation of the deadline provided
only a relatively short timescale to produce a comprehensive bid and the
Council’'s engaged transport consultant was commissioned to support the
work to prepare and submit a bid.

148



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

Wealdstone transport study

Wealdstone is within an opportunity area and the Council has ambitious
regeneration plans for the town and has set out an aspiration over the next
15 years for an increase of 5,500 new homes and 3,000 new jobs in the
area. A significant part of the regeneration programme will also be to
relocate the Council’s Civic Centre into the town by 2020 to support growth.
The intensification of development will place greater demands on the
existing transport network and the borough recognises that the additional
journeys being made in the future can only be accommodated by increasing
the mode share of walking, cycling and public transport.

The work undertaken on the Wealdstone transport study has provided a
detailed assessment of the transport and public realm issues in the town,
identified opportunities and potential design options for a Liveable
neighbourhood scheme in Wealdstone. The feasibility of the proposal has
already been subject to transport modelling to assess network impacts. The
study was included as important supporting evidence for the bid.

A separate item on the agenda provides more details about the transport
study.

Existing situation

The 2011 census data shows that car use is the most popular form of
transport in the three postcode sectors that the scheme is in, with 38%
travelled by driving a car or van, and only 11% travelled to work did so by
foot or by bicycle. Levels of car use in the area are higher than both the
London (30%) and North London averages (29%). Walking levels are slightly
above the London average — 10% in Wealdstone compared to 9% in
London, however cycling levels are a mere 1% mode share to work
compared to the 4% London average.

The high car mode share in the area has a detrimental effect on the people
living, working and visiting the town centre, not least from the knock-on effect
that poor air quality has on the health of the local community. The area is
designated as an Air Quality Focus Area within the borough with high levels
of NO2 which have a detrimental affect on health. It is therefore important to
ensure that private cars are actively discouraged through reduced parking
and design, and air quality is improved through the encouragement of
electric vehicle usage.

Pedestrians are faced with a number of challenges which discourage walking
completely. Crime and the fear of crime actively discourage not only the
routes people choose to use but also have an impact on the evening
economy. The arrangement of street clutter creating pinch points,
unattractive areas under bridges and footpaths where there is no natural

149



2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

surveillance creates an environment suitable for criminal activity and this is a
significant barrier to walking.

The current cycling provision in Wealdstone is disjointed and confusing, and
existing cycle parking facilities are not fit for purpose. In addition the cycle
directional signage is inconsistent and the number of recorded cyclist
casualties was higher than the borough average for the period assessed. In
order to make cycling a mode of choice, a step-change improvement in
provision for people that choose to cycle is needed.

The public realm in Wealdstone is very poor in several locations throughout
the town centre. Poor quality and mixed paving materials contribute to the
cluttered and unattractive streetscape which reduces the effective footway
width at several areas within the town centre, creating pinch points and
congestion. Excessive guard railing is present at several locations which
results in convoluted routes for pedestrians. The area suffers a lack of
identity and gateway features to highlight the town centre as a place to visit
and do business.

The east-west links into the town centre by foot and cycle are poor and need
to be further strengthened to support existing and future needs associated
with a number of redeveloped sites

Liveable Neighbourhood scheme

The proposal to transform Wealdstone Town Centre into a liveable
neighbourhood will involve significant changes to make walking and cycling
the easiest and most convenient mode choice for residents, employees and
visitors alike, and where the impact of driving is substantially reduced.

Wealdstone already has good public transport accessibility levels and it will

be necessary to build on this by creating and improving crucial walking and

cycle links to the public transport network from the key attractors in the town
centre and surrounding residential areas.

To help achieve this vision and to drive modal shift, a reallocation of a
significant amount of road space for people to walk, cycle and dwell in will be
delivered through widening footways, removing parking from the High Street
and formalising freight loading arrangements to off-peak times only to free up
footway space for pedestrians during the day.

The benefits of the proposal will be further enhanced as the relocation of the
Civic Centre to the area by 2020 is occurring within the proposed project
timeframe. Footfall and cycle demand will be greatly enhanced as a result of
a significantly reduced parking provision for employees of the Civic Centre
and the removal of the public multi storey car park and replacement with a
smaller surface level car park.

150



2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

Key components of the scheme will include transforming the town centre into
a green boulevard with expanded public realm areas, together with low kerb
heights, an expansion of the 20mph zones, and the introduction of a new
cycle and bus only section on the High Street and approaches.

The town centre will be interspersed with new ‘Copenhagen’ type crossings
on the side streets to give greater pedestrian priority, substantially more
secure cycle parking (including at the station hub, which will also
accommodate electric cycles) improved lighting, CCTV coverage and up to
date pedestrian wayfinding.

New and improved pedestrian and cycle routes into the town centre will also
be introduced, including new direct crossings, by targeting critical junctions
and under used spaces such as bridges. We will also introduce innovative
new spaces which flex between controlled loading in the off peak to footway
space at all other times. Appendix 1 provides a plan showing the proposed
scheme.

To help strengthen the identity and civic pride of Wealdstone, the look and
feel of the liveable neighbourhood proposal will be made consistent through
the application of an approved materials palette from the recently developed
Wealdstone Public Realm Implementation guide.

To further strengthen the propensity for greater participation of the local
community, employees and visitors in walking and cycling, the proposed
physical improvements will be complemented with a comprehensive travel
behavioural change programme for Wealdstone Town Centre, which builds
significantly on the existing school travel plan activities, as well as
development related travel plans associated with large developments in the
town centre such as the new civic centre.

The engagement with the community to change travel behaviours will be a
very important part of the project and this is recognised by TfL who wish to
see effective community engagement and ownership as a part of the
proposal.

Currently Wealdstone is the Ward in the Borough with the highest level of
multiple deprivation, particularly around income, education, skills, training
and employment. Low income is a known risk factor for physical inactivity
and it is evident that the Type 2 diabetes rates in Harrow are amongst the
highest in the country, particularly amongst BME groups. A key aspiration of
the bid would be to encourage and promote more physical activity and
improve public health and wellbeing within the community as a part of the
wider regeneration and modal shift. The involvement of the Public Health
team would support the promotion of health benefits from the community
engagement programme.

151



2.26  The components of the scheme are shown below:

Harrow and Wealdstone Station area

e Public realm improvements with seating and planting outside the station.
¢ A new direct diagonal crossing outside the station for pedestrians

e A brand new cycle hub outside the station, including double level secure

cycle storage (complemented by other cycle parking facilities into the
wider town centre)

e Innovative use of taxi bays so that they can be used as a footway when
not in use by taxis

Wealdstone High Street
¢ Introduction of restricted access for vehicles for a majority of the High
Street - prioritising cycle and bus only access

e Removal of all on-street parking bays
¢ Extension of the 20mph zone to help improve road safety
¢ Significant greening of the High Street, to create a tree lined boulevard

e Public realm improvements to the town square with seating and planting
to complement the parallel Wealdstone Public square scheme.

¢ Introduction of ‘Copenhagen’ crossings on the side roads for greater
pedestrian priority.

¢ Flexible spaces for which can also be used as loading bays in the off-peak
and for pedestrians at all other times

e Improvements to the bus stop waiting areas and accessibility
improvements

e Improved lighting and CCTV to improve personal security and safety.

e Proposed introduction of carriageway 25mm upstand throughout the area
to create more of a pedestrian priority for the high street.

Western Approaches to the High Street (Palmerston Road/ Canning Road/

George Gange Way)

¢ Restricted access of the High Street for Cycles and Buses only on
Canning Road

e Removal of 4 on-street parking bays

¢ Introduction of 2 electric vehicle parking bays to support air quality and
longer term national policy

¢ Relocation of 3 disabled parking bays

¢ Improvement to lighting and appearance under George Gange Way
bridge

e Shared-use facility for pedestrians and cyclists bounding the new Civic
Centre site on George Gange Way

152



2.27

Eastern Approaches to the High Street (Ellen Webb Drive/ Cecil Road/
Headstone Drive)
e Improvement to lighting and appearance under railway bridge

¢ New signalised junction with controlled crossings

Area wide improvements
e Updated and extended pedestrian wayfinding system

e Use of a consistent palette of materials across the scheme using the
Wealdstone Design Guide.

¢ Roll out of an extensive travel behavioural change programme to
complement the role out of walking and cycling

¢ Community participation in the development of the scheme.

¢ Build on existing community and business group engagement activities
that have already been undertaken

e Tailored public consultation of the scheme to reflect the community

e Community participation in the development scheme components such as
a street art competition in conjunction with local colleges.

Next steps

The bid has been submitted as a part of the borough annual spending
submission to TfL for 2018/19 and funding allocations are anticipated to be
confirmed by December 2017 / January 2018.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

There is no further information.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1

4.2

A Liveable neighbourhood bid for Wealdstone has been submitted to TfL in
October 2017 for funding of £2 million over a three year period from 2018/19
to 2020/21. An indicative match funding is included in the bid, namely
Harrow Capital of £400k which will be set aside within Highway Programme
and S106/CIL funding of £660k which is to be agreed.

If the bid is successful, Phase 1 of the project (solely funded from TfL in
18/19) will involve the design work. The continuation of the project beyond
18/19 will be subject to the approval of design by TfL and the confirmation of
the availability of match funding by the Council. A decision on the bid is
anticipated by December 2017 / January 2018.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

153



5.1 A programme of investment was included in the Transport Local
Implementation Plan which was approved by full Council. The LIP was
subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment where schemes were identified
as having no negative impact on any equality groups. Positive impacts of the
programme were demonstrated on some equalities groups, particularly,
women, children and people with mobility difficulties.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1 The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will
contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities:

Making a difference for the vulnerable
Making a difference for communities
Making a difference for local businesses
Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15/11/17

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact:

David Eaglesham - Head of Traffic, Highways & Asset Management
Tel: 020 8424 1500, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E-mail: david.eaglesham@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Local Implementation Plan 2

154




GaT

APPENDIX 1

- B — <TRE! \Té/ VA .
— HHH aERERES — G ’ _ " "
Han s i AL \ HEADSTONE <«——p  CONTROLLED CROSSING PROPOSED FOOTWAY RE-PAVING "NORMAL SPEC
Jie cé) s MANOR/ PROPOSED SHARED USE FOOTWAY
sy - e WA KODAK SITE P RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS RE-PAVING "NORMAL SPEC"
i e o o et © > PROPOSED HIGHER SPEC "PUBLIC REALM" PAVING"
X f \ L/ RETAIL / COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS ON FOOTWAY SEGREGATED CYCLE FACILITY
\Y4
5 3 2 ( & / & & [NOPOSED GRASS AREA PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY
- 9 = ) WITH PROPOSED TREES
w o \\
= 7 LONDIS - PROPOSED CYCLE PARKING HUB - PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY (25mm KERB UPSTAND)
o 2 % | ) OPPORTUNITY TO IMPROVE —
INCREASED — NORTHBOUND — il inY b'ﬁgg;{“g R/ISZ'EEARANCE = i PROPOSED CYCLE LANE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BY OTHERS
FOOTWAY TRAFFIC Y?‘ PROPOSED SIGNALISED I / : - PROPOSED WEALDSTONE —
WIDENING ONLY e PEDESTRIAN JUNCTION [} SQUARE PUBLIC SPACE PROPOSED TOWN SQUARE WITH SEATING
Q REFUGE _
o REMOVED ] @ HARROW & WEALDSTONE STATION
Ové @ / OPPORTUNITY TO IMPROVE PROPOSED NO
Cg/ @ J 2ONE / LIGHTING UNDERNEATH BRIDGE PROPOSED 20mph e ENTRY EXCEPT
g ” ZONE EXTENTS pxcept | BUSES & CYCLES
2y @ %'y  PROPOSEDTREES ZONE i
G %
g 3
| REMOVAL OF —; KEY SCHEME INFORMATION
\ EXISTING ®
\ PROPOSED
R CENTRAL > i LOCATION AREA EXISTING PROPOSED
\ SOUTHBOUND z
: QS / X PARKING 10 0
S A
7;7/ o DISABLED VEHICLE PARKING 3 3
% / PUBLIC REALM DEVELOPMENT ELECTRIC VEHICLE PARKING 0 2
PROPOSED o /] (BY OTHERS)
SIGNALISED O - CYCLE PARKING 32 APPROX 150
JUNCTION /1
AND \ PROPOSED RIGHT Ji UNRESTRICTED LOADING BAYS 45m 0
PEDESTRIAN ) TURN FOR BUSES o OFF PEAK LOADING BAYS (7pm - 7am) 0 50m
CROSSINGS ONLY &
$ FOOTWAY AREA 5240m? 6805m?
il ng /
& é§<’/ \
_________ j /y
L=l i i QN
A 1 INSERT i
ALTERNATIVE BUS IMPROVEMENT OPTION ’J e ‘ .
\_/\ D Q N - SCALE NTS (’ﬁ / it
l , Z\ l\ Jpe
= 77 > |- | |
L5 dl PROPOSED TOWN SQUARE
— WITH SEATING — PROPOSED OFF B
e il HOLY Zﬁgﬁkgﬁmggﬁﬁg T ‘ 4No. PARKING —EXISTING
IMPROVED BUS STOP — TRINITY REMOVED ] BAYS REMOVED CROSSING
1y 7 PROPOSED WAITING AREA i CHURCH o L] RETAINED
COPENHAGEN o) "
\ P CROSSING ’%/\ > | = ! TO —
w) =
> > -l_-l E?cept SIS '\’\’\'\{:’\ HARROW
7 / PROPOSED OFF 5 z buses ¢ (| ZONE R s WEALD
/ / / o\ = R REET
¢ PEAK LOADING BAY % 2 e st
Except - H y
PROPOSED PUBLIC REALM e ZONE J{°e, - sz gt
IMPROVEMENTS WITH SEATING ¢ ¥
N \ z w T
_— / W e 3 S 2 PROPOSED
PROPOSED CYCLE PARKING HUB DOUBLE IMPROVED o) T 2 COPENHAGEN
LEVEL (INCLUDING ELECTRICAL CYCLES) 0 LIGHTING & z i CROSSING LONDIS
> CCTV THE WEALDSTONE = — PROPOSED Z PEDESTRIAN
Z CENTRE m | OFF PEAK = REFUGE REMOVED
c PROPOSED — LOADING BAY & ,
N T 3No. DISABLED COPENHAGEN S W
R\
PROPOSED TAXI BAY PROPOSED OFF PEAK 5 : PARKING BAYS CROSSING & EXISTING CROSSING
LOADING BAY / / [ L 4No. PARKING 5 RETAINED
- I y BAYS REMOVED 9
0 i 2No. PROPOSED ¥ s @
EXISTING ZEBRA CROSSING £ ELECTRIC VERICLE & @
- PARKING BAYS
LOCATION RETAINED Jmf PROPOSED — QS)Q' @
2/ PROPOSED DIAGONAL al. ngSEAGKBAY )/ S ©
CROSSING Except @
HARROW & 2 e
WEALDSTONE z CAR PARK TO BE
STATION DEVELOPED FOR R
é HOUSINOG O TTITTT JTIT"‘ ‘\ PROPOSED o
! s CONTRA FLOW PROPOSED S
i = >
il i \ \ CYCLE LANE Z
i B \ . SOUTHBOUND BUS 5
y e g L GLADSTONE WAY y QN W / LANE OPTION 2
— —_ 2\ SEE INSERTFOR &
— i 2 INFORMATION -
PROPOSED - \
CYCLE ROUTE |
0 / / PROPOSED CIVIC CENTRE
i PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
CAR PARK a
ZONE s \:] c/ .
MEDIAN STRIP — b @ )
REMOVED 4 \
] e MEDIAN STRIP
|| RETAINEIZT j
/ D RGE GANGE WAY [A409) \—l ]J
o - : | . :
EXISTING TOUCAN Z —
m
TO HARROP CTT—GEORGE GANGE WAY [A409] TO I CROSSING RETAINED %\ A\ ’ 5 THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
[ BYRON | e 5\, TO BELMONT THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
/ | / / / / ' PARK o O _ | L MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION |
/ : / / / / //\ 35 ‘VO CIRCLE INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT & MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
// / / 4\2_‘ m P \| \ LONDONBOROUGHOFFII_1-4RROW100019206. __ N : S—

NATKINS”

LONDON

G

LIVEABLE NEIGHBOURHOODS - HIGH STREET, WEALDSTONE (SHEET 1 of 4)

HCLVND-ATK-GEN-ZZ-SK-CH-0001




This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda Item 10
Pages 157 to 166

Traffic And Road Safety
Advisory Panel

th
Date of Meeting: 28" November 2017

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT

Ultra Low Emission Zone — Neighbourhood of
the Future (NoF) update

Responsible Paul Walker — Corporate Director, Community

Officer:

Exempt: No

Wards affected: Greenhill

Enclosures: Appendix 1 — Neighbourhood of the future
scheme plan

( f%/‘/’ﬂhCDUNCIL )

157 LONDON



Section 1 - Summary

This information report is presented to members to provide an update on
progress with implementing the Ultra Low Emission Zone funded by Transport
for London (TfL) and the proposed Neighbourhood of the Future scheme for
Harrow.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Harrow Town Centre - Neighbourhood of the Future (NoF)
Background

Members may recall a presentation to this Panel in November 2016 to
confirm The Council’s successful bid for funding from the Go Ultra Low City
Scheme initiative to implement a NoF that prioritises electric vehicle (EV)
and ultra low emission vehicle usage (ULEV) in a part of the Harrow Town
Centre area in order to promote cleaner air.

In January 2017 The Mayor of London and Transport for London (TfL)
announced £1.4m funding for six ‘Neighbourhoods of the Future’, that will
combine innovative green technology and other initiatives to tackle London’s
air quality emergency directly at a local level. The funding will be matched by
£1.1m from the London boroughs involved and Heathrow airport, and shows
the on-going commitment of the Mayor for London, TfL and London Councils
to work closely with local authorities to improve air quality in London.

Harrow Council was awarded a total of £180,000 from this funding stream
over a four year period from 2016 to 2020 in order to deliver a NoF scheme
to encourage a greater up take of electric vehicles and improve air quality.
The delivery of the scheme will be supported through match funding of £50k
from the electric vehicles & Car Clubs allocation from within the Council’s TfL
approved local implementation plan (LIP) programme over the 4 year
programme.

Harrow Town Centre is a busy metropolitan town centre and is a hive of
activity, used by residents and visitors for work and leisure alike. There are
over 5,000 new homes planned to be built as part of major developments in
the town centre. Each new development is assessed in accordance with
local and regional guidelines to ensure the correct sustainable transport
infrastructure is included to satisfy both London wide and borough policy
objectives.

158



2.5 The Harrow Town Centre air quality focus area was selected as the location
for the proposed NoF. This area is in the south of the borough and is close to
the boundary with Brent and encompasses a large part of the Greenhill
ward. It includes the main commercial shopping centre within the town centre
and the borough as a whole which is home to several major high street
stores and attracts local residents and visitors in a wide catchment.

2.6 Commercial outlets make up a large part of the town centre environment;
however several large scale residential developments will also be located
within the NoF area as part of wide scale residential developments within the
town centre. Harrow Town Centre has good public transport services and is
served by Harrow on the Hill bus and underground station which is on the
Metropolitan Line.

2.7 The NoF proposals focus on increasing the number of EV charging points in
the Greenhill ward area, prioritising road space for EVs and creating support
for maintenance of owners of ULEVS. A plan of the scheme proposal can be
seen in Appendix 1.

2.8 A more detailed summary of the NoF proposals and scheme progress to
date is set out below:

Year Initiative description Progress to date £ k
Parking management policies
have been revised to
A : - encourage ULEVs to park free
mend parking policies to
: . . of charge for up to 4 hours.
incentivise ULEV ownership Changes were made to allow
and provide parking discounts, | dedicated parking bays for
for example, changing the ULEVs and introduce lower
2016-17 : : o ) 10
charges for resident permits charging incentives for ULEVSs.
and “pay and display” to take As part of this process existing
account of vehicle emissions. parking bays were reviewed
and areas identified that can
accommodate electric charging
points.
Provide charging infrastructure | The council will be installing
within the agreed NoF area of | charging points in destination
the Greenhill ward with car parks and on street near to
possible inclusion of rapid the two main shopping areas of
2017-18 | charging points in destination St Ann s and St George’s 80
. shopping centre. We are (20)
car pa.rks near to the two main currently working with our
shopping areas of St Ann’s procurement team to secure a
and St George’s shopping contract with a suitable electric
centre. vehicle charging point provider.

159




The council is in discussions
with two potential electric
charge suppliers and are in the
process of procuring a frame
work contract which will allow
us to introduce the charging
infrastructure this financial year.

Provide free accredited
training to mechanics in the
borough to ensure ULEVs can
be safely and easily serviced
in the area. This will support
an increase in private ULEV
ownership by removing a
potential barrier over concerns

The council will be providing
free credited training to
mechanics in the area to ensure
ULEVs can be safely and easily
serviced and up skilling local
mechanics to support local
businesses, making Harrow a
centre of excellence for ULEV
servicing and maintenance and
boosting the local economy.

2017-18 | about long term maintenance .
’ . The council also operates a
of the vehicles. In addition, the | | ahicle service centre training
up skilling of local mechanics | mechanics within this facility is
will support local businesses, also under consideration. This
making Harrow a centre of is an IMI accredited course
excellence for ULEV servicing | discussed with the North
and maintenance, boosting the London_ (_Barage Association.
local economy. The training should start by
early December.
Enable businesses based in
the borough to trial ULEVSs for
their fleets. This would be Council Travel Planners are
restricted to cars and possibly | currently working with the
vans, and would depend on %usitr)fiss Beglelobpm?m team to
- identify suitable businesses
2017-18 whether or not_ the business within the NoF area. There is
had the capacity to charge initial interest from a number of
their vehicles off-street using estate agents in the town
cables. This could include centre.
offering subsidised workplace
charging for ULEV.
Implement a long term The Council \_/viII work With_our 65
2018-19 behaviour change strategy to preferred delivery partner in (20)

conducting campaigns in the

160




raise awareness of the benefits
of EV and overcome any
misconceptions. A package of
initiatives would be developed
and would include measures
such as, An awareness
campaign, partnering with our
electric vehicle supplier, to
promote EV and new
technology (with longer range),
A pop up EV information
centre for the public, A
free/discounted hire scheme
for residents, test drive
opportunities using EV,
Innovative promotional
campaigns involving partners.

town centre and with local
businesses to promote the
uptake of electric vehicles and
advertise the scheme to the
wider community.

The majority of Station Road is
currently open to buses, cycles
and delivery vehicles only. It is
ultimately our intention to

Council Travel Planners have
had some initial discussions with
our Highway Enforcement team
as to how ULEV s can be
identified when entering Station

restrict Station Road / College | Road to allow enforcement. This | 25
2019-20 SR o :
Road to ULEVs only. This will | is likely to involve Automated (20)
initially apply to private cars Number Plate Recognition
(ANPR) techniques. This
only. ) : -
process is on-going and still in
development.
2016 - -
2020 TFL allocation - NoF 180
2016- LIP match funding — Electric L
2020 Vehicles & Car Clubs (match funding in brackets) (50)
2.9 These Iinitiatives are expected to improve air quality in Harrow Town Centre

which will improve the quality of life for current and proposed residential
developments most of which will be car free. Many future residents are

expected not to own cars and therefore there is scope to create ULEV car
clubs which would be beneficial to the area. Any opportunities to create car
clubs will be investigated through the development control process.

161




2.10

2.11

Electric vehicles charging infrastructure

With the focus on air quality a priority of the Mayor it is important to ensure
that Harrow takes steps to implement the necessary charging infrastructure
for electric vehicles and demonstrate a commitment to improving air quality
in order to access potential funding streams in future. Because of the high
car ownership in the borough encouraging the use of EV would be
appropriate for Harrow.

The council is currently looking at how we can best support electric vehicle
use in the borough, including potential locations for on-street charging
points. The final locations for these charge points will take into account the
views of and requests from residents. Locations will be assessed for
suitability and factor in a number of considerations for other road users and
pedestrians, for example, ensuring that footpaths continue to be wide
enough to accommodate wheelchairs.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

There is no further information.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1

4.2

A total allocation of £180k over 4 years is being provided by TfL between
2016/17 and 2019/20 to implement the NoF. Match funding of £50k from the
annual allocation for electric vehicles & car clubs within the approved LIP
programme will support the delivery of the scheme. The total funding for
implementation will be £230k.

An allocation of £80k is provided with a £20k match fund from the LIP
allocation for electric vehicles and car clubs in 2017/18.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

A programme of investment was included in the Transport Local
Implementation Plan which was approved by full Council. The LIP was
subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment where schemes were identified
as having no negative impact on any equality groups. Positive impacts of the
programme were demonstrated on some equalities groups, particularly,
women, children and people with mobility difficulties.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1

The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will
contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities:

162



Making a difference for the vulnerable
Making a difference for communities
Making a difference for local businesses
Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15/11/17

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact:

Barry Philips — Team Leader, Transportation
Tel: 020 8424 1649, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E-mail: Barry.Philips@harrow.gov.uk

Annabelle Fosu — Travel Planner
Tel: 020 8424 1607, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E- mail: Annabelle.Fosu@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Local Implementation Plan 2

TfL guidance
NoF bid document

163



mailto:Annabelle.Fosu@harrow.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

\ Norbur
| First and M%dd\e
\ School

. Norbury First
and
| Middle School

\ \ | \ ) / /) / R T - 63 N L —
elter % ‘ \ ’ // . — |

“CRESCENT

El

qyod 1

<R

Harrow Baptist
_ Tennis Club

Garth Court

Kensington
Heights

—

o T,,,’;*%t::},,h,,; 77——%“

CREENHILL WAY 3
* Proposed S o M H
CarClubBay /' = : ALl

55716/2§QL§8,5,6

St Georges Shopping and Leisure Centre
Multistorey Car Park

St Ann’s Centre

I ) Car Park
| 4

stowe
ne o

iJBf%dc5

I
u

- — -

- f
- / B

|
— 1
. _ g‘H

L

270777,

|
6loal | |

Lol N7 /4

| Ef;/—\ 1 P J \\ [ |

—\_ =
|

r/

~/ Wordsworth
] Court

e Sub S —
Middlesex )‘»7
e New L
I
Synagogue |
\

|
[ L,ij

_—

Hobbs House

&

\,,,,\\ ) /////

Lowlands Yixth Form Cdl,\xre;g‘e

\
— ||
|

e e E—

Blackthorns
Court

Nightingale

—
)

~
T/

e

1

I
E'J The }?%e\ock /

—

il
|

—1

71
S

El Sub Sta

1

Brond;eth
Court

1339 337 33

341

—
T
-
|
|

H

| ‘ .
LBJJaLﬁOLStBOj\C

g

L/
347 to 353 | |
347 to 353 1343 345

—_
[+~
—

ngress
%ogse -

I

369

367

b

|| Lynwood|
|| Rouse |

STATION ROAD

KENTON ROAD

1/ 94a7! 270
123142987127

Harrow

Proposed Neigﬁbourhoodof the Future (NoF

otal number of P&D bay parking spaces: 172
otal number of taxi ranks: 4

otal number of loading bays: 16
otal number of disabled bays spaces: 34

Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office ©@ Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or cwil
proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 100019206.

Key: mmmmmmm P&D bays
I [axI ranks
s | 0ading bays

Disabled bays
_

~ Electric vehicles only LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Aaenda ltem 11
Pages 167 to 198

Traffic And Road Safety
Advisory Panel

th
Date of Meeting: 28" November 2017

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT

2017 /18 Traffic and Parking Schemes
Programme update

Responsible Paul Walker — Corporate Director, Community
Officer:

Exempt: No

Wards affected: All

Enclosures: Appendix A - Parking management

programme 2017/18

Appendix B - Transport for London
programme 2017/18

Appendix C — Northolt Road — Bus
improvement scheme

Appendix D — Treve Avenue / Porlock Avenue
- Bus improvement scheme

Appendix E - Victor Road — 20 mph and point
no entry

( l%l‘f'ﬂétCOUNCIL )

167 LONDON



Section 1 - Summary

This information report is presented to members to provide an update on
progress with the 2017 /18 traffic and parking management programme of works.
This includes schemes funded by Transport for London (TfL) and schemes
included in Harrow’s Capital Programme. The information contained in this report
reflects the latest position at the time of writing this report.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

General

This information report provides members with an update on the current
programme of transport schemes and initiatives funded in the 2017/18
programme. This includes schemes funded by Transport for London grant and
the Harrow capital programme. Appendices A and B provides a summary of
progress with all the schemes within the current programme.

More detail on certain schemes is provided below in the body of the report where
they have reached the public consultation, statutory consultation or
implementation stages and any other specific issues of interest to members.

Harrow Capital 2017/18

Parking management programme

The Parking Management Schemes Programme for 2017/18 was agreed and
approved by cabinet in April this year following revisions proposed to the report
presented to TARSAP in February. The current status of each scheme in the
programme is shown in Appendix A.

The Queensbury Circle Parade (new CPZ) scheme has been dropped from the
programme due to lack of support.

The Kenmore Avenue/ Christchurch Avenue (new CPZ) is at public consultation
stage. The results still need to be reviewed and a way forward agreed with
members.

Five schemes have concluded the public consultation stage and are approved for
the legal notification stage which include Burnt Oak Broadway (Zone X), County
Roads (Zones U and /or NH1), The Gardens (Zone W), Chandos Crescent /
Methuen Road (Zone X and/or TA) and Calthorpe Gardens (Zone H).

168



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Two schemes are at legal notification stage which include the Wealdstone CPZ
review (Zones CA and J) where the results still need to be reviewed and Dukes
Avenue (Zone TB) where the scheme is approved for implementation.

The Whitefriars Avenue / Graham Road localised parking review was included in
the programme to address congestion issues around the cultural centre.
Whitefriars Avenue (Wealdstone) has been subject to a CPZ review in recent
years and it was unlikely that any significant revisions to the existing CPZ
scheme were needed therefore it was agreed to proceed with a local review of
the existing waiting restrictions around the Mosque / community centre.

Initial surveys and site observations are complete and amendments to the
existing parking restrictions to address congestion issues are proposed. Any
changes to the current parking restrictions will be discussed with local councillors
and the Portfolio Holder before proceeding to statutory consultation. In addition
to changes to the existing parking restrictions, plans to engage with the mosque /
community centre to discuss travel planning options are also underway to
encourage modal shift away from motorised trips.

The possibility of making roads such as Whitefriars Avenue or Graham Road one
way is not considered a viable option without changes to the existing traffic
management arrangements in the area which would have a significant impact on
the surrounding highway network and is therefore not recommended.

Localised Safety Parking Schemes Programme (LSPP)

This programme is concerned with localised sites where minor parking problems
occur. Typically remedial measures consist of proposals for single or double
yellow lines at junctions, bends and narrow sections of road in order to improve
vehicular access or improve road safety. These measures also reinforce the well-
established principles set out in The Highway Code. This is an on-going rolling
programme of works and members and the Portfolio Holder will be advised of the
locations included in the programme during the course of the year.

The LSPP batch currently being taken forward and subject to the outcome off
statutory consultation includes the following roads:

e Augustine Road - Double yellow lines (DYL) across one side of road to allow
refuse vehicles to pass unhindered

e Buckingham Road - DYL's to be extended to remove small parking space.

e Chandos Crescent - DYL across car park entrance to improve access to
refuse vehicles.

e Farm Avenue - Upgrading existing waiting restrictions to At any time/Mon-Fri
8am-6.30pm as current restrictions no longer appropriate to address parking
pressures, sometimes resulting in obstruction of the highway.

e George V Avenue - DYL to facilitate vehicles going south on George V
Avenue to make a U-turn in one movement.

e Kenton Lane - DYL's to be extended to improve visibility when turning out
from Rowland Avenue.

169



e Kenton Park Avenue - DYL's around inside section of bend due to parked
vehicles impeding visibility.

e Long Elms - DYL'’s to be extended to improve visibility when exiting St
Barnabas Court.

e Marshall Close - Extending existing DYL’s to facilitate access for refuse
lorries.

e Mollison Way - Existing SYL (Mon-Fri 11am-12 noon) to be upgraded to DYL
due to dangerous blind bend.

e Moorhouse Road - DYL'’s at the junction as refuse vehicles cannot access
Boothman House Car Park.

e Station Road - DYL’s around service road to keep access clear.

e Stroud Gate - Existing SYL (Mon-Sat 7am-7pm) to be upgraded to DYL as
vehicles parked on Northolt Road obscure visibility when coming out of Stroud
Gate. DYL at service road entrance to facilitate ease of access.

e The Ridgeway - Extending existing DYL'’s to address visibility issues when
turning right from Chester Drive onto The Ridgeway

e Welldon Crescent - SYL’s (Mon-Sat 8.30am-6.30pm) at the junction to be
upgraded to DYL due to parking at the junction with Hindes Road obstructing
access

e Whittington Way - Extending existing DYL’s due to poor visibility when
crossing road

Transport for London — Local Implementation Plan (LIP) Programme
2017/18

LIP - 20 mph zone programme

2.13  All 20 mph zones need to be self-enforcing without relying on police enforcement
and so most schemes include traffic calming measures, such as speed cushions,
in order to ensure a majority of motorists comply with the 20 mph speed limit.
There is a budget of £100,000 this year for two new 20 mph zones in the streets
surrounding Pinner Park and St John Fisher High Schools. Progress with these
schemes is as follows:

Pinner Park School (20mph zone)

2.14  The informal public consultation for the Pinner Park 20mph zone took place from
the 5™ July until 30™ July 2017. In total 392 leaflets were delivered with 101
responses (26% response rate). The results of the informal public consultation
were as follows:

170



2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme ?
Road No Yes Road Total

Ainsdale Crescent 2 1 3
Birkdale Avenue 1 9 10
Elmcroft Crescent 7 9 16
George V Avenue 0 1 1
Greenfield Way 1 4 5
Greystoke Avenue 5 21 26
Headstone Lane 0 3 3
Hillview Gardens 3 9 12
Holmdene Avenue 9 10 19
Manor Park Drive 1 3 4
Melbourne Avenue 0 2 2
Grand Total 29 (29%) 72 (71%) 101

Based on the results of the informal consultation the Portfolio Holder agreed to
progress to statutory consultation which took place from the 17th August 2017
until 6th September 2017. One objection was received during this period and
was overruled.

The scheme has now progressed to the detailed design stage.

St John Fisher School (20mph zone)

The informal public consultation for the St John Fisher 20mph zone took place
from the 5th July until 30th July 2017. In total 453 leaflets were delivered with
150 responses (33% response rate). The results of the informal public
consultation were as follows:

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme ?
Road No Yes Road Total
Cambridge Road 24 20 44
Kingsley Road 2 9 11
Melrose Road 5 7 12
South Way 8 2 10
Thrush Green 11 1 12
Woodlands 49 12 61
Grand Total 99 (66%) | 51 (34%) 150

There has been local opposition to the proposals. A petition received during the
consultation period in July 2017 contained 151 signatures opposing the
proposals in Cambridge Road, South Way, Thrush Green and Woodlands.

The results of the public consultation were presented to the Portfolio Holder for
his consideration and he agreed to proceed to statutory consultation based on
the road safety benefits of the scheme and a decision to reduce the number of
speed cushions in the proposals.

171



2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

The statutory consultation for the St John Fisher School 20mph zone proposals
took place from the 19th October 2017 until 8th November 2017. There is
continuing local opposition and another petition was received in November 2017
during the statutory consultation period containing 227 signatures that opposed
the use of road humps or speed cushions but supported a 20mph speed limit.

All the comments and objections will be presented to the Portfolio Holder for a
decision on whether the scheme will be amended, taken forward or abandoned.

LIP - Local Safety Schemes (LSS)

This programme of work is focussed on reducing Killed and Seriously Injured
(KSI) accidents throughout the borough and supports the objectives of the Mayor
for London’s and our own Road Safety Plan to reduce KSI accidents by 40% by
2020.

The Council’s transport consultant is continuing to liaise with TfL regarding last
year’s scheme at the Alexandra Avenue/Eastcote Lane junction. This work
required time consuming remodeling work at the junction in discussion with TfL
who own and operate all traffic signals on the public highway in London

There is a budget of £100,000 this year for three local safety schemes which
include, Northolt Road, Pinner Road (between Station Road and Headstone
Lane) and Honeypot Lane (between Queensbury Circle and Kingsbury Circle).
The Council’s transport consultant is currently carrying out detailed design.

LSS - Pinner Road (between Station Road and Headstone Lane)

The public consultation took place in October. The proposals are targeted at
addressing the safety issues along this section of Pinner Road. The proposals
include the following measures:

e Median Strip:
A median strip is to be introduced between Canterbury Road and Station
Road reducing the carriageway width to reduce vehicle speeds. The current
uncontrolled pedestrian crossing is to be removed at this location, as visibility
for pedestrians is poor due to location of the bus stops and loading bays.

¢ Uncontrolled Pedestrian Crossings:
Providing kerb build outs at the uncontrolled pedestrian crossing next to
Canterbury Road will improve visibility for pedestrians and cyclists crossing
Pinner Road. The Bus Stop and parking bays including the disabled and
loading bays opposite Canterbury Road will be relocated to accommodate
these new build outs. A kerb build out is also to be introduced at the
uncontrolled pedestrian crossing next to Woodlands to improve visibility for
pedestrians. An additional island is to be introduced at the uncontrolled
pedestrian crossing next to Southfield Park to protect cyclists turning onto the
cycle path.

172



2.26

2.27

e Waiting and Loading Restrictions:

At any time waiting and loading restrictions are to be introduced on the bend
of Pinner Road adjacent to Woodlands to improve visibility for pedestrians and
drivers.

Raised Entry Treatment:

To be located at the junction of Station Road and Cambridge Road. This is a
form of road hump which is effective in reducing vehicle speeds. It also
provides a level crossing point for pedestrians and cyclists.

Junction Review:
A further study will be undertaken to review the movements of vehicles at the
junction of Pinner Road and Station Road.

The works are scheduled for implementation this financial year.

LSS - Honeypot Lane (between Queensbury Circle and Kingsbury Circle)

The public consultation took place in October. The proposals are targeted at
addressing the safety and traffic congestion issues along this section of
Honeypot Lane. The proposals include the following measures:

e Junction Closure:

The junction of the Honeypot Lane service road between Glebe Avenue and
Queensbury Circle to be closed to protect pedestrians crossing at the
controlled pedestrian crossing adjacent to this junction. The location of this
junction does not meet with current design guidance.

Improved right turn pockets:

Widening of the right turning pockets along Honeypot Lane between
Queensbury Circle and Cumberland Road to protect vehicles waiting to turn
right. Extending the entry tapers on the approach to these right turning
pockets will enable vehicles to position better and will improve drivers visibility
of traffic ahead. Relocating the junction of the Honeypot Lane service road
between Glebe Avenue and Malvern Gardens, and widening sections of
Honeypot Lane will enable these improvements to the right turn pockets.

Waiting and Loading Restrictions:

Introducing at any time waiting and loading restrictions opposite the relocated
junction of the Honeypot Lane service road between Glebe Avenue and
Malvern Gardens to allow vehicles to turn safely in and out of this junction.

Honeypot Lane / Cumberland Road Junction Improvements:
A further study will be undertaken to review the movements of vehicles and
pedestrians at the junction of Honeypot Lane and Cumberland Road.

Uncontrolled Pedestrian Crossing:

A new uncontrolled pedestrian crossing to be provided between the bus stops
outside Morrisons to improve the safety of pedestrians crossing at this

173



location. The southbound bus stop is to be relocated further south to
accommodate this crossing.

LSS - Northolt Road

2.28  Public consultation is underway the proposals include the following measures:

e Uncontrolled Pedestrian Crossings:
Widening the existing refuge island at the uncontrolled pedestrian crossing
outside Hillview Children’s Centre adjacent to Grange Road to improve
pedestrian safety. Providing a new uncontrolled pedestrian crossing outside
the local shops between Brooke Avenue and Stanley Road.

e Waiting and Loading Restrictions
Introducing at any time waiting and loading restrictions to improve junction
visibility and ease traffic congestion at the junction of Northolt Road with South
Hill Avenue; the junction of Northolt Road with Eastcote Lane and Northolt
Road between Valentine Road and Wargrave Road. To enable two-way traffic
to pass freely in these sections and improve bus journey times, some parking
bays will be removed and additional parking bays provided in Parkfield Road,
Eastcote Road and Whitby Road.

e Improved Bus Stops:
The bus stops between Eastcote Lane and South Harrow Underground
Station will be extended and realigned to improve bus accessibility, pedestrian
safety and ease traffic congestion. The existing loading bay will be relocated
within the proposed widened footway to improve passenger accessibility.

e Point No-Entries:
Introducing a Point No-entry at the junctions of Parkfield Road and Eastcote
Road to ease traffic congestion on Northolt Road and improve the safety of
pedestrians crossing at these junctions.

e Raised Entry Treatments:
Introducing raised entry treatments at the junctions of Northolt Road with
Parkfield Road, Eastcote Road, Iceland Car Park access road and Valentine
Road to reduce speed of vehicles, and improve pedestrian accessibility and
safety.

e Improved Controlled Pedestrian Crossings:
Widening footways either side of two existing controlled pedestrian crossings
between Whitby Road and Eastcote Road and outside South Harrow
Underground Station to improve pedestrian accessibility and safety.

LIP - Bus Priority schemes (BP)

2.29  Harrow Council works closely with Transport for London (TfL) to make bus
services a more attractive and reliable mode of transport by promoting the use of
public transport and improving the highway infrastructure to facilitate bus routes

174



2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

and bus movements. The following areas have been highlighted in this year’'s
programme for improvements:

e High Street, Harrow on the Hill between its junction with West Street and
Roxeth Hill

e Northolt Road between South Harrow Underground Station and Valentine
Road

BP - High Street, Harrow on the Hill Bus Route Improvement Scheme

The bus routes 258 and H17 are affected along High Street between West Street
and Roxeth Hill. The main issue identified for delays on these routes is the traffic
congestion caused by parking on the eastern side of the road, particularly by
blue badge holders. Detailed investigations are being carried out and public
consultation on any proposals to reduce traffic congestion will commence in
November 2017.

BP - Northolt Road Bus Route Improvement Scheme

The bus routes 114, 398, H10, H12 and 140 are affected along the section of
Northolt Road between South Harrow Underground Station and Valentine Road.
The main issue identified as the reason for delays on this route is traffic
congestion caused by vehicles parking on both sides of Northolt Road. Site
surveys and investigations are currently being carried out to identify measures to
improve current situation and reduce delays to buses and other traffic.

Proposals have been identified to improve bus movement and can be seen in
Appendix C. Public consultation on these proposals to reduce traffic congestion
will commence in November 2017.

BP - Treve Avenue / Porlock Avenue — inset parking bays

The public consultation concluded in October and the Portfolio Holder has
approved the scheme as detailed in Appendix D. The works will be programmed
with our contractor shortly.

LIP - Bus Stop Accessibility

The bus stop accessibility programme is recognised as a crucial element in the
drive to improve the quality of bus services. Currently the borough is 99%
compliant and we are one of only a few boroughs in London with such a high
percentage of compliant bus stops.

Various bus stops are being reviewed for improvements based on ad hoc
requests from TfL, bus operators or other stakeholders. TfL has confirmed that
additional monies are available to complete the programme and the Council will
be pursuing this further.

LIP — Freight Management Schemes

175



2.36

2.37

2.38

2.39

2.40

241

2.42

2.43

In this year’s programme it is intended to review the existing lorry ban (weight
limit restriction) areas in the borough with regard to their extents, level of
compliance and enforceability. Currently these areas are very large and
impractical to enforce and this review will consider alternative designs which
could be more easily enforced and protect residential streets on non-through
routes more effectively. This will involve checking the existing entry and exit
signing. This work is on-going.

This year we are also proposing to review the provision of loading bays at key
locations. This work is currently underway.

LIP - Legible London

Pedestrian way finding signs will be provided in the Stanmore Broadway area
and around Headstone Manor and Museum area. The provisional artwork and
site locations are currently being reviewed. Works will be issued to the contractor
once agreed with TfL and it is anticipated that the signs will be installed in
January 2018.

LIP - Cycling schemes (CS)

The Council has increased its allocation for cycling in the TfL LIP programme to
£100k this will allow us to develop more schemes in line with our adopted cycle
strategy.

CS - Harrow Leisure Centre — Cycle route improvement at Kenmore Avenue
Roundabout

A scheme to improve cycling facilities connecting Kenton Road near Kenton
Station and the Harrow Leisure Centre was completed earlier this year this
involved the construction of a zebra crossing near to the Christchurch Avenue
junction and a slightly raised area to highlight the crossing. Further
improvements to the traffic islands along this corridor at the roundabout near
Kenmore Avenue were also completed recently.

CS - Metropolitan Route Cycle Route

The Council’s transport consultant is designing improvements to the cycle
network along the Metropolitan route corridor. This route extends from east —
west from Harrow on the Hill at the College Road / Clarendon Road junction to
Station Road in North Harrow.

Potential measures consist of low to medium interventions such as junction
improvements/ entry treatments, off road shared /segregated footways, potential
pathway improvements through green spaces and reallocation of road space
where permissible.

Initial designs are underway and discussions are planned to take place with our

cycle advisor in the near future to discuss our plans in greater detail. The public
consultation will begin in December.

176



2.44

2.45

2.46

2.47

2.48

2.49

2.50

2.51

CS — Quiet way route

TfL have been working with the boroughs and Sustrans, a charitable cycling
organisation, to assist the Mayor for London to identify a “Quiet way” network
across London. Quiet ways routes are intended to form a network of radial and
orbital cycle routes designed to overcome barriers to cycling and target cyclists
who want to use quieter, low-traffic routes that provide an environment for those
cyclists who want to travel at a gentler pace.

In early October officers met with representatives of Sustrans and TfL on site to
explore the new “Quiet ways” route linking Harrow Town Centre to Harrow Weald
via Wealdstone from Wembley Park. A potential route has been agreed in
principle and Sustrans are now in the process of developing this route further in
accordance with their Quietway Delivery Programme (QDP) criteria. TfL has
recently approved this route.

Officers also met recently with representatives from Brent Council and Sustrans
to agree the route alignment across Kenton Road which will link the two
boroughs and extend the route to Wembley Park. It is anticipated that once the
route has been finalised and agreed with TfL funding will be released to start the
detailed design process next financial year.

It envisaged that the two town centres Harrow and Wealdstone will be linked
through a high quality quite way route through quiet residential local streets to
avoid main roads. If funded is granted through the Liveable Neighbourhood bid
the council will also look to introduce cycle hubs in both town centres.

LIP - Local Transport Fund (LTF) 2017/18

The TfL award for funding in 2017/18 included a local transport funding allocation
of £100,000. This budget is allocated to boroughs through the Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) funding process. The funds must be used for transport
purposes broadly consistent with the Mayor’s Transport Strategy and the
borough’s LIP but no other criteria apply to this allocation. Members agreed a
programme of LTF schemes at the February TARSAP meeting.

LTF - Grange Avenue — Proposed point no entry

Introduce a point no entry at the western end of Grange Road to address
localised rat running concerns. In order to create the point no entry we will
narrow the carriageway at the junction and install illuminated no entry traffic
signs.

The design is complete and consultation took place with local residents in June.
The informal public consultation for the Grange Avenue point no entry took place
from the 19th June until 3rd July 2017. In total 59 leaflets were delivered with 29

responses (49% response rate). The results of the informal public consultation
were as follows:

177



2.52

2.53

2.54

2.55

Q1: Are you in favour of the proposed point no entry scheme?
Road No Yes Road Total
Grange Avenue (33%) 8 (67%) 16 24
Kenton Lane (50%) 1 (50%) 1 2
Uppingham Avenue (100%) 3 (0%) O 3
Grand Total (41%) 12 (59%) 17 29

Legal notification (statutory consultation) took place from 20th July — 10th August
during that time no objections were received. Following discussions with the
Portfolio Holder it was decided to proceed to implementation. The detailed
design has been completed and the scheme has been sent to our contractor for
implementation.

LTF - Vaughan Road, extension of existing 20mph zone

This scheme involves expanding the existing Vaughan School 20 mph zone to
include roads to the south such as Butler Road, Bouverie Road and Drury Road

The informal public consultation for the Vaughan School 20mph zone extension
took place from the 23rd June until 17th July 2017. In total 1204 leaflets were
delivered with 147 responses (12% response rate). The results of the informal
public consultation were as follows:

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme

Road No Yes Road Total
Badgers Close 1 0 1
Bowen Road 3 2 5
Butler Avenue 2 10 12
Butler Road 5 31 36
Colbeck Road 1 3 4
Drury Road 7 20 27
Heath Road 2 3 5
Holsworth Close 0 1 1
Lance Road 1 3 4
Merivale Road 3 9 12
Sumner Road 2 5 7
Sussex Road 0 1 1
Vaughan Road 9 15 24
Whitmore Road 0 1 1
Wilson Gardens 1 6 7
Grand Total 37 (25%) 110 (75%) 147

Based on the results of the consultation the Portfolio Holder agreed that we
could proceed to legal notification (statutory consultation.)

178



2.56

2.57

2.58

2.59

2.60

2.61

2.62

Statutory Consultation for Vaughan School 20mph zone extension proposals
took place from the 20th July 2017 until 16th August 2017. Eleven objections
were received during this period. The Portfolio Holder considered the objections
received and in the interests of road safety agreed to the implementation of the
scheme.

The scheme will be completed by the end of the financial year.

LTF - Northolt Road — Localised improvements

Measures to improve the public realm in the section between Eastcote Lane and
South Harrow underground station are being developed in discussions with the
Portfolio Holder.

LTF - Minor safety measures, road markings / traffic signs

The council receives many requests each year from local residents and other
stakeholders for localised measures to improve road safety. Not all requests
meet our criteria for traffic calming measures such as road humps, chicanes etc.
and so this programme of work will be used throughout the year to address minor
local safety concerns that are not prioritised for more major interventions but
could benefit from minor works.

LIP Walking Projects (WP)

Honeypot Lane — proposed pelican crossing (between Broadcroft Avenue and
Dalston Gardens).

The public consultation on the proposed pelican crossing ended on 30th June
2017 and the majority of responses were in favour of the scheme. Based on the
results of the consultation the Portfolio Holder agreed to proceed to legal
notification (statutory consultation.) in December.

Detailed investigations and surveys are completed and the final details are being
agreed in discussion with the TfL signals team.

WP - London Road, Harrow on the Hill - proposed zebra crossing.

Public consultation took place recently along with publishing the consultation
online we also delivered 173 leaflets to local residents / businesses. We received
157 responses which equates to 91%, which is overwhelming. Out of these
responses, a majority (146 no’s) were in support of the proposals and 7 were
against. See table below :

Are you in Favour of a zebra crossing in London Road?
Yes 146 | 92.99%
No 7 4.46%
Don’t know / No response 4 2.55%

179



2.63

2.64

2.65

2.66

2.67

2.68

2.69

2.70

Total 157 | 100%

Based on the results of the consultation the Portfolio Holder agreed to proceed to
legal notification (statutory consultation) in December.

LIP - Congestion Relief schemes

Traffic congestion occurs when the demand to make journeys gets close to or
exceeds the network capacity and is characterised by slower speeds, longer
journey times, and vehicle queues. This programme of work seeks to identify
areas of the network where improvements can maximise network capacity by
removing blockages and ensuring that traffic management is efficient and
effective.

Last year our consultants provided a report on the congestion which occurs at
Belmont Circle which was mainly attributed to the two Toucan Crossing facilities.
It was recommended that the two crossings are linked so that traffic flows more
smoothly. TfL are currently working up the design to link the signals.

The Council’s transport consultants have suggested a number of options to
improve congestion with regards to Queensbury Circle and the northern section
of Kenton Lane (between Gordon Avenue and Uxbridge Road) which is likely to
be on the next batch of yellow lines.

Howberry Road — It is proposed to upgrade the existing single yellow line [SYL]
(Mon-Fri 2-3pm) to DYL’s across one side of road. This is to allow emergency
services to pass unhindered and to address congestion issues when there are
events at Wembley Stadium as visitors using the nearby Canons Park train
station use this road to park. The measures are proposed following a petition
received earlier this year by concerned residents of Howberry Road. The
proposals have been subject to statutory consultation. During the statutory
consultation period the council received 28 objections and one petition.

All comments, representations, objections and petitions will be considered along
with the reasons for proposing the lines and these will be discussed with local
Councillors and the Portfolio Holder for Environment before a final decision is
made as to whether the scheme proposals are implemented as proposed or
amended.

LIP - School Travel Plan Highway schemes

As a part of the school expansion programme and associated transport
assessments, approved by the Planning Committee, some highway
improvements have been identified to mitigate the traffic impact of expansion.
This programme of work takes forward any agreed mitigations identified.

As part of this programme, a review of parking and loading restrictions are
proposed at a number of schools. Surveys are currently underway

LIP Electric Vehicles (EV) infrastructure

180



2.71

2.72

2.73

2.74

2.75

2.76

2.77

We are currently looking at how we can best support electric vehicle use in the
borough, including potential locations for on-street charging points. The final
locations for these charge points will take into account the views of and requests
from residents. Locations will be assessed for suitability and factor in a number
of considerations for other road users and pedestrians, for example, ensuring
that footpaths continue to be wide enough to accommodate wheelchairs.

Harrow residents and businesses have been consulted about their views on
electric vehicles and potential locations for chargepoints. The survey is open until
20th November 2017 and results will be used to help determine potential
locations for chargepoints, and to apply for funding from OLEV.

LIP - Neighbourhood of the Future (NoF) Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ)

The council is currently working with TfL on a delivery programme for this
scheme. There is a separate report on the agenda which gives more details
about the scheme scope, objectives and status.

LIP - Accessibility Improvements

This is an on-going programme of work and is concentrated mainly on the
provision of disabled parking bays, dropped kerbs for pedestrians and other
physical changes to highway to support mobility impaired people.

External funding sources

Developer funding - Victor Road — Access improvement scheme (Kodak site)

Section 106 monies were provided under a planning application for the Kodak
site in Wealdstone. Developer contributions in excess of £2 million were agreed
for transportation related projects to be released at various stages of the
development.

The proposals include a new 20 mph zone in Victor Road, Sidney Road,
Atherton Place, Edward Road, Albert Road and Pinner View. The 20 mph will be
self-enforcing utilising the existing road humps currently in situ. In addition it is
proposed to introduce a point no entry at the junction of Harrow View / Victor
Road. This will prevent rat running through these residential roads and
encourage traffic to access Headstone Manor via Headstone Gardens utilising
the improved Goodwill to All junction and main roads.

Statutory Consultation for the Victor Road 20mph zone scheme took place from
the 315 August 2017 until 20™ September 2017. Four objections were received

during this period. These were discussed with the Portfolio Holder who decided
to overrule the objections and proceed to implementation of the revised scheme
as shown in Appendix E.

Goodwill to All junction — Headstone Drive / Harrow View / Headstone Gardens

181


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/grants-for-local-authorities-to-provide-residential-on-street-chargepoints

2.78

2.79

2.80

2.81

2.82

2.83

2.84

2.85

2.86

The scheme to improve the junction is currently being modelled with the council’s
contractor in liaison with TfL signal design team. A number of options are being
considered in order to be able to introduce an all red phase at the junction whilst
trying to improve traffic flow through the junction.

Matrix Pub - Sandringham Crescent area parking review

The business case for the release of funds for this project is being drafted; once
the funds have been released we will begin the parking review process in the
area surrounding the development with a view to introduce parking controls in
the area in the future.

GLA funding - Wealdstone Square (formerly Trinity Square) Wealdstone

The section of Headstone Drive between the High Street and Ellen Webb Drive
is the area within the scope of the brief for the public realm improvements. The
total funding approved by the GLA for the project is £850,000 of which
approximately £680k is allocated for design and implementation of the public
realm improvements.

The project is being overseen by the Council’s Economic Development Team. A
project board and project team have been established to oversee progress and
provide direction for the project.

Informal consultation took place in July with local residents and businesses and
the results were reported to the Portfolio Holder for his consideration. As the
majority of the comments received wee in support of the scheme the Portfolio
Holder agreed to proceed to statutory consultation.

The scheme includes the concept of splitting the public realm into three distinct
sections. A dwell space near the Trinity Church, a host space for potential events
and a servicing space for parking and access. There scheme is designed so that
there will be no net loss of parking as part of the improvements.

The Council is currently discussing how access into the host space area can be
managed with the Post Office and other stakeholders.

Liveable Neighbourhood Bid (TfL) — Wealdstone Sustainable Neighbourhood
Scheme

The council has recently submitted a bid to TfL in line with the above initiative to
develop a sustainable neighbourhood scheme along Wealdstone High Street.
The Liveable Neighbourhood programme replaces the “old” Major Projects fund
initiative. There is a separate item on tonight’s agenda which will provide
information about the proposal in more detail.

The intention for Wealdstone is to create a functional, attractive, and accessible
and people friendly public realm with spaces that promote sustainable modes of
transport, minimises the use of the private car, improves air quality and provides
a positive street experience.

182



2.87

2.88

2.89

Road Safety Campaign - Safe Drive Stay Alive (21st — 23rd Nov)

Targeted at year 12 and 13 students, Safe Drive Stay Alive (SDSA) is a powerful
full stage theatre production aiming to reduce the number of road casualties
among young road users and educate them about the risks, to enable theme to
identify the common causes for crashes and the best prevention strategies.
SDSA will be running from Tuesday 21st — Thursday 23rd November at
Harrow Arts Centre. The production lasts approximately 90mins and there are
two performances each day commencing at 10am and again at 1pm.

Primary School initiatives

Road safety presentations/talks and pedestrian training have been scheduled
throughout November. Presentations will be delivered to all year groups (1 — 6)
and pedestrian training specifically delivered to Year 4 pupils. Within Road
Safety Week, 10 schools will be receiving presentations and 5 schools will
receive pedestrian training. Information on additional resources/initiative ideas
has been cascaded to schools. Reflectors will also be delivered to schools for
Year 1 pupils.

The above information has also been included in the member’s circular.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

A regular update is provided at every meeting on progress with the annual
programme of traffic and parking schemes. Future reports will provide
information to members about any consultations, statutory consultations, portfolio
holder decisions and implementation issues since the previous meeting.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1

Any schemes and works programmes mentioned in this report are being taken
forward using identified resources within the 2017/18 capital programme and the
confirmed funding allocation from TfL for 2017/18.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

5.2

5.3

All major schemes included in this report, depending on what stage they are at,
have been or will be subject to an equality impact assessment (EqlA).

Small to medium sized schemes, depending on what stage they are at, have
been or will be subject to a review of equality issues as a part of the design risk
assessment stage of the scheme.

In general terms there have been no adverse impacts on any of the specified
equality groups from any of the schemes or initiatives mentioned in this report.
There are positive impacts on some equalities groups, particularly disability and
age.

183



Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1 The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will contribute
to achieving the administration’s priorities:

Making a difference for the vulnerable
Making a difference for communities
Making a difference for local businesses
Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15/11/17

Ward Councillors notified: NO, as it impacts on all
wards

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact:

Barry Philips — Team Leader, Transportation
Tel: 020 8424 1649, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E-mail: Barry.Philips@harrow.gov.uk

Johann Alles — Deputy “Dog” Team Leader
Tel: 020, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E- mail: Johann.Alles@Harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Local Implementation Plan
Previous TARSAP reports

184



mailto:Johann.Alles@Harrow.gov.uk

G8T

Appendix A — Harrow Capital, parking management schemes update — 2017/18

This is Harrow’s own programme of parking management scheme initiatives which support the delivery of the Local implementation Plan. In
2017/18 this comprises of allocations of £220K for controlled parking schemes and £80K for the local safety parking schemes programme.

Scheme Details £ K | Status Contact officer Planned
finish
Wealdstone area (nr leisure Area parking review, roads 40 | Legal notification (Statutory Barry Philips / Sajjad | Feb/Mar
centre) — Zone CA and J west and north of leisure consultation) completed 25" Farid 2018
Parking review centre — extend hours and / or October results to be collated
be part of the existing CPZ and reported to PH and local
(CA or J zone) councillors.
Burnt Oak Broadway area Area parking review — new 35 | Public consultation completed Barry Philips / Sajjad | Jan/Feb
(zone X) P&D on main road and Legal notification (Statutory Farid 2018
localised parking review extension of existing zone (X) consultation) to be undertaken
in Nov / Dec
County Roads — Area parking Area parking review - possible | 35 | Legal notification (Statutory Barry Philips / Sajjad | Jan/Feb
review extension of existing CPZ U consultation) to be undertaken | Farid 2018
and or existing zone NH1 in November
Calthorpe Gardens — localised | Localised parking review- 15 | Legal notification (Statutory Barry Philips / Sajjad | Mar
parking review possible extension of zone consultation) to be undertaken | Farid 2018
zone H in January
The Gardens — Zone W — Localised parking review — 20 | Legal notification (Statutory Barry Philips / Sajjad | Feb/Mar
localised parking review possible new zone with consultation) to be undertaken | Farid 2018
extended hours of control in Nov / Dec
Kenmore Avenue/ Christchurch | Localised parking review — 15 | Public consultation concluded Barry Philips / Sajjad | April
Avenue- localised parking possible new CPZ in Nov results to be discussed Farid 2018
review with PH and local councillors
Chandos Crescent / Methuen Area parking review — 35 | Legal notification (Statutory Barry Philips / Sajjad | Feb/Mar
Road - local parking review possible extension of existing consultation) to be undertaken | Farid 2018
zones TA and or X in Dec / Jan
Dukes Avenue — Localised parking review — 10 | Legal notification (Statutory Barry Philips /Sajjad | Jan/Feb
Localised Parking review possible extension of existing consultation) complete scheme | Farid 2018
zone TB to include Dukes to progress to implementation
Avenue.
Whitefriars Avenue - localised Review of waiting restrictions 10 | Initial design underway — to be | Barry Philips /Sajjad | Mar




081

Scheme Details £ K | Status Contact officer Planned
finish
parking review in Whitefriars Avenue, discussed with local councillors | Farid 2018
Wealdstone.
Queensbury Circle parade — Localised parking review — 5 Public consultation is complete | Barry Philips / Sajjad | complete
localised parking review possible new CPZ, Pay and no support for the measures Farid
display and shared use bays was demonstrated and
therefore the scheme will not
be taken forward. PH to
confirm
Local Safety Parking The introduction of minor 80 | On-going prioritisation / Barry Philips /Sajjad | Mar
Programme Schemes localised waiting restrictions implementation of requests for 2018

(yellow lines) schemes to deal
with access problems and
road safety issues.

yellow lines. (See main body of
report)




L8T

Appendix B — Transport for London, local implementation plan programme update — 2017/18

This is the main traffic and transportation programme funded by Transport for London to deliver the programme of investment in the Transport

Local Implementation Plan (LIP). The overall allocation for traffic and transportation works and initiatives related to the LIP in 2017/18 is
£2,045k. This is allocated as either capital or revenue within Harrow’s financial system depending on the nature of the work undertaken.

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Accident remedial | Mass action - killed and seriously | 100 | Designs complete Barry Mar 2018
schemes injured (KSI) casualties’ Philips
reduction. Sites include Northolt
Road, Honeypot Lane (between
Kingsbury and Queensbury
Circles) and Pinner Road
(between Station Road and
Headstone Lane)
Corridors 20 mph zone Implementation of 20mph zones 100 | Implementation in — February 2017 Barry Mar 2018
programme around schools in the borough. subject to PH approval. Philips
Pinner Park School and St John
Fisher School
Corridors Walking Schemes | Infrastructure schemes designed 50 | Pedestrian crossing on Honeypot Barry Dec 2017
to improve walking facilities Lane (near Crowshott Avenue) with Philips
TIL.
Zebra crossing on London Road
consultation complete
Corridors Cycling Schemes Programme of schemes to 200 | Improvement to create cycle links Barry Mar 2018
improve cycle routes on the between Vaughan Road (nr Harrow Philips

highway network

Town Centre) to Eastcote and
Pinner — route currently being
designed




881

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Bus priority Schemes to improve congestion 180 | Northolt Road - undertaking surveys Barry Mar 2018
schemes and improve delays to buses on and preliminary design. Philips
Northolt Road and Harrow on the Harrow on the Hill — survey
Hill programmed mid-July
Corridors Bus stop Programme of works to improve 50 Investigation underway to determine Barry Mar 2018
accessibility accessibility for buses and sites where improvements are Philips
schemes pedestrians at bus stops required
Corridors Cycling Greenways | Provision of cycle routes through 50 In design Barry Mar 2018
parks to link with wider cycle Philips
network and support leisure
cycling activity.
Corridors Freight Review of existing weight limit 50 Review of existing lorry ban zones — Barry Mar 2018
management restriction zones potential loading bays preliminary Philips
schemes design underway
Corridors Congestion relief Programme of schemes to 80 Linking pedestrian crossings on Barry Mar 2018
studies reduce congestion and improve Belmont Circle — in design by Transport | Philips
journey time reliability for London
Kenton Lane (northern end) — surveys
programmed mid-July
Queensbury Circle — study being
undertaken by Atkins
Corridors School Travel Plan, | Highway improvement schemes 50 | West Lodge — proposed extension to Barry Mar 2018
Highway schemes | identified in School Travel Plans 20mph zone Philips

to encourage sustainable
transport and mitigate impact of
school expansions

High Street (Wealdstone) —
proposed pedestrian refuge
Review of parking and loading
restrictions




68T

TFL Scheme Details £ k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Accessibility Provision of Disabled parking 50 | On-going programme of delivery Barry Mar 2018
Improvements bays, and dropped kerbs for throughout the year. Delivered in Philips
pedestrians and other physical batches.
changes to highway to support
mobility impaired people
Corridors Legible London Pedestrian way finding sign 50 | Way finding signs in Stanmore and Barry Mar 2018
Signing works Headstone North being investigated Philips
Corridors Shopmobility Funding support for increased 5 Funds being used to keep Hanif Islam Mar 2018
opening hours of service Shopmobility open on the first
particularly at weekends and in Saturday of every month. Extra
Christmas sales services were run during Christmas
period.
Corridors Road safety Various road safety education 45 Interactive road safety education David Mar 2018
education and initiatives for schools and programs to continue in all schools Corby
promotions vulnerable road user groups in Harrow.
undertaken by Road Safety
Officer. Motor cycle banner road safety
campaign.
Corridors Future programme | Identify future work through 61 | On-going scheme investigation and Barry Mar 2018
development assessments and studies. development work for 2018/19 Philips
schemes
Corridors Cycle training TfL funded cycle training is 80 | On-going delivery of free cycle training | David Corby | Mar 2018
offered free to children and for children and adults
adults, who live, work or are
educated in the borough. All
courses are promoted via the
council website and throughout
schools and businesses in the
borough.
Corridors Travel Training This will provide support to those 6 To provide targeted travel training Hanif Islam Mar 2018
with learning difficulties to use via Harrow Association of Disabled
public transport People
Corridors Electric vehicles Promote electric charging points 50 Investigating suitable sites for Barry Mar 2018
and car clubs and car clubs electric charging points to support Philips

electric vehicles use.




06T

TFL Scheme Details £ k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Promoting Initiatives undertaken by travel 50 | On-going work to provide: Barry Mar 2018
sustainability planning staff to support the ¢ Travel Planning advice for Philips
wider sustainable transport planning applications
agenda e Promotion of electric vehicle
technology and charging points
and Car Clubs
e Promotions / Campaigns including
- Bike Week, cycling promotions,
walking works promotions,
integration with smarter travel
¢ Promotion of Active Travel and
links with Health and Air Quality
¢ Anti-ldling campaign
Corridors School travel plans | Various initiatives undertaken by 80 | Support for school travel plans Barry Mar 2018
travel planning staff: including requests for grant funding Philips
to implement measures to support
e Small grant funding to support school travel plans to promote
travel plans sustainable travel and discourage
e Walk to School promotions use of private car to travel to school.
e Schools quarterly newsletter
e Theatre in education Promotional work to support
e School Travel Maps _sustai_nable transp_ort message
e Cycle repair workshops including Theatr_e in Edu_catlon
shows and Dr Bike sessions
Corridors Travel Plans — Support for local businesses and 55 | Travel Planning officers are Barry Mar 2018
businesses and organisations to develop travel providing on-going support for Philips

organisations

plans and implement sustainable
travel

organisations and Businesses




16T

TFL Scheme Details £ k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Local Various local Local priority schemes identified 100 | Schemes identified at Feb TARSAP Barry Mar 2018
Transport schemes by the borough which support the as follows: Philips
Fund Mayors Transport Strategy
e Grange Avenue — point no entry
e Vaughan Road — extension to
20mph zone
¢ Northolt Road — improvements
to bus stops near Station
e Christchurch Avenue —
completion of cycling scheme
e Minor safety schemes — ad hoc
requests
GULC Rapid Harrow NOF — Implement a neighbourhood of 80 | Scheme parking layouts design on- Barry Mar 2018
EV Charging Greenhill Go Ultra | the future in Harrow Town centre going. Philips
Infrastructure | Low
Review of parking bays in Station EV charging point contract being
Road / College Rd and finalised.
surrounding streets and
introduction of EV charging Reviewing training courses for EV
points and EV parking bays maintenance.
accredited training courses for (See main body of report)
mechanics in Harrow to become
skilled in the maintenance of
electric vehicles
Bus priority Wealdstone town Additional transport modelling 50 | On-going Barry Mar 2018
delivery centre bus work (VISSIM) to assess bus Philips
portfolio improvements journey time performance on two

design options in the Wealdstone
transport study




45}

TFL Scheme Details £ k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Bus priority Route 140 bus Northolt Road between South 350 | Schemes design completed. Barry Mar 2018
delivery improvements Harrow Underground Station and Consultation in Nov/Dec Philips
portfolio Valentine Road —proposed

changes to parking / bus stops /

loading bays

Treve Avenue / Porlock Avenue

proposed inset parking bays
Bus priority Taxis in bus lanes | Mayoral proposal to allow black 10 | Design work underway Barry Mar 2018
delivery taxi cabs to use bus lanes at Philips
portfolio width restrictions. Two sites at

Camrose Avenue and Headstone

Lane
Schools Safe Drive Stay Educational theatre programme 18.1 | Design work underway David Mar 2018

Alive for schools targeting young Corby

drivers (years 12 & 13)




NOaNo1

+000-G-XS"GHHN-OdH-MLY-SSTSLOH (z 40 1 133HS) (37vDS OL LON) AvOd LTOHLYON - SINFHOS ILNOY SNE B ALIAVS VOO0 ( \Sn\.\% z._.m z —¥h<

('ONE) SAVE ONIMYVd d3aNIvL3d 39
AV1dSIa ANV AVd ISOdONd o (‘ONL) AVE ONIMYVd O L3sNI A3aNALXT OL INIWLYIHL :
_ V1dSId GNY - SAVE ONRIVd AYIN3Z @3sIvy ONINIAIM
ONIN3QIM ETCTEYE: " AVd G3S0dO¥d NOLLOIHLS3H AVML004
AMIOO4 L) \\| ONIQvO1 ANy ENYIIEN BN Q3SOdONd
oo OL INIWLYIHL | L ONILIVA JNIL ANV 38 01 (‘oNg)
AYLINT @3sivy BB 1V a3S0d0¥d SAVE ONIRIVd _
L] ONINIAIM
L | 55 AVMLOOAS
a3s0do¥d
X —
—_—
| = -
|\\|\
\—l.\ —
—
ANNIAVY
N VHANYX3TY ONINIAIM
AVMLOOH
v L3SNI L a350d0yd
ONINIQIM
AVMLOOH a
_ a350d0Nd AINO AYINI B oo o Y
L - AMLN3 ON LNIOd 8
EENTT
a3S0do¥d —
P g 135N a3IAOWIY 38 01 AvE ONIQVOT ENNIIENEL i ANO LIX3
QVOM INLNTTVA 3L ONILSIXT HL  g350doyd L OL AvE ONIQVOT AYLNZ ON LNIOd ~
avoy 310018V,
SAV TIH HLNO 3NV 3L001Sv3
INIAY IHOO0: O Pmmz_ (
a L3SNI e
avod AFTINVLS
avOy JONVY,;
TTIH HL3XO:
3 13SNI ™
(@))
avoy ¥3amol 1 —
— SNOILOIYLSTY ONIAVOT e
g.13sni — ANV ONILIVM JWIL ANV 1Y d3SOdO¥d vL3SNI
Q3Lvo013y
"NOIS3A 40 IOVLS LX3IN LNIOd ONISSOHD NOIS QYIHY 3801
1V d3M3IATY 38 OL SONINIL a3 TI08LNOONN AISOdO¥d INIOd HONId SAONTH S Qw3 — NOIS 3NV SNe
TVNOIS / ONITIIAON NOILONNF € (oN2) OL a3N3AIM AYMLOO4
"MOV18 NI NMOHS 3V . ANV SAVE AV1dSIA B
AVE ONIMEYd AV1dSIa (‘ONL) QIAOWIY 39 OL AvE
SONBREVIV aVOY d3S0dOud ANV ANV AVd 03S0dO¥d ONINMHVd AV1dSI ANV AVd [~ AVd 40 TYAOW3Y Q3S040ud
SLININNOITY 8433 03ISOdo¥d 2
"ATHO NI MOHS 34V @
SONIRVIN AVOY ONILSIXI TV} wl
]
1 R
'S3LON _“ L
ONISSOY¥D A3 TIOHLNOD —_

ONISSOHO A3T10HLNOONN
ONIODV4dNS NOILOIdd HOIH

JANIL ANV LV ONIAVO'T

% ONILIVM ON M3N a3S0d0OYd
Y3LT3HS SNG A3LYO013Y
dotssnagatvoonad [ ]
AV ONIAVO1 a3S0dodd
AVE AVdSIA ANY AVd 03SOd0OYd mﬁm@_m_mwwm__wm__mm%zwm%u ONISSOND
aNVTISI 43SOdOY¥d hm_,m__w_@w_ﬁww mfn_mwuw il N W_m_m_wﬁ_uwm_\n/_
LINIWLYIHL AMINT a3SIVY A3S0d0Yd oL ow\ywuﬂ_m@
AVMLOOA 38013341
SONIATING TYILNIAISTY {
SONIQTING YIOYIWNOD / TIVLIY \e mﬁ_\,_mw wwm__wm__\m,__m% zwm_%u mwm_ Mmm__,n___ uw_p\w
FEN | INIANOTTVY ININLYIEL AYLNI a31vo0134 39 0L

943X d3S0d0odd — a3sivd d3so0d0dd ONIMYVIN ANV SNg —



tpatel
Appendix C


T 7 T T T
7 902610001 MONYVH 40 HONOIO NOANOT
SONIAZZD0dd TIAID 4O NOLLNDISO¥d OL A¥ATAVIW ANV LHORIAdOD NMOYD STONIIANI

\ NOLLDNQOYdTY AISIIOHLAVN LHORAIOD NMOUD (D) ADIAA0 AYINOLLVLS SALSAVIV

NOaNDoT
€000-0"%S"Q¥HN-OdH-MLY-SSTSLOH (z 40 2 133HS) (37vDS OL LON) AVOY LTOHLHON - SINIHOS ILNOY SNE B ALI4VS VOO ( Em\\% ) E.m z —¥h<

ATH A0 JATIOYINOD THL A0 ATVHAL NO ATAYNS IINVNAYO A0 NOISSINY A THL
HLIM TVRIFLYIN AFAANS AINVNAYO NOd AASYE 4O WOAA AADNA0NdHY ST ONIddVIN THL
I |

L

W= — — | |

NOHATIvM

dyvA S
AL

D{Om L~ o — gy ~ -

37adin

INNIAY
VHANYXITY

V 13SNI

pemmemmmeanay

Qavod INLLNITVA

3INV13L001SVY3

O 13SNI
a 13SNI

avod ATINVLS

| |
a3aN3AIM 39 OL
ANV7ISI ONILSIX3
| ||

| .

TIH HL3XO: MFMWZ_ T
| J
avoy ¥amol - . - - - ! — — L | | | L | | |
— T\ —
,, ,,,, A\ \\ ] |}
- —— | JI=sNI NOILSIONOD 30NAa3d
7 ,,, ® Y i ANV STTOIHIA ONINYNL
SNOILOIYLSTY | A\ \ T LHOIY 40 ALITIFISIA
- e ONIQvO1 | A\ \\  IAOHdINI OL SNOILOIYLSTY
‘NOIS3A 40 FOVLS LX3IN e — — _ ANVONILIVMIWL | \ ONIAVOT ANV DNILIVM
1V d3IM3INIY 38 OL SONINIL T T W T e -~ ANV LV d3S0d0¥d [ 1 — | | S — JNIL ANY LY 03SOdO¥d
TVYNDIS / ONITIIAOW NOILONNP '€ B 4 f 77 - \ e [ , \ T T S R -
MOV NI NMOHS 34V 7 7 7 7 N | , , # ,
SONIYVYIN QYO d3S0d0O¥d ANV 7 7 f f 1 , | | T |
SINIWNOITY g43¥ a3S0dodd ¢ , 7 7 | | || , , , ,
. |

"A3HO NI MOHS 3V il ﬂ | L\
SONDRVIN QVOX ONILSIXI TV ) % ,t R 1 | A S

‘S310N

NOILVLS
MO¥NYVH HLNOS

ONISSOYD A3T104d1NOD

ONISSOdD A3T10dLNOONN
ONIOV4dNS NOILOIdd HOIH

-
|

},7

|

’7

-

L =
\

|

JWIL ANV LV ONIQVOT® I
ONILIVM ON M3N Q3S0d0¥d e S R 77 = __
. : - — — - == — = —_— == =7 [ =
¥31713HS SNE 3LVO0T3Y | ! T T — — T T~ — == T2 == I —
— ‘\\\\\\J\ﬁ(OIHJ_OIFKOZ T e e————
dotssnagawvoorad [ _ ) | L \ . B _ \
[ T SERE—— [ , _ — — | -
AVE ONIQYOT 3S0d0Yd ) , | - I — i = | _—
f, (NN | ‘| N ) N | | | | 961 | 2¢oz | | [ |
AVE AV1dSIA ANY AVd 3SOdO¥d || J_; 1 09} , || T ,, | | | [ [ ]
[ I | . - || P 7|4 | , | ,,
aNVTISI 3S0dOYd F - | ,,, fﬁ | ~ 1 || ,, | — L ] [ [
| 1 | , ~ N , - [ [
AINIWLVYIHL AYLINT d3sSIvd d3S0d0odd ,, avk | o f ,, J 1 ,r - \% I — | , | ,, | |
, AR J - — | | P | | | ,
AVMLOOA , , Zz — | ] ,, A , ,, ,,,
L 1 o E / — i | 13%00d NYNL , ,, ,,,
SONIQTING TYILNIQISTY , , m =< 7 ,, | ' ,, S LHOMN Pmm_komn_ Ol | ,, |
, : , QUVANVLS HLIM 3NIT ,, |
I , | - ONISSOND NVI¥LS3A3d | | ,,
SONIGTING TVIONIWNOD / TIV.L3Y - | L — ||| 3 | ,f ,, QS TIOMLNOONN i | NIQ3ANZLXI¥IdVL | ,, ,,,
. L& | , L aNv aNvTIS| a3S0doYd 1 , — LXIANY AYINA = ————— | |
A RN [ 8L ,, | ﬁ i | L P—— \ ,,, |

| , | ol [ 1 , i




VAL INIWIOVNVIN YIOMIIN AVMHOH ONV OL3VEL pamvaa

"902610001 MOLIDH Ma :m:Eom :ovma._ .mm:_vunqu A Loozo_“ﬂﬂmgmwm N—ouu_hwﬂ‘wc NO TALVAL’AE Q3AVS ISV1  NV1d NLINSNOD £V XXX000IMAL : 8YL 9MA'NOIS3IA TVLUNI o_/woz_;éo ou/u>< AJ0TH0d ANV IARAL w_ntow/w_.zuxu\ﬁxn_:_ 0¥l 3LN0Y Sn8 N—Nox&/mSuaEl/oEg/“o NOLVDOT INIMVHA
< XXXOOOOBQ._. .vwww._..vw._vn_wnzm_w_.o NOHA3L m._.Z \/ NSS! “._Mrﬂwn_ Lw___._o uw_m.”._h_uhom_owsw__m 10 =w_~mm._=:m.m m__u £_=q mc._ammz ﬁzw__muﬂ“aw?o o"_uz @Eehtmo_ﬁ%ow._wm
NOISIATY HIGNON_ ONINYG 301440 ONINSS! (3zS ¢V 1) TNOS v
(1 40 | 133HS) NV1d NOILYLINSNOD ST HAN 2 HLM
NIV HOOTHOd NV INNIAY IARIL © 2GFWZ0-LLD  oyivc i .U (30VId34 ONV G3AON3Y 38 OL T3L INLLSIX3 %
/
SINIWIAONANI O¥L 3LNOY¥ SNE © Z1Z00¥dL  1y3roug r\w\

INIT 843X MIN 03SOd0dd
SONIMYVIN Q¥Od MIN 03S0dO¥d =——

3Iva OGNV | 31¥a ANV | 31va ANV | 3LV ANV 3AON3Y 38 0L SONIIEVM 0v0d
A8 (3A0¥ddY| A8 @3MO3FHO | A d3NDISIA| A8 NMWYA ININANINY NOISIAY
- - £1°60°G0 dL| £1'60°G0 dL ANSSI TYILINI Y
R Tl |4
| 1] | | <
| I , , X
,, [ |

0L Q31v0013d 38 OL

\ A¥g 13SNI 3IVGONNOOIJV WN
1S0d ONY NOIS ONILSIX3 —

. AVYMLOO4 OINI
. 13SNI 39 0L (SON 2)
SAVE LINY3d ONILSIX3

B

I

»mw_/ﬁ._z S33dL MAN ¢ HLIM d33V1d3Y

ANV 03AONdd 38 Ol 33dl INILSIXA

3.30m

1l
|/3.30m

AVMLOO4 OLNI' L3SNI
38 OL SAVE ONILSIX3



tpatel_1
Appendix D


This page is intentionally left blank



61

]
‘- .
7/
/
p_ g
/7
7/
/
Ll |-
D./
R
|<
|
!
\
\
\\
-
\yﬂ,—— ‘\\
\
\
\
\

THE MAPPING IS REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH
THE PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE CONTROLLER OF HER
MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE (C) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION
INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 100019206.

-\
~
/ GQ\,OS?/
//OO\N\\\\‘\\
~
s
s
~
~
” %Y
o 8
” ®
4"" &
%
£
®
%
\l\cﬁo@?‘op&)
w
£
%
S
)
£
%
.
®
%
-~
>
F
- /’\" \
-~ Y \
- Y \ \
s _ -7\ \ \
\ \ //,——~\\
\ 29
\ /‘\
3 @ ZONE
- e
— - - /’\
20
ZONE

ZONE % N

20mph ZONE  20mph EXIT
SIGN ZONE SIGN

Except
cycles

NO ENTRY EXCEPT

@ﬁ

O

SIGN CYCLES SIGN

1.

NOTE:

20mph ZONE

PROPOSED 20mph ZONE BOUNDARY
20mph ROUNDEL ROAD MARKINGS
PROPOSED ISLAND

PROPOSED ENTRY TREATMENT
EXISTING SPEED CUSHIONS

EXISTING DOUBLE YELLOW LINE WAITING
RESTRICTIONS EXTENDED

THE LOCATION OF PROPOSED SPEED CUSHIONS &

20mph ROUNDEL ROAD MARKINGS, ARE INDICATIVE
& SUBJECT TO CONFIRMATION.

=

PROPOSED CYCLE
LANE ENTRY
(1.5m WIDE LANE)

NATKINS" | (w5

VICTOR ROAD 20mph ZONE - PUBLIC CONSULTATION (NOT TO SCALE)

HCTSTZ-ATK-HPC-VTR-SK-D-0001



jalles
App E


This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Information Report: Petitions
	8 Information Report: Wealdstone Transport Study
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone Transport Study - Appx 1 - Nov 17

	9 Information Report: Wealdstone - Liveable Neighbourhood bid
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone Liveable Neighborhood - Appx 1 - Nov 17

	10 Information Report: Ultra Low Emission Zone - Neighbourhood of the Future (NoF) update
	TARSAP Report - ULEZ -NoF Update - Appx 1 - Nov 17

	11 Information Report: 2017 /18 Traffic and Parking Schemes Programme update
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx C - Nov 17
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx D - Nov 17
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx E - Nov 17




